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Cautionary Statement

Except for the historical financial information damed herein, the matters discussed in this reparForm 10-K (as well as documents
incorporated herein by reference) may be considéf@dvard-looking" statements within the meaningsefction 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Secufitieisange Act of 1934, as amended. Such forwarkidgastatements include declarations
regarding the intent, belief or current expectasaf Silicon Laboratories Inc. and its managemert may be signified by the words "expet
"anticipates," "intends," "believes" or similar lgnage. You are cautioned that any such forwardilgpktatements are not guarantees of
future performance and involve a number of riskd ancertainties. Actual results could differ maadlsi from those indicated by such forw-
looking statements. Factors that could cause otrimute to such differences include those discusseter "Risk Factors” and elsewhere in
this report. Silicon Laboratories disclaims anyention or obligation to update or revise any forddooking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise.




Part |
ltem 1. Business
General

Silicon Laboratories Inc. designs and depslproprietary, analog-intensive, mixed-signag¢gnated circuits (ICs) for a broad range of
applications. Mixed-signal ICs are electronic comgrats that convert real-world analog signals, sagchound and radio waves, into digital
signals that electronic products can process. Ttweremixed-signal ICs are critical components ioread range of applications in a variety of
markets, including communications, consumer, iniistutomotive, medical and power management.

Our world-class, mixed-signal ICs use stadccomplementary metal oxide semiconductor (CM@&)nology to dramatically reduce the
cost, size and system power requirements of dethegur customers sell to their end-user custen@@ur expertise in analog-intensive,
mixed-signal IC design in CMOS allows us to develev and innovative products that are highly indéen, simplifying our customers'
designs and improving their time-to-market.

Industry Background

Communications, computing and consumertglaics continue to drive semiconductor consumpt®rowth in these markets has been
driven primarily by the increasing pervasivenesitdrnet usage, development of new communicatiecisnologies and the availability of
improved communication services at lower costs tngi-speed, highly reliable networks. This demhasd fueled tremendous growth in the
number of electronic devices. Demand for functigpéh mobile, handheld devices such as mobile gispportable media players and personal
navigation devices, has increased as manufactatterspt to further differentiate their productsn€emer and enterprise demand for Internet
connectivity, the availability of alternative telegny services and the transition to digital vides @so key trends driving demand for
innovative, mixed-signal ICs .

All of these applications are characteribgdin intersection between the analog world we ilivand the digital world of computing, and
therefore require analog-intensive, mixed-signadwts. Traditional mixed-signal designs relied nmlutions built with numerous, complex
discrete analog and digital components. While thesiitional designs provide the required functidgpathey are often inefficient and
inadequate for use in markets where size, costepoansumption and performance are increasinglpitapt product differentiators. In order
to improve their competitive position, electroninanufacturers need to reduce the cost of theiesystreduce the complexity of their systems
and enable new features or functionality to diff¢iste themselves from their competitors.

Simultaneously, these manufacturers facelamting time-to-market demands and must betabigpidly adapt to evolving industry
standards and new technologies. Because analagsinge mixedsignal IC design expertise is difficult to findege manufacturers increasin
are turning to third parties, like us, to providkvanced mixed-signal solutions. Mixed-signal desigguires specific expertise and relies on
creative, experienced engineers to deliver solsttbat optimize speed, power and performance degitnoisy digital environment and wit|
the constraints of standard manufacturing proce3¢esdevelopment of this design expertise typjoatjuires years of practical analog design
experience under the guidance of a senior enginedrengineers with the required level of skill @xgertise are in short supply.

Many third-party IC providers lack suffioeanalog expertise to develop compelling mixediaidCs. As a result, manufacturers of
electronic devices value third-party providers et supply them with mixed-signal ICs with gredtarctionality, smaller size and lower
power requirements at a reduced cost and shamertt-market.




Products

We provide analog-intensive, mixgighal ICs for use in a variety of electronic protun a broad range of applications including alole
devices, satellite set top boxes, sensors, AM/Fliibs test and measurement equipment, persona ved®rders, industrial monitoring and
control, central office telephone equipment, cugtopremises equipment and networking equipment.pbaducts integrate complex mixed-
signal functions that are frequently performed bynerous discrete components in competitive prodattssingle chips or chipsets. By doing
S0, we are able to create products that when cadpgarmany competing products:

. Require less board spar

. Reduce the use of external components loweringyhem cost and simplifying design;
. Offer superior performance improving our customensl products;

. Provide increased reliability and manufacturabilitgproving customer yields; and/

. Reduce system power requirements enabling smalier factors and/or longer battery It

We group our products into the followindezgories:

. RF products, which include our broadcast radioivere and transmitters, short-range wireless treimecs, video demodulators,
satellite set-top box receivers and satellite radiers;

. Access products, which include our ISOmodem® embedddodems and Voice over IP (VolP) products, ssobust ProSLIC®
subscriber line interface circuits and voice di@otess arrangement (DAA);

. Broac-based products, which includ-bit microcontroller products, timing products (inding clocks, precision clock & da
recovery ICs and oscillators) and power productsl(iding our isolators, current sensors, AC-DC @vters and Power over
Ethernet devices); and

. Mature products, which include our silicon DAA fe€ modems, DSL analog front end ICs, optical platdayer transceivel
and RF Synthesizers.

The following table summarizes the divgrseduct areas and applications for the variousth@swe have introduced to customers:

Product Areas and Description Applications

RF Products

Broadcast Radio Receivers and Transmit
Our FM and AM receivers deliver the entire tunenfrantenna input to audio outputina < Mobile phones
single chip. Ideal for portable audio applicatiothe broadcast audio products are based < Stand-alone AM/FM radios

on an innovative digital architecture that enalsiggificant improvements in « Personal computers
performance, which translates to a better cons@xgerience, while reducing system « Portable audio devices
cost and board space for our customers. The AM/Edéivers enable AM and/or FM » MP3/digital media players
radio in virtually any device and the transmittallew customers to cost effectively add « Navigation/GPS devices
wireless AM/FM audio playback capability to any fadrle media device. « Satellite radios

* Home stereos
« Automotive infotainment systen
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Product Areas and Description Applications
EZRadi® Shor-Range Wireless Transceive
Our EZRadio family of fully integrated, low powédow data rate and low cost short ra * Remote keyless entry
wireless ICs are designed to meet the needs ofrmess developing applications * Home security monitors
requiring a secure, point to point transmissiorhsag industrial monitoring and control. « Automated Meter Readers
* Remote control
Access Products
ISOmodem Embedded Mode
The ISOmodem embedded modems leverage innovaliversDAA technology and a  Set-top and digital cable boxes
digital signal processor to deliver a globally cdiapt, very small analog modem for * Industrial monitoring

embedded applications like set-top boxes, Persdidalo Recorders (PVRs) and fax » Postage meters



capability in multi-function printers.

ProSLIC Subscriber Line Interface Circu
Our ProSLIC provides the analog subscriber linerface on the source end of the
telephone which generates dial tone, busy ton&erdél and ring signal. Our ProSLIC
product family has offerings for shdmtul applications suitable for the customer pres
as well as long-haul applications suitable forttaeitional telephone company central
office.

Voice Direct Access Arrangement
Our DAA provides electrical isolation to guard agaipower surges in the telephone |
while the codec provides analog-to-digital and tdigio-analog conversion. In a voice
over DSL application, our voice DAA also enablessegency backup telephone service
in the event the data network goes do

* Security systems

* Remote medical monitoring

» Gaming consoles

* PVRs

« Point of sale (POS) terminals

» Fax machines and multi-function
printers

» Wireless local loop providing remote
access for a wireline system

« Voice over broadband modems and
terminal adapters

« VoIP residential gateways

* PBXs

 Wired long loop and central office
system:

« PBXs and IP telephony products




Product Areas and Description Applications
Broad-based Products
Microcontrollers
Our C8051F family of 8-bit mixed-signal microcoritess integrates intelligent data « Industrial automation and control
capture in the form of high-resolution data coneesta traditional MCU computing » Automotive sensors and controls

function, flash memory and a highly programmableci€ommunication interfaces in a * Medical instrumentation
single system on a chip. The combination of configle high-performance analog, up to < Electronic test and measurement

100 Million Instructions Per Second (MIPS), 805tecand in-system field equipment
programmability provides the user with design figlitiy, improved time-to-market, « Consumer electronics
superior system performance and greater end pratiffietentiation. These products are « Computer peripherals
designed for use in a large variety of end-marketduding the automotive, » White goods

communications, consumer, industrial, medical amatgr management marke

Precision Clock Integrated Circui

Our precision clock product family includes variqueducts ranging from general * Next-generation networking
purpose clock multiplier products up to high pemfance multi-port, redundant, multiple equipment

frequency range clock multipliers and regeneratOrg. Any-Rate Precision Clock » Telecommunications

product family offers the additional flexibility @fenerating any output frequency from * Wireless base stations

any input frequency with 0.3 picosecond jitter pemfance. Leveraging our DSPLL® » Test and measurement equipment
technology to offer frequency agile, extremely ljitter clock products, these devices * HDTV video

replace traditional solutions implemented usingemgive, bulky modules, numerous « High-speed data acquisition

crystal sources, complicated discrete circuitryuirggg numerous components, or hybrid <« SONET/SDH line cards
IC/discrete solutions that offer limited functioityl

Oscillators
Our families of oscillators (XOs) and voltage-cafizd oscillators (VCXOs) for » Networking equipment
applications up to 1.4 GHz include the industriy'st juad frequency XO and VCXO « Base stations
devices. Leveraging our patented DSPLL technolbgth families are easy to designin ¢ Test and measurement equipment
and provide superior reliability, manufacturabilétgd performance. « Storage area networks

« Video system:

Isolators
Our digital isolator product family leverages anadmative technology to enable up to f « Switch mode power supplies
channels of isolation in a single device, simplifyidesign and reducing system cost.  Ethernet/CAN networks
These products are still in the early stages dfocner adoption * Isolated analog data acquisiti
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Current Sensors

Our low-loss, high-accuracy alternating currentseeriamily measures up to 20 amps of « AC-DC switching power supplies

current for control and protection in power syste@sr current sensors integrate the * Isolated DC-DC supplies
functional equivalent of a current transformer giténto a tiny package, including the » Motor control
current transformer, blocking diode, burden resiatal output RC filter, thereby « Electronic ballasts for lighting

decreasing board space and reducing enclosure ealequirements. These products are
still in the early stages of customer adopt

Power over Etherne

Our Power over Ethernet (PoE) Power Source Equipareh Powered Device ICs offer * Wireless access points (WAP)

highly differentiated solutions with a reduced tddifl of materials (BOM) cost and « VoIP phones
improved performance and reliability. Our soluti@iso offer an integration level that + Radio frequency identification (RFID)
enables functionality not available with competstdutions. These devices are still in the  tag readers
early stages of customer adoption. * POS terminals
* Security systems
* Cameras
Mature Products

Silicon DAA for PC Modems

Our DAA provides the functionality of both a diremtcess arrangement and a codec in a « Desktop and notebook modems

single chipset. A direct access arrangement prewidiectrical isolation between a * Modem Riser Cards
wireline device, such as a modem, and the teleplioa¢o guard against power surges in « Mobile Daughter Cards
the telephone line, while the codec provides an#dedigital and digital-to-analog * Modem on motherboard

conversion. * Mini PCI cards



» Handheld organizers
 Set-top boxes
« Video conferencing systen

DSL Analog Front Eni
The DSL Analog Front End (AFE) is designed to pdevihe connectivity functions for  External modems
business or residential asymmetric digital subseriime (ADSL) connection at the user * Residential gateways
end in customer premises equipment. Such a coneatidresses the business and * Network interface devices
residential demand for high-speed connectivity. Digt. AFE supports several ADSL
communication standards enabling various uploaddamehload data rate

During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, saleswfmixed-signal products accounted for substhytil of our revenue.
Divestiture

In March 2007, we sold our Aero® transceiveroFONE™ single-chip phone and power amplifisvduct lines (the "Aero product
lines") to NXP B.V. and NXP Semiconductors Franée&sScollectively "NXP"). These products represeraddut one third of our quarterly
revenue at the time of the divestiture. We intanddlectively compete in wireless applications hade retained a substantial portion of our
core RF intellectual property.




Customers, Sales and Marketing

We market our products through our direté¢s force, a network of independent sales reptatbess and distributors. Direct and
distributor customers buy on an individual purchader basis, rather than pursuant to long-terraeagents.

We consider our customer to be the encboust purchasing either directly from a distributigontract manufacturer or us. An end
customer purchasing through a contract manufactypéeally instructs such contract manufactureoldain our products and incorporate such
products with other components for sale by suchrachmanufacturer to the end customer. Althougtaeteally sell the products to, and are
paid by, the distributors and contract manufactnee refer to such end customer as our customer.

One of our distributors, Edom Technologpresented 31% of our fiscal 2008 revenues. Digtils are not considered end customers
rather serve as a sales channel to our end custoMeother distributor accounted for 10% or mdreewenues for fiscal 2008.

During fiscal 2008, our ten largest endteosers accounted for 39% of our revenues. No siegtecustomer accounted for more than
of our revenues during this period. Our major comtes include 2Wire, Huawei, LG Electronics, MotardPanasonic, Philips, Sagem,
Samsung, Sony Ericsson and Thomson.

We maintain numerous sales offices in Néatierica, Europe and Asia. Revenue is attributeal geographic area based on the end
customer's shipped-to location. The percentageiofevenues to customers located outside of theedi8tates was 88% in fiscal 2008. For
further information regarding our revenues and Himgd assets by geographic area, see Not&é§ment Informationto the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our direct sales force includes region@saanagers in the field and area business mantgérrther support customer communicati
We also utilize independent sales representatindsisstributors to generate sales of our prodWfs have relationships with many
independent sales representatives and distributonsiwide whom we have selected based on their nstateding of the mixed-signal IC
marketplace and their ability to provide effectfiedd sales applications support for our products.

Our marketing efforts are targeted at hdémtified industry leaders and emerging marketigigants. Direct marketing activities are
supplemented by a focused marketing communicagéfost that seeks to raise awareness of our compadyproducts. Our public relations
efforts are focused on leading trade and busingskgations. Our external website is used to delogeporate information and product
information. We also pursue targeted advertisinkeiy trade publications and we have a cooperatiagketing program that allows our
distributors and representatives to promote oudyets to their local markets in conjunction witeithown advertising activities. Finally we
maintain a presence at strategic trade shows augtiry events. These activities, in combinatiorhwdirect sales activities, help drive demand
for our products.

Due to the complex and innovative naturewflCs, we employ experienced applications erggmerho work closely with customers to
support the design-win process, and can signifigamicelerate the customer's time required to baipgoduct to market. A design-win occurs
when a customer has designed our ICs into its mtoahehitecture. A considerable amount of effora¢sist the customer in incorporating our
ICs into its products is typically required priordny sale. In many cases, our innovative ICs recgignificantly different implementations tr
existing approaches and, therefore, successfubim@htations may require extensive communicatioh pdtential customers. The amount of
time required to achieve a design-win can vary sutiglly depending on a customer's developmeriecyehich can be relatively short (such
as three months) or very long (such as two yeasgd on a wide variety of customer factors. Notledign wins ultimately result in revenue.
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However, once a completed design architecture das lmplemented and produced in high volumes, ostomers are reluctant to significal
alter their designs due to this extensive desigmjwbcess. We believe this process, coupled withirtellectual property protection, promotes
relatively longer product life cycles for our ICsdahigh barriers to entry for competitive produetgen if such competing products are offered
at lower prices. Finally, our close collaboratioithaour customers provides us with knowledge ofwdgive product ideas or completely new
product line offerings that may not otherwise aitsether new product discussions.

Research and Development

Through our research and development sffareé apply our experienced analog and misigthal engineering talent and expertise to ci
new ICs that integrate functions typically perfodreefficiently by multiple discrete components.iFntegration generally results in lower
costs, smaller die sizes, lower power demands ahdreed price/performance characteristics. We attémreuse successful techniques for
integration in new applications where similar bésefan be realized. We believe that reliable artipe analog and mixed-signal ICs can only
be developed by teams of engineers that coordihateefforts under the direction of senior engisegho have significant analog experience
and are familiar with the intricacies of designthgse ICs for commercial volume production. Theeligyment of test methodologies is a
critical activity in releasing a new product fomemercial success. We believe that we have attractetk of the best engineers in our industry.

Research and development expenses wereZpififion, $89.3 million and $89.8 million in fisat 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Technology

Our product development process facilitétesdesign of highly-innovative, analog-intensinexed-signal ICs. Our engineers' deep
knowledge of existing and emerging standards anfdimeance requirements help us to assess the tedHaasibility of a particular IC. We
target areas where we can provide compelling produyzrovements. Once we have solved the primarjleriges, our field application
engineers continue to work closely with our custsheesign teams to maintain and develop an uradetstg of our customers' needs, allov
us to formulate derivative products and refinedifess.

In providing mixed-signal ICs for our custers, we believe our key competitive advantages are

. Analog design expertise in CMO

. Digital signal processing design expertise;

. Microcontroller and system on a chip design expertand
. Our broad understanding of systems technology ramdls.

To fully capitalize on these advantageshaee assembled a world-class development teamexibptional analog and mixed-signal
design expertise led by accomplished senior enggnee

Analog Design Expertise in CMOS

We believe that our most significant cooenpetency is world-class analog design capab#itiditionally, we strive to design
substantially all of our ICs in standard CMOS prxes. There are several modern process technofogiesnufacturing semiconductors
including CMOS, Bipolar, BICMOS, silicon germaniuand gallium arsenide. While it is significantly reatifficult to design analog ICs in
CMOS, CMOS provides multiple benefits versus emgstlternatives, including significantly reducedicaeduced technology risk and greater
worldwide foundry capacity. CMOS is the most comigarsed process technology for manufacturing dig@fa and as a result is most likely
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to be used for the manufacturing of ICs with fitiee geometries. These finer line geometries cablensmaller and faster ICs. By designing
our ICs in CMOS, we enable our products to berfiedit this trend towards finer line geometries, vwhadlows us to integrate more digital
functionality into our mixed-signal ICs.

Designing analog and mixed-signal ICs gm#icantly more complicated than designing stalwhe digital ICs. While advanced software
tools exist to help automate digital IC designyé¢hare far fewer tools for advanced analog and dasignal IC design. In many cases, our
analog circuit design efforts begin at the fundatalenansistor level. We believe that we have aaestrated ability to design the most diffic
analog and RF circuits using standard CMOS teclyieso For example, our ProSLIC product family imeggs subscriber line interface circuit
(SLIC), codec and battery generation functionalitp a single low-voltage CMOS IC.

Digital Signal Processing Design Expertise

We consider the partitioning of a circuitiactionality to be a proprietary and creativeigegechnique. Our digital signal processing
design expertise maximizes the price/performaneeatiteristics of both the analog and digital fumasi and allows our ICs to work in an
optimized manner to accomplish particular taskésally, we surround core analog circuitry withithfCMOS transistors, which allows our
ICs to perform the required analog functions witbreased digital capabilities. For example, ouatloast audio products use a proven digital
low-IF receiver and transmitter architecture tovdsl superior RF performance and interference tiglpcompared to traditional, analog-only
approaches. Digital signal processing is utilizedptimize sound quality under varying signal ctindis, enabling a better consumer
experience.

Microcontroller and System on a Chip Design Experse

We have expanded our system on a chip #gpéo include the talent and circuit integratioathodologies required to combine precision
analog, high-speed digital, flash memory and intesysprogrammability into a single, monolithic CM@tegrated circuit. Our microcontroller
products are designed to capture an external as@ogl, convert it to a digital signal, computgittil functions on the stream of data and then
communicate the results through a standard digitatface. The ability to develop standard prodwdth the broadest possible customer
application base while being cost efficient witke #ilicon area of the monolithic CMOS integratedtwit requires a keen sense of customer
value and engineering capabilities. Additionallymanage the wide variety of signals on a monaligi¢ce of silicon including electrical noi:
harmonics and other electronic distortions requarésndamental knowledge of device physics andraotated design expertise.

Understanding of Systems Technology and Trends

Our focused expertise in mixed-signal I€thie result of the breadth of engineering talemtiave assembled with experience working in
analog-intensive CMOS design for a wide varietapplications. This expertise, which we consideomgetitive advantage, is the foundation
of our in-depth understanding of the technology tredds that impact electronic systems and markiis expertise includes:

. Isolation, which is critical for existing and emarg telecom networks

. Frequency synthesis, which is core technology fioeless and clocking applications;

. Integration, which enables third-party softwarehnour ICs to create combined solutions; and

. Sigrll_al p_rocessing and precision analog, which fatrasheart of consumer, industrial, medical andmotive electronic
applications.




Our understanding of the role of analogtdlgnterfaces within electronic systems, standardolution, and end market drivers enables us
to identify product development opportunities aagitalize on market trends.

Manufacturing

As a fabless IC manufacturer, we condualiéSign and development in our facilities and etegtally transfer our proprietary IC designs
to third-party semiconductor fabricators who pracgiticon wafers to produce the ICs that we dediym. IC designs typically use industry-
standard CMOS manufacturing process technologghasae a level of performance normally associatéd more expensive special-purpose
IC fabrication technology. We believe the use of @Mtechnology facilitates the rapid production of tCs within a lower cost framework.
Our IC production employs submicron process gedaetrhich are readily available from leading founduppliers worldwide, thus increas
the likelihood that manufacturing capacity will &eailable throughout our products' life cycles. Berently partner principally with Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. (TSMC) to manufeetour semiconductor wafers. We believe that oblefss manufacturing model
significantly reduces our capital requirements athalvs us to focus our resources on design, dewsdop and marketing of our ICs.

Once the silicon wafers have been produttey, are shipped directly to our third-party asslgnsubcontractors. The assembled ICs are
then moved to the final testing stage. This openatian be performed by the same contractor thatrdded the IC, other third-party test
subcontractors or within our internal facilitiesqurto shipping to our customers. During fiscal 8)fhore than 85% of our units shipped were
tested by offshore third-party test subcontractdfe.expect that our utilization of offshore thirdrty test subcontractors will remain at about
this level during fiscal 2009.

Backlog

As of January 3, 2009, our backlog was axprately $45.8 million, compared to approximat8®0.2 million as of December 29, 2007.
We include in backlog accepted product purchasersriiom customers and worldwide distributor stogkbrders. We only include orders w
an expected shipping date from us within six morfttsduct orders in our backlog are subject to gharin delivery schedules or cancellation
at the option of the purchaser typically withoubhaky. Our backlog may fluctuate significantly dagdeng upon customer order patterns which
may, in turn, vary considerably based on rapidlgrgiing business circumstances. Backlog from digimits is not recognized as revenue until
the products are sold by the distributors. Addiigyn our arrangements with distributors typicaiiyvide for price protection and stock rotal
activities. Accordingly, we do not believe that duacklog at any time is necessarily representatiactual sales for any succeeding period.

Competition

The markets for semiconductors generatig, far analog and mixed-signal ICs in particulae mtensely competitive. We anticipate that
the market for our products will continually evolaad will be subject to rapid technological chanye. believe the principal competitive
factors in our industry are:

* Product size * Power requiremen

» Level of integration e Customer suppor

* Product capabilities * Reputation

« Reliability; < Ability to rapidly introduce new products to markahd
* Price; * Intellectual property

» Performance

We believe that we are competitive withpexs to these factors, particularly because outty@isally are smaller in size, are highly
integrated, achieve high performance specificatairiewer

10




price points than competitive products and are rfetured in standard CMOS which generally enabge®supply them on a relatively rapid
basis to customers to meet their product introdacsichedules. However, disadvantages we face iadudrelatively short operating history
certain of our markets and the need for custontersdesign their products and modify their softwaremplement our ICs in their products.

As we target and supply products to numeroarkets and applications, we face competitiomfeorelatively large number of competit
We compete with Analog Devices, Atmel, Broadcomn&ant, Cypress, Epson, Freescale, Infineon Teopied, LS|, Maxim Integrated
Products, Microchip, NXP Semiconductors, Renes@bli&oelectronics, Texas Instruments, Vectron In&ional, Zarlink Semiconductor a
others. We expect to face competition in the fufcwen our current competitors, other manufactuesrs designers of semiconductors, and
innovative startdp semiconductor design companies. Our competitans also offer bundled chipset kit arrangementsraffy a more comple
product, which may negatively impact our compegitposition despite the technical merits or advasgagj our products. In addition, our
customers could develop products or technologiesnally that would replace their need for our protd and would become a source of
competition. As the markets for electronic produgtswv, we also may face competition from traditioglactronic device companies. These
companies may enter the mixeignal semiconductor market by introducing theingwoducts, including components within their protsuha
would eliminate the need for our ICs, or by entgiiimo strategic relationships with or acquiringet existing IC providers.

Many of our competitors and potential cotitpes have longer operating histories, greater@mamcognition, access to larger customer
bases, complementary product offerings, and siganitly greater financial, sales and marketing, nfecturing, distribution, technical and ott
resources than us. Current and potential competitave established or may establish financial &nadegic relationships between themselves
or with our existing or potential customers, remmllor other third parties. Accordingly, it is pdds that new competitors or alliances among
competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire sicguift market share.

Intellectual Property

Our future success depends in part upompraprietary technology. We seek to protect ountebogy through a combination of patents,
copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks and confaléptprocedures. As of January 3, 2009, we hgar@aimately 870 issued or pending United
States patents in the IC field. We also frequetfiidyfor patent protection in a variety of interitatal jurisdictions with respect to the propriet
technology covered by our U.S. patents and pagguitcations. There can be no assurance that patélhsver be issued with respect to these
applications. Furthermore, it is possible that patents held by us may be invalidated, circumvertdidilenged or licensed to others. In
addition, there can be no assurance that suchtpat@hprovide us with competitive advantages degquately safeguard our proprietary rights.
While we continue to file new patent applicationshwespect to our recent developments, existirtgra are granted for prescribed time
periods and will expire at various times in theufet

We claim copyright protection for proprigtalocumentation for our products. We have filedrigistration, or are in the process of filing
for registration, the visual images of certain i@t the U.S. Copyright Office. We have registetiee "Silicon Labs" logo and a variety of
other product and product family names as tradesniarthe United States and selected foreign juigitis. All other trademarks, service
marks or trade names appearing in this reportrer@roperty of their respective owners. We alsenaptt to protect our trade secrets and other
proprietary information through agreements with customers, suppliers, employees and consultamisth@ough other customary security
measures. We intend to protect our rights vigosguslit there can be no assurance that our effdlitb@successful. In addition, the laws of
other countries in which our products are sold may
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not protect our products and intellectual propeigiits to the same extent as the laws of the UrStedes.

While our ability to effectively competepbnds in large part on our ability to protect auellectual property, we believe that our
technical expertise and ability to introduce newdurcts in a timely manner will be an important feéh maintaining our competitive position.

Many participants in the semiconductor aefettronics industries have a significant numbevaiénts and have frequently demonstrated a
readiness to commence litigation based on allegaid patent and other intellectual property irggment. From time to time, third parties r
assert infringement claims against us. We may retgil in any such litigation or may not be ablditense any valid and infringed patents
from third parties on commercially reasonable terifrat all. Litigation, regardless of the outconieelikely to result in substantial cost and
diversion of our resources, including our managdfed¢ime. Any such litigation could materially adsely affect us. For further information
regarding patent litigation, please $&at |, Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Our licenses include industry standardngss with our vendors, such as wafer fabricatiohltoraries, third party core libraries,
computer-aided design applications and busines&aid applications.

Employees

As of January 3, 2009, we employed 727 [gedpur success depends on the continued servigerdey technical and senior manager
personnel and on our ability to continue to attrestiain and motivate highly skilled analog and edibsignal engineers. The competition for
such personnel is intense. We have never had astoplpage and none of our U.S. employees are episgkby a labor organization. We
consider our employee relations to be good.

Environmental Regulation

Federal, state and local regulations imp@s®us environmental controls on the storage, diseharge and disposal of certain chemicals
and gases used in the semiconductor industry. @upkance with these laws and regulations has adtehmaterial impact on our financial
position or results of operations.

Available Information

Our website addresswsvw.silabs.com Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K
and amendments to those reports filed or furnigheduant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secwriigchange Act of 1934 are available
through the investor relations page of our intemebsite free of charge as soon as reasonablyigable after we electronically file such
material with, or furnish it to, the Securities aixchange Commission (SEC). Our website and tharimdtion contained therein or connected
thereto are not intended to be incorporated inAmnual Report on Form 10-K.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to our Business

We may not be able to maintain our historical growh and may experience significant period-to-periodléictuations in our revenues and
operating results, which may result in volatility in our stock price

Although we have generally experienced mereegrowth in our history, we may not be able tstain this growth. We may also experience
significant period-to-period fluctuations in ourvezues and operating results in the future duentonaber of factors, and any such variations
may cause our stock price to fluctuate. In someréuperiod our revenues or operating results mayeklmwv the expectations of public market
analysts or investors. If this occurs, our stodkepmay drop, perhaps significantly.

A number of factors, in addition to thosied in other risk factors applicable to our busienay contribute to fluctuations in our rever
and operating results, including:

. The timing and volume of orders received from austomers;
. The timeliness of our new product introductions #rerate at which our new products may cannibaizeolder products;
. The rate of acceptance of our products by our austs, including the acceptance of new products g develop fol

integration in the products manufactured by sudtauers, which we refer to as "design wins";

. The time lag and realization rate between "desigrstand production orders;

. The demand for, and life cycles of, the product®iporating our I1Cs

. The rate of adoption of mix-signal ICs in the markets we targ

. Deferrals or reductions of customer orders in guaitton of new products or product enhancements fus or our competitors
other providers of ICs;

. Changes in product mi;

. The average selling prices for our products coutghuddenly due to competitive offerings or coritpwet predatory pricing

especially with respect to our mobile handset andem products;

. The average selling prices for our products gehedsicline over time

. Changes in market standar

. Impairment charges related to inventory, equipnegmther long-lived assets;

. The software used in our products, including sofenarovided by third-parties, may not meet the sesfdur customers;

. Significant legal costs to defend our intellectoidperty rights or respond to claims against ud;

. The rate at which new markets emerge for produetsng currently developing or for which our deségpertise can be utilize

to develop products for these new markets.

The markets for mobile handsets, consuteetrenics, satellite sebp boxes and VolP applications are characterizacpid fluctuation:
in demand and seasonality that result in correspgritlctuations in the demand for our productd #ra incorporated in such devices.
Additionally, the rate of technology acceptanceoly customers results in fluctuating demand forroducts as customers are reluctant to
incorporate a new IC into their products until theev IC has
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achieved market acceptance. Once a new IC achieadeet acceptance, demand for the new IC can quaxidelerate to a point and then level
off such that rapid historical growth in sales gfraduct should not be viewed as indicative of cargd future growth. In addition, demand can
quickly decline for a product when a new IC prodsdhtroduced and receives market acceptance t®the various factors mentioned above,
the results of any prior quarterly or annual pesisdould not be relied upon as an indication offoture operating performance.

If we are unable to develop or acquire new and enlmeed products that achieve market acceptance in @anely manner, our operating
results and competitive position could be harmed

Our future success will depend on our ghib reduce our dependence on a few products bgldging or acquiring new ICs and product
enhancements that achieve market acceptancernreyytand cost-effective manner. The developmemiged-signal ICs is highly complex,
and we have at times experienced delays in comglétie development and introduction of new prodaat$ product enhancements. Succe
product development and market acceptance of mgugts depend on a number of factors, including:

. Changing requirements of custome

. Accurate prediction of market and technical requiats;

. Timely completion and introduction of new designs;

. Timely qualification and certification of our ICerfuse in our customers' produc

. Commercial acceptance and volume production opthducts into which our ICs will be incorporated;
. Availability of foundry, assembly and test capagity

. Achievement of high manufacturing yielc

. Quality, price, performance, power use and sizeuofproducts

. Availability, quality, price and performance of cpating products and technologies;

. Our customer service, application support cap@&sliaind responsiveness;

. Successful development of our relationships witisteng and potential customel

. Changes in technology, industry standards o-user preferences; al

. Cooperation of third-party software providers amd semiconductor vendors to support our chips withsystem.

We cannot provide any assurance that pteduigich we recently have developed or may devildpe future will achieve market
acceptance. We have introduced to market or adevelopment of many ICs. If our ICs fail to achiemarket acceptance, or if we fail to
develop new products on a timely basis that achieaeket acceptance, our growth prospects, operegsigts and competitive position could
be adversely affected.

We are subject to credit risks related to our acconts receivable

We do not generally obtain letters of ctediother security for payment from customerstritigtors or contract manufacturers.
Accordingly, we are not protected against accotatsivable default or bankruptcy by these entifiéds current economic situation could
increase the likelihood of such defaults and bapticias. Our ten largest customers or distributepsesent a substantial majority of our
accounts receivable. If any such customer or distoir, or a material portion of our
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smaller customers or distributors, were to becamelvent or otherwise not satisfy their obligatidosis, we could be materially harmed.

Our research and development efforts are focused amlimited number of new technologies and productand any delay in the
development, or abandonment, of these technologies products by industry participants, or their fail ure to achieve market acceptance,
could compromise our competitive position

Our ICs are used as components in electgwices in various markets. As a result, we ltiexeted and expect to continue to devote a
large amount of resources to develop products basesw and emerging technologies and standartdsvthkhe commercially introduced in
the future. Research and development expensecid 2008 was $101.2 million, or 24.3% of revendesumber of large companies are
actively involved in the development of these neshhologies and standards. Should any of theseagiegpdelay or abandon their efforts to
develop commercially available products based anteehnologies and standards, our research andogewent efforts with respect to these
technologies and standards likely would have noegpable value. In addition, if we do not corredlyticipate new technologies and stande
or if the products that we develop based on thesetachnologies and standards fail to achieve maideeptance, our competitors may be
better able to address market demand than we wbBufthermore, if markets for these new technologies standards develop later than we
anticipate, or do not develop at all, demand farmroducts that are currently in development waultfer, resulting in lower sales of these
products than we currently anticipate.

We depend on a limited number of customers for a fistantial portion of our revenues, and the loss ofyr a significant reduction in
orders from, any key customer could significantly educe our revenues

The loss of any of our key customers, sigaificant reduction in sales to any one of themuld significantly reduce our revenues and
adversely affect our business. During fiscal 2@Q8,ten largest customers accounted for 39% ofexgnues. Some of the markets for our
products are dominated by a small number of patkatistomers. Therefore, our operating resulthénforeseeable future will continue to
depend on our ability to sell to these dominantamusgrs, as well as the ability of these customesset! products that incorporate our IC
products. In the future, these customers may dewtléo purchase our ICs at all, purchase fewerth@a they did in the past or alter their
purchasing patterns, particularly because:

. We do not have material lo-term purchase contracts with our custom

. Substantially all of our sales to date have beedenmm a purchase order basis, which permits odomess to cancel, change or
delay product purchase commitments with little omotice to us and without penalty;

. Some of our customers may have efforts underwagtively diversify their vendor base which coulduee purchases of o
ICs; and

. Some of our customers have developed or acquikatlpts that compete directly with products thesstarmers purchase fro

us, which could affect our customers' purchasingsiens in the future.

While we have been a significant supplielGs used in many of our customers' products,coistomers regularly evaluate alternative
sources of supply in order to diversify their sug@pbase, which increases their negotiating leveraigh us and protects their ability to secure
these components. We believe that any expansionrofustomers' supplier bases could have an adeéesg on the prices we are able to
charge and volume of product that we are ableltaseur customers, which would negatively affeat revenues and operating results.
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We have increased our international activities sigificantly and plan to continue such efforts, whichsubjects us to additional busines
risks including increased logistical and financiacomplexity, political instability and currency fluctuations

We have established additional internatignasidiaries and have opened additional offindaternational markets to expand our
international activities in Europe and Asia. Thashncluded the establishment of a headquartesiapore for non-U.S. operations. The
percentage of our revenues derived from custoroeeged outside of the United States was 88% imlf308. We may not be able to maintain
or increase international market demand for oudpets. Our international operations are subjeettomber of risks, including:

. Increased complexity and costs of managing internat operations and related tax obligations, idizlg our headquarters f
non-U.S. operations in Singapore;

. Protectionist laws and business practices thatrfibeal competition in some countrie
. Difficulties related to the protection of our inttual property rights in some countri
. Multiple, conflicting and changing tax and othewaand regulations that may impact both our intéonal and domestic tax a

other liabilities and result in increased complgxihd costs;

. Longer sales cycle!

. Greater difficulty in accounts receivable colleatiand longer collection perioc

. High levels of distributor inventory subject to geiprotection and rights of return to us;

. Political and economic instabilit

. Greater difficulty in hiring and retaining qualifi¢echnical sales and applications engineers aminéstrative personnel; ar

. The need to have business and operations systamsatih meet the needs of our international busiaed©perating structure.

To date, all of our sales to internatioti@tomers and purchases of components from inten@hsuppliers have been denominated in
dollars. As a result, an increase in the valudefu.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies comake our products more expensive for our
international customers to purchase, thus rendenimgproducts less competitive.

Failure to manage our distribution channel relatiorships could impede our future growth

The future growth of our business will degén large part on our ability to manage our fetaghips with current and future distributors
and sales representatives, develop additional @tafor the distribution and sale of our producetd enanage these relationships. As we
execute our indirect sales strategy, we must matiegpotential conflicts that may arise with ouredt sales efforts. For example, conflicts
with a distributor may arise when a customer beginghasing directly from us rather than throughdrstributor. The inability to successfully
execute or manage a multi-channel sales stratagg aopede our future growth. In addition, relasbips with our distributors often involve
the use of price protection and inventory retughts. This often requires a significant amountadés management's time and system resource
to manage properly.

We are subject to increased inventory risks and c¢s because we build our products based on forecagisovided by customers before
receiving purchase orders for the products

In order to ensure availability of our puats for some of our largest customers, we startritanufacturing of our products in advance of
receiving purchase orders based on forecasts iy these customers. However, these forecaststdepresent binding purchase
commitments and we do
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not recognize sales for these products until threyshipped to the customer. As a result, we inougntory and manufacturing costs in advance
of anticipated sales. Because demand for our ptednay not materialize, manufacturing based orces®s subjects us to increased risks of
high inventory carrying costs, increased obsolese@md increased operating costs. These inverigky are exacerbated when our customers
purchase indirectly through contract manufactuoerdsold component inventory levels greater thair ttensumption rate because this causes
us to have less visibility regarding the accumuldéxels of inventory for such customers. A resigjtivrite-off of unusable or excess
inventories would adversely affect our operatinguies.

Our products are complex and may contain errors whih could lead to product liability, an increase inour costs and/or a reduction in
our revenues

Our products are complex and may contaiorgy particularly when first introduced or as nesvsions are released. Our new products are
increasingly being designed in more complex praeesghich further increases the risk of errors. Alg primarily on our in-house testing
personnel to design test operations and procedoistect any errors prior to delivery of our protuto our customers. Because our products
are manufactured by third parties, should probleotsir in the operation or performance of our ICs,may experience delays in meeting key
introduction dates or scheduled delivery datesutocostomers. These errors also could cause usto significant re-engineering costs, divert
the attention of our engineering personnel fromproduct development efforts and cause significastomer relations and business repute
problems. Any defects could require product repiaeet or recall or we could be obligated to acceptipct returns. Any of the foregoing
could impose substantial costs and harm our busines

Product liability claims may be assertethwespect to our products. Our products are tylgisald at prices that are significantly lower
than the cost of the end-products into which theyiacorporated. A defect or failure in our prodoetild cause failure in our customer's end-
product, so we could face claims for damages tteatisproportionately higher than the revenuesganéits we receive from the products
involved. Furthermore, product liability risks grarticularly significant with respect to medicabaautomotive applications because of the risk
of serious harm to users of these products. Thamée no assurance that any insurance we mainthsuificiently protect us from any such
claims.

Significant litigation over intellectual property in our industry may cause us to become involved irostly and lengthy litigation which
could seriously harm our business

In recent years, there has been signifiliigation in the United States involving pateatsd other intellectual property rights. From time
to time, we receive letters from various industaytigipants alleging infringement of patents, tradeks or misappropriation of trade secrets or
from customers requesting indemnification for claibnought against them by third parties. The exgty nature of these inquiries has
become relatively common in the semiconductor itrgu$Ve respond when we deem appropriate and dsettlisy legal counsel. We have
been involved in litigation to protect our intelteal property rights in the past and may becomelired in such litigation again in the future.
the future, we may become involved in additionggdition to defend allegations of infringement atet by others, both directly and indirectly
as a result of certain industry-standard indenmitie may offer to our customers. Legal proceedoagsd subject us to significant liability for
damages or invalidate our proprietary rights. Lggateedings initiated by us to protect our intgli@l property rights could also result in
counterclaims or countersuits against us. Anydiiign, regardless of its outcome, would likely imeet-consuming and expensive to resolve and
would divert our management's time and attentioastvntellectual property litigation also could derus to take specific actions, including:

. Cease selling products that use the challengetieictigal property
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. Obtain from the owner of the infringed intellectpabperty a right to a license to sell or use #dewant technology, whic
license may not be available on reasonable terns, all;

. Redesign those products that use infringing int&li@l property; or

. Pursue legal remedies with third parties to enferweindemnification rights, which may not adeqlafgotect our interests.
Our customers require our products to undergo a legthy and expensive qualification process without anassurance of product sales

Prior to purchasing our products, our coers require that our products undergo an extemgiaéfication process, which involves test
of the products in the customer's system as welbasous reliability testing. This qualificatiomqgress may continue for six months or longer.
However, qualification of a product by a customeesinot ensure any sales of the product to th&bmes. Even after successful qualification
and sales of a product to a customer, a subsecguésion to the IC or software, changes in the l@anufacturing process or the selection of a
new supplier by us may require a new qualificapoocess, which may result in delays and in us hgléixcess or obsolete inventory. After our
products are qualified, it can take an additiomahsonths or more before the customer commencaswelproduction of components or
devices that incorporate our products. Despitectiuegertainties, we devote substantial resourcekiding design, engineering, sales,
marketing and management efforts, toward qualifogproducts with customers in anticipation oesalf we are unsuccessful or delayed in
qualifying any of our products with a customer,stailure or delay would preclude or delay saleswth product to the customer, which may
impede our growth and cause our business to suffer.

We rely on third parties to manufacture, assemble ad test our products and the failure to successfulimanage our relationships with
our manufacturers and subcontractors would negativly impact our ability to sell our products

We do not have our own wafer fab manufaatufacilities. Therefore, we rely principally ome third-party vendor, Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. (TSMC), to manufeethe ICs we design. We also currently rely oraAshird-party assembly
subcontractors, principally Advanced SemiconduEtogineering (ASE), to assemble and package thesilthips provided by the wafers for
use in final products. Additionally, we rely on sieeoffshore subcontractors for a substantial poxifcthe testing requirements of our products
prior to shipping. We expect utilization of thir@uy subcontractors to continue in the future.

The cyclical nature of the semiconductaluistry drives wide fluctuations in available capgeit third-party vendors. On occasion, we
have been unable to adequately respond to unexpecteases in customer demand due to capacityragms and, therefore, were unable to
benefit from this incremental demand. We may bélento obtain adequate foundry, assembly or tgsdaity from our third-party
subcontractors to meet our customers' deliveryirements even if we adequately forecast customerade.

There are significant risks associated wetiiing on these third-party foundries and sub@otors, including:

. Failure by us, our customers or their end custorregualify a selected supplie
. Potential insolvency of the third-party subcontoast

. Reduced control over delivery schedules and quality

. Limited warranties on wafers or products supplizdg;
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. Potential increases in prices or payments in advéorccapacity

. Increased need for internatio-based supply, logistics and financial managen
. Their inability to supply or support new or chargipackaging technologies; and
. Low test yields.

We typically do not have long-term suppbntracts with our third-party vendors which oblig#te vendor to perform services and supply
products to us for a specific period, in specifi@ntities, and at specific prices. Our third-pdoiyndry, assembly and test subcontractors
typically do not guarantee that adequate capaditype available to us within the time requiredni@et demand for our products. In the event
that these vendors fail to meet our demand for exr@atreason, we expect that it would take up tenbaths to transition performance of these
services to new providers. Such a transition mag e¢quire qualification of the new providers by oustomers or their end customers.

Since our inception, most of the silicorfeva for the products that we have shipped wereufeatured either by TSMC or its affiliates.
Our customers typically complete their own quadifion process. If we fail to properly balance costo demand across the existing
semiconductor fabrication facilities that we utlliar are required by our foundry partners to ineeear otherwise change the number of fab
lines that we utilize for our production, we migttt be able to fulfill demand for our products andy need to divert our engineering resources
away from new product development initiatives tpmart the fab line transition, which would adveysaffect our operating results.

Our products incorporate technology licensed fromhird parties

We incorporate technology (including softe)dicensed from third parties in our products. ¥éeld be subjected to claims of
infringement regardless of our lack of involvementhe development of the licensed technology. édih a third party licensor is typically
obligated to indemnify us if the licensed technglagfringes on another party's intellectual propeights, such indemnification is typically
limited in amount and may be worthless if the Ie@nbecomes insolvent. S8gnificant litigation over intellectual property iour industry
may cause us to become involved in costly andhgrgigation which could seriously harm our busisd-urthermore, any failure of third
party technology to perform properly would adveysafect sales of our products incorporating swathhology.

Our inability to manage growth could materially and adversely affect our business

Our past growth has placed, and any fujuogth of our operations will continue to placesignificant strain on our management
personnel, systems and resources. We anticipatevéhaill need to implement a variety of new andtguled sales, operational and financial
enterprise-wide systems, information technologyaistiructure, procedures and controls, includingrifgrovement of our accounting and other
internal management systems to manage this gravathmreintain compliance with regulatory guidelinies)uding Sarbanes-Oxley Act
requirements. To the extent our business growsind@&imal management systems and processes wiltodeprove to ensure that we remain
in compliance. We also expect that we will needdntinue to expand, train, manage and motivatenaukforce. All of these endeavors will
require substantial management effort, and we igatie that we will require additional managemenspenel and internal processes to manage
these efforts and to plan for the succession figm to time of certain persons who have been keyagament and technical personnel. If we
are unable to effectively manage our expandingajloperations, including our international headtprarin Singapore, our business could be
materially and adversely affected.

We are subject to risks relating to product concerrrgation

We derive a substantial portion of our reves from a limited number of products, and we ekfleese products to continue to account for
a large percentage of our revenues in the near term
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Continued market acceptance of these productsergfore, critical to our future success. In additisubstantially all of our products that we
have sold include technology related to one or nobiur issued U.S. patents. If these patentsaned to be invalid or unenforceable, our
competitors could introduce competitive products ttould reduce both the volume and price perafrour products. Our business, operating
results, financial condition and cash flows coulidrefore be adversely affected by:

. A decline in demand for any of our more significandducts, including our modem products, FM tureerBroSLIC;
. Failure of our products to achieve continued maaceeptance;

. An improved version of our products being offergdalbocompetitor

. New technological standards or changes to existagdards that we are unable to address with @aupts;

. A failure to release new products or enhanced @essof our existing products on a timely basis; and

. The failure of our new products to achieve markeeatance

We depend on our key personnel to manage our busise effectively in a rapidly changing market, and ifve are unable to retain our
current personnel and hire additional personnel, ouability to develop and successfully market our poducts could be harmed

We believe our future success will depanthige part upon our ability to attract and retaghly skilled managerial, engineering, sales
and marketing personnel. We believe that our fusuecess will be dependent on retaining the ses\o€eur key personnel, developing their
successors and certain internal processes to re@dmaeliance on specific individuals, and on prbpenanaging the transition of key roles
when they occur. There is currently a shortageualified personnel with significant experiencelie tesign, development, manufacturing,
marketing and sales of analog and mixed-signal llCparticular, there is a shortage of engineers afe familiar with the intricacies of the
design and manufacturability of analog elementd,@mpetition for such personnel is intense. Oyrtkehnical personnel represent a
significant asset and serve as the primary sownceur technological and product innovations. Weymet be successful in attracting and
retaining sufficient numbers of technical persortoedupport our anticipated growth. The loss of ahgur key employees or the inability to
attract or retain qualified personnel both in thated States and internationally, including engisgsales, applications and marketing
personnel, could delay the development and intrboiuof, and negatively impact our ability to selyr products.

Any acquisitions we make could disrupt our businesand harm our financial condition

As part of our growth and product diversition strategy, we continue to evaluate opporiesib acquire other businesses, intellectual
property or technologies that would complementaurent offerings, expand the breadth of our marketenhance our technical capabilities.
The acquisitions that we have made and may matteeifuture, including our acquisition of Integratidssociates, entail a number of risks 1
could materially and adversely affect our busiress$ operating results, including:

. Problems integrating the acquired operations, teldyies or products with our existing business aratlucts;
. Diversion of management's time and attention framamre busines:
. Need for financial resources above our plannedsiment levels;
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. Difficulties in retaining business relationshipgiwsuppliers and customers of the acquired comg

. Risks associated with entering markets in whicHag& prior experience

. Risks associated with the transfer of licensesit@liectual property;

. Tax issues associated with acquisitions;

. Acquisitior-related disputes, including disputes over -outs and escrow:
. Potential loss of key employees of the acquiredpamy; anc

. Potential impairment of related goodwill and intdolg assets.

Future acquisitions also could cause usdor debt or contingent liabilities or cause usstue equity securities that could negatively
impact the ownership percentages of existing slwéddehs.

Any dispositions we make could harm our financial andition

In connection with our sale of the Aerogurot lines, we incurred various risks. This dispiosiand any disposition that we may make in
the future entail a number of risks that could mally and adversely affect our business and opegaesults, including:

. Diversion of management's time and attention framamre business;

. Difficulties separating the divested business;

. Risks to relations with customers who previouslycpased products from our disposed product li

. Reduced leverage with suppliers due to reducedegate volume;

. Risks related to employee relations;

. Risks associated with the transfer and licensingteflectual property

. Security risks and other liabilities related to thansition services provided in connection with tlisposition
. Tax issues associated with dispositions; and

. Disposition-related disputes, including disputesrasarn-outs and escrows.

Our stock price may be volatile

The market price of our common stock hanbelatile in the past and may be volatile infitere. The market price of our common
stock may be significantly affected by the follogifactors:

. Actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;

. Changes in financial estimates by securities atsatysour failure to perform in line with such esétes;

. Changes in market valuations of other technologymanies, particularly semiconductor compan

. Announcements by us or our competitors of signifidechnical innovations, acquisitions, strategicperships, joint venture

or capital commitments;
. Introduction of technologies or product enhancemémit reduce the need for our produ

. The loss of, or decrease in sales to, one or meyekstomers
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. A large sale of stock by a significant sharehol

. Dilution from the issuance of our stock in conneatwith acquisitions
. The addition or removal of our stock to or fromta@c& index fund;

. Departures of key personnel; and

. The required expensing of stock optio

The stock market has experienced extrertaility that often has been unrelated to the prenimnce of particular companies. These mg
fluctuations may cause our stock price to fall rdgss of our performance.

Most of our current manufacturers, assemblers, tesservice providers, distributors and customers areoncentrated in the same
geographic region, which increases the risk that aatural disaster, epidemic, labor strike, war or pditical unrest could disrupt our
operations or sales

Most of TSMC's foundries and several of assembly and test subcontractors' sites are bbaafEaiwan and our other assembly and test
subcontractors are located in the Pacific Rim negin addition, many of our customers are locatethé Pacific Rim region. The risk of
earthquakes in Taiwan and the Pacific Rim regiaigaificant due to the proximity of major earthgadault lines in the area. We are not
currently covered by insurance against businesamtion caused by earthquakes as such insuramag @irrently available on terms that we
believe are commercially reasonable. Earthquakes fiooding, lack of water or other natural digas, an epidemic, political unrest, war, la
strikes or work stoppages in countries where oomig@nductor manufacturers, assemblers and tesbatiactors are located, likely would
result in the disruption of our foundry, assembiyast capacity. There can be no assurance tlahate capacity could be obtained on
favorable terms, if at all.

A natural disaster, epidemic, labor strikar or political unrest where our customers' fiied are located would likely reduce our sales to
such customers. North Korea's geopolitical manéngsthave created unrest. Such unrest could ceeatgomic uncertainty or instability,
could escalate to war or otherwise adversely aBecith Korea and our South Korean customers antteegur sales to such customers, which
would materially and adversely affect our operatiegults. In addition, a significant portion of tagsembly and testing of our products occurs
in South Korea. Any disruption resulting from thesents could also cause significant delays inmshigts of our products until we are able to
shift our manufacturing, assembling or testing fritva affected subcontractor to another third-peaetydor.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual propety, which would negatively affect our ability to canpete

Our products rely on our proprietary tedbgg, and we expect that future technological adearmade by us will be critical to sustain
market acceptance of our products. Therefore, Weugethat the protection of our intellectual prageights is and will continue to be
important to the success of our business. We melg combination of patent, copyright, trademark tade secret laws and restrictions on
disclosure to protect our intellectual propertyhtgy We also enter into confidentiality or licermggeements with our employees, consultants,
intellectual property providers and business pastrend control access to and distribution of mguinentation and other proprietary
information. Despite these efforts, unauthorizedigs may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain aselaur proprietary technology. Monitoring
unauthorized use of our technology is difficultdame cannot be certain that the steps we have taltlieprevent unauthorized use of our
technology, particularly in foreign countries whéne laws may not protect our proprietary rightsudly as in the United States. We cannot be
certain that patents will be issued as a resuiofpending applications
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nor can we be certain that any issued patents wwokect or benefit us or give us adequate pratedtiom competing products. For example,
issued patents may be circumvented or challengédiedared invalid or unenforceable. We also cabeatertain that others will not develop
effective competing technologies on their own.

The semiconductor manufacturing process is highlyamplex and, from time to time, manufacturing yieldsmay fall below our
expectations, which could result in our inability b satisfy demand for our products in a timely manneand may decrease our gross
margins due to higher unit costs

The manufacturing of our products is a higtomplex and technologically demanding procedthdugh we work closely with our
foundries and assemblers to minimize the likelihobdeduced manufacturing yields, we have from titméme experienced lower than
anticipated manufacturing yields. Changes in mastufang processes or the inadvertent use of defecti contaminated materials could result
in lower than anticipated manufacturing yields nacceptable performance deficiencies, which camikl our gross profits. If our foundries
fail to deliver fabricated silicon wafers of satisfory quality in a timely manner, we will be unald meet our customers' demand for our
products in a timely manner, which would adversdfgct our operating results and damage our custoaheionships.

We depend on our customers to support our productsand some of our customers offer competing products

Our products are currently used by ouramstrs to produce modems, telephony equipment, mbhihdsets, networking equipment and a
broad range of other devices. We rely on our custsrto provide hardware, software, intellectuaperty indemnification and other technical
support for the products supplied by our custonlémsur customers do not provide the required figmlity or if our customers do not provide
satisfactory support for their products, the demfandhese devices that incorporate our productg di@inish or we may otherwise be
materially adversely affected. Any reduction in tremand for these devices would significantly redowgr revenues.

In certain products, some of our custonodfier their own competitive products. These custaameay find it advantageous to support their
own offerings in the marketplace in lieu of promgtiour products.

We could seek to raise additional capital in the fiure through the issuance of equity or debt securigs, but additional capital may not b¢
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all

We believe that our existing cash, cashvedents and investments will be sufficient to meet working capital needs, capital
expenditures, investment requirements and commirfenat least the next 12 months. However, jitdssible that we may need to raise
additional funds to finance our activities or toiftiate acquisitions of other businesses, produntellectual property or technologies. We
believe we could raise these funds, if neededeliing equity or debt securities to the public @stlected investors. In addition, even though
we may not need additional funds, we may still elecell additional equity or debt securities btain credit facilities for other reasons.
However, we may not be able to obtain additionatiBion favorable terms, or at all. If we decideaigse additional funds by issuing equity or
convertible debt securities, the ownership peragrgaf existing shareholders would be reduced.

We are a relatively small company with limited resarces compared to some of our current and potentiaiompetitors and we may not
be able to compete effectively and increase markshare

Some of our current and potential competiteave longer operating histories, significantigajer resources and name recognition and a
larger base of customers than we have. As a résalie
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competitors may have greater credibility with oxiséng and potential customers. They also mayhbe & adopt more aggressive pricing
policies and devote greater resources to the dpwedat, promotion and sale of their products tharcareto ours. In addition, some of our
current and potential competitors have alreadybéisteed supplier or joint development relationshipth the decision makers at our current or
potential customers. These competitors may betabverage their existing relationships to diseqgértheir customers from purchasing
products from us or persuade them to replace adymts with their products. Our competitors may afer bundled chipset kit arrangements
offering a more complete product despite the tesdinnerits or advantages of our products. Theseetitors may elect not to support our
products which could complicate our sales effofteese and other competitive pressures may pregeinbon competing successfully against
current or future competitors, and may materiallynh our business. Competition could decrease acegrreduce our sales, lower our gross
profits and/or decrease our market share.

Provisions in our charter documents and Delaware M could prevent, delay or impede a change in conttef us and may reduce the
market price of our common stock

Provisions of our certificate of incorpaoat and bylaws could have the effect of discourggdelaying or preventing a merger or
acquisition that a stockholder may consider favierabor example, our certificate of incorporatiorddylaws provide for:

. The division of our Board of Directors into thrdasses to be elected on a staggered basis, osecdels yeal

. The ability of our Board of Directors to issue stgof our preferred stock in one or more seriebawit further authorization ¢
our stockholders;

. A prohibition on stockholder action by written cens,
. Elimination of the right of stockholders to calspecial meeting of stockholde
. A requirement that stockholders provide advanceeadatf any stockholder nominations of directorany proposal of new

business to be considered at any meeting of stéaéisy and

. A requirement that a supermajority vote be obtaiioegimend or repeal certain provisions of our fiedtie of incorporation

We also are subject to the aatieover laws of Delaware which may discourageaydel prevent someone from acquiring or mergindp
us, which may adversely affect the market pricewafcommon stock.

Risks related to our industry
We are subject to the cyclical nature of the semicwluctor industry, which has been subject to signitiant fluctuations

The semiconductor industry is highly cyaliand is characterized by constant and rapid m@olical change, rapid product obsolescence
and price erosion, evolving standards, short prolifeccycles and wide fluctuations in product slyppnd demand. The industry has
experienced significant fluctuations, often conedawith, or in anticipation of, maturing producictss and new product introductions of both
semiconductor companies' and their customers' gtedund fluctuations in general economic conditi@eteriorating general worldwide
economic conditions, including reduced economiovagt concerns about credit and inflation, incred&nergy costs, decreased consumer
confidence, reduced corporate profits, decreaseddipg and similar adverse business conditions)dvwmake it very difficult for our
customers, our vendors, and us to accurately fetecal plan future business activities and coulsed).S. and foreign businesses to slow
spending on our products. We cannot predict thangrstrength, or duration of any economic slowd@seconomic
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recovery. If the economy or markets in which werafg deteriorate, our business, financial condjtéord results of operations would likely be
materially and adversely affected.

Downturns have been characterized by dshied product demand, production overcapacity, imgéntory levels and accelerated erosion
of average selling prices. We believe the semicotmtundustry is currently suffering a downturn dodarge part to adverse conditions in the
global credit and financial markets, including dimshed liquidity and credit availability, declinesconsumer confidence, declines in econc
growth, increased unemployment rates and genecartainty regarding the economy. This downturntres and may continue to have, a
material adverse effect on our business and opegragsults.

Upturns have been characterized by inctepseduct demand and production capacity const@irgated by increased competition for
access to third-party foundry, assembly and tgzicigy. We are dependent on the availability ofhscagpacity to manufacture, assemble and
test our ICs. None of our third-party foundry, asbé or test subcontractors have provided assusathed adequate capacity will be available
to us.

The average selling prices of our products could deease rapidly which may negatively impact our reveues and gross profits

We may experience substantial period-tégpeftuctuations in future operating results dughte erosion of our average selling prices. We
have reduced the average unit price of our prodod@sticipation of or in response to competitiveeing pressures, new product introductions
by us or our competitors and other factors. If weewmnable to offset any such reductions in ourayeselling prices by increasing our sales
volumes, increasing our sales content per appdieair reducing production costs, our gross praiitd revenues will suffer. To maintain our
gross profit percentage, we will need to develog iatroduce new products and product enhancemengstionely basis and continually reduce
our costs. Our failure to do so could cause ouemaes and gross profit percentage to decline.

Competition within the numerous markets we target nay reduce sales of our products and reduce our maek share

The markets for semiconductors in genarad, for mixed-signal ICs in particular, are intdpsmmpetitive. We expect that the market for
our products will continually evolve and will bebject to rapid technological change. In additichwe target and supply products to nume
markets and applications, we face competition feoralatively large number of competitors. We corapeith Analog Devices, Atmel,
Broadcom, Conexant, Cypress, Epson, Freescaleglnii Technologies, LSI, Maxim Integrated Produdisyochip, NXP Semiconductors,
Renesas, STMicroelectronics, Texas Instrumentstrdfednternational, Zarlink Semiconductor and othéWe expect to face competition in
future from our current competitors, other manufeets and designers of semiconductors, and stasengiconductor design companies. As the
markets for communications products grow, we alsg face competition from traditional communicatiatevice companies. These compa
may enter the mixedignal semiconductor market by introducing theind@s or by entering into strategic relationshipghwer acquiring othe
existing providers of semiconductor products. Idiidn, large companies may restructure their ojp@mna to create separate companies or may
acquire new businesses that are focused on pragviletypes of products we produce or acquire astorners.

Our products must conform to industry standards andtechnology in order to be accepted by end users our markets

Generally, our products comprise only & paa device. All components of such devices nmngftormly comply with industry standards
order to operate efficiently together. We depend on
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companies that provide other components of thecegevio support prevailing industry standards. Mafrtjpese companies are significantly
larger and more influential in affecting industtarsdards than we are. Some industry standards otayenwidely adopted or implemented
uniformly, and competing standards may emergerttagt be preferred by our customers or end useladér companies do not support the
same industry standards that we do, or if competiagdards emerge, market acceptance of our podaatd be adversely affected which
would harm our business.

Products for certain applications are basethdustry standards that are continually evgyi@ur ability to compete in the future will
depend on our ability to identify and ensure coamudie with these evolving industry standards. Thergence of new industry standards could
render our products incompatible with products tlgyed by other suppliers. As a result, we coulddugiired to invest significant time and
effort and to incur significant expense to redesignproducts to ensure compliance with relevaariddrds. If our products are not in
compliance with prevailing industry standards faignificant period of time, we could miss oppoitigs to achieve crucial design wins.

Our pursuit of necessary technological adea may require substantial time and expense. #Wenot be successful in developing or
using new technologies or in developing new pragloctproduct enhancements that achieve market taowsp If our ICs fail to achieve mar
acceptance, our growth prospects, operating reanttscompetitive position could be adversely aéfdct

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Iltem 2. Properties

Our primary facilities, housing engineerisgles and marketing, administration and testaijmers, are located in Austin, Texas. Our
Austin, Texas operations currently occupy approxatyal 90,000 square feet of leased floor space ke terms expiring at various dates
through 2013. In addition to these properties, @@sé smaller facilities in various locations in théted States, China, France, Germany,
Hungary, Japan, Portugal, South Korea, Singapayan and the United Kingdom for engineering, saled marketing, administrative and
manufacturing support activities. We believe tingise facilities are suitable and adequate to maetiworent operating needs.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings
Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action comiplar violations of U.S. federal securities lawasifiled in the United States District Court
the Southern District of New York against us, foliour officers individually and the three investméanking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connectidh wur initial public offering of common stock. €Consolidated Amended Complaint
alleges that the registration statement and pragpdar our initial public offering did not discleghat (1) the underwriters solicited and
received additional, excessive and undisclosed dseioms from certain investors, and (2) the unditeng had agreed to allocate shares of the
offering in exchange for a commitment from the oustrs to purchase additional shares in the aft&ehat pre-determined higher prices. The
Complaint alleges violations of the Securities A£1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 dttion seeks damages in an unspecified
amount and is being coordinated with approximaB@®§ other nearly identical actions filed againsteotcompanies. A court order dated
October 9, 2002 dismissed without prejudice our fufticers who had been named individually. On Deber 5, 2006, the Second Circuit
vacated a decision by the District Court grantilags certification in six "focus” cases, which ertended to serve as test cases. The plaintiffs
selected these six cases, which do not includ&hes Court has indicated that its decisions in théacus cases are intended to provide strong
guidance for the parties in the remaining cases. On
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April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denied a petitionrehearing filed by plaintiffs, but noted th@aintiffs could ask the District Court to certify
more narrow classes than those that were rejected.

On August 14, 2007, the plaintiffs filed @maded complaints in the six focus cases. On Seme&W 2007, the plaintiffs moved to certif
class in the six focus cases. On November 14, 20@7ssuers and the underwriters named as defenfatie six focus cases filed motions to
dismiss the amended complaints against them. OwctM26, 2008, the District Court dismissed the S&earAct claims of those members of
the putative classes in the focus cases who seldsbcurities for a price in excess of the initilering price and those who purchased outside
the previously certified class period. With respecall other claims, the motions to dismiss wegaidd. On October 10, 2008, at the request of
plaintiffs, plaintiffs' motion for class certifidan was withdrawn, without prejudice.

As the litigation process is inherently ertain, we are unable to predict the outcome obttmve described matter. While we do maintain
liability insurance, we could incur losses that mo¢ covered by our liability insurance or thategd the limits of our liability insurance. Such
losses could have a material impact on our busiaedur results of operations or financial positio

Other

We are involved in various other legal gredings that have arisen in the normal course sihbas. While the ultimate results of these
matters cannot be predicted with certainty, we aloexpect them to have a material adverse effeth@iconsolidated financial position or
results of operations.

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secity Holders
None.
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Part Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities
Market Information and Holders

Our registration statement (Registration 888-94853) under the Securities Act of 1933,rasraded, relating to our initial public offering
of our common stock became effective on March 2802 Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ NwtidMarket (NASDAQ) under
the symbol "SLAB". The table below shows the higld éow per-share sales prices of our common stockhi periods indicated, as reported
by NASDAQ. As of January 31, 2009, there were 1d@lérs of record of our common stock.

High Low

Fiscal Year 200

First Quarte! $35.3¢  $28.9(

Second Quarte 35.51 29.7¢

Third Quartel 42.7¢  34.1:

Fourth Quarte 44.4¢  35.7¢
Fiscal Year 200!

First Quarte! $37.9¢  $25.3¢

Second Quarte 39.2¢ 31.31

Third Quartel 35.2¢  28.7¢

Fourth Quarte 28.9: 17.0¢

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any castetids on our common stock and we do not interhyocash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We currently expect to retain any futuren@ggs to fund the operation and expansion of ausirtess.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below shows a compak$aumulative total stockholder returns for andgstment in Silicon Laboratories Inc.
common stock, the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Inéex] the NASDAQ Electronic Components Index.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG SILICON LABORATORIES INC.,
THE NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.S.) INDEX
AND THE NASDAQ ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS INDEX
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Q) The graph assumes that $100 was invested in oumconstock and in each index at the market closéaonary 3, 2004, and that
dividends were reinvested. No cash dividends haem loleclared on our common stock.

(2) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthowk be considered indicative of future stockhold¢urns.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie
The following table summarizes repurchadesur common stock during the three months endedary 3, 2009:

Total Number of Approximate
Shares Purchase Dollar Value of
Shares that May
as Part of Publicly ~ Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans ol
Total Number of Average Price  Announced Plans

Period Shares Purchase  Paid per Share or Programs Programs
October 5, 200i- November 1, 200 — 3 — — $ 13,286,02
November 2, 200- November 29, 20( 1,730,54. % 21.9¢ 1,730,54. $ 75,286,03
November 30, 200- January 3, 200 — 3 — — $ 75,286,03
Total 1,730,54. $ 21.9¢ 1,730,54.

On October 29, 2008, we announced thaBoard of Directors authorized a program to repusehap to $100 million of our common
stock. Such repurchases may occur over a 12-mamibdp The program allows for repurchases to beeniathe open market or in private
transactions, including structured or acceleratadstactions, subject to applicable legal requiréamand market conditions. Our prior
repurchase program, which was announced in July 26@ authorized the repurchase of up to $400anithf our common stock over a 24-
month period, was completed in November 2008.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dati

Please read this selected consolidateddinhdata in conjunction with "Management's Disios and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations," our Consolidated Fiiz&tatements and the notes to those statemethtgled in this Form 10-K. Financial data
for fiscal years 2004 through 2006 has been reifiled$o reflect the sale of our former Aero protllises as discontinued operations. The sale
of these product lines closed in March 2007. See [Sdiscontinued Operationto the Consolidated Financial Statements forteaftdil
information.

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Income C

Revenue: $415,63( $337,46. $288,15¢ $238,58° $235,96°
Operating incom: 43,65¢1) 23,097 6,0545) 18,94%6) 40,23t
Income from continuing operatiol 32,93¢(1) 39,68’ 15,3445) 17,69¢6) 31,97¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of incaaxe: — 165,14¢3) 15,81¢ 29,80 44,71«
Net income $ 32,93%(1)$204,83((3) $ 31,15¢5)$ 47,50¢6)$ 76,69:
Income from continuing operations per shi

Basic $ 068 $ 072 $ 026 $ 032 $ 0.6z

Diluted $ 067 $ 07¢ $ 027 $ 032 $ 0.5¢

Consolidated Balance Sheet D:

Cash, cash equivalents and investm $325,36((2) $572,9744) $386,29.  $363,71( $277,10¢
Working capital 289,71¢2) 599,30((4) 402,08! 369,30« 294,55
Total asset 624,24(2) 840,24(4) 686,99 601,06: 481,12
Long-term obligations 48,78¢ 43,30¢ 16,69! 7,41¢ 2,57(C
Total stockholders' equi 502,46((2) 703,54! 568,68. 498,04 399,48

(N Includes a charge for-process research and development costs in connewitl our acquisition of Integration Associat

(2) Reflects repurchases of our common stock in fi206aB.

3) Includes a gain on the sale of our Aero produ@djmet of related income taxes.

4) Includes proceeds from the sale of our Aero protines, less repurchases of our common stock @affizg007.

(5) As discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Fin&stetements, at the beginning of fiscal 2006, hvenged our method of accounti
for stock-based compensation to conform to FindWgaounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement aBRcial Accounting

Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 20@®}are-Based Paymen{SFAS 123R).

(6) Includes a charge for acquired research and dewveopcosts in connection with our acquisition dic6h MAGIKE.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of financiahdition and results of operations should be rgmdonjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes theretauhetl elsewhere in this report. This discussionaiostforwarclooking statements. Please
see the "Cautionary Statement" and "Risk Factolsve for discussions of the uncertainties, riskd assumptions associated with these
statements. Our fiscal year-end financial reportpegiods are a 52- or 53- week year ending on their8ay closest to December 31st. Fiscal
year 2008 had 53 weeks with the extra week ocaginrhe first quarter of the year and ended onukay 3, 2009. Fiscal years 2007 and 2!
were 52-week years and ended December 29, 200Decgimber 30, 2006, respectively. Except as ndteahdial results are for continuing
operations. Our former Aero product lines are retgoras discontinued operations. The sale of thesgugt lines closed in March 2007.

Overview

We design and develop proprietary, anatdgrisive, mixed-signal integrated circuits (ICg)ddoroad range of applications. Mixed-signal
ICs are electronic components that convert realdvamalog signals, such as sound and radio wanesdigital signals that electronic products
can process. Therefore, mixed-signal ICs are atitomponents in a broad range of applicationsviargety of markets, including
communications, consumer, industrial, automotivedital and power management. Our major customehsde 2Wire, Huawei, LG
Electronics, Motorola, Panasonic, Philips, Sageam&ing, Sony Ericsson and Thomson.

As a "fabless" semiconductor company, e aa thirdparty semiconductor fabricators in Asia, and tessér extent the United States
manufacture the silicon wafers that reflect oudisigns. Each wafer contains numerous die, whieteatr from the wafer to create a chip for
an IC. We rely on third-parties in Asia to assemphleckage, and, in almost all cases, test theseaedeand ship these units to our customers.
Testing performed by such third parties facilitefeester delivery of products to our customers {palarly those located in Asia), shorter
production cycle times, lower inventory requirensedwer costs and increased flexibility of tegpaeity.

Our product set addresses a variety ofddtimsed mixed-signal applications. Our expertisgnalog-intensive, high-performance, mixed-
signal ICs enables us to develop highly differgetissolutions that address multiple markets. Weigiaur products into the following
categories:

. RF products, which include our broadcast radioiveee and transmitters, sh-range wireless transceivers, video demodula
satellite set-top box receivers and satellite rawliers;

. Access products, which include our ISOmodem embédugdems and Voice over IP (VolP) products, sucbuadroSLIC
subscriber line interface circuits and voice di@otess arrangement (DAA);

. Broad-based products, which include 8-bit microoaliér products, timing products (including clocksecision clock & data
recovery ICs and oscillators) and power productsl(iding our isolators, current sensors, AC-DC @vters and Power over
Ethernet devices); and

. Mature products, which include our silicon DAA € modems, DSL analog front end ICs, optical plajdayer transceivers
and RF Synthesizers.

Through acquisitions and internal developtedforts, we have continued to diversify our protdportfolio and introduce next generation
ICs with added functionality and further integratidn July 2008, we completed the acquisition déd¢mation Associates, a privately-held
company that designed and developed silicon saistior wireless, wireline and power applicationsdavide range of systems. Products
acquired include AC-DC converters and the EZRadiniffy of short range wireless
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ICs designed for point to point data transmissmncbnsumer and industrial monitoring and consath as remote keyless entry, security
monitoring and other near range wireless applioatio

In fiscal 2008, we introduced the expangibour Any-Rate Precision Clock family with a §ittattenuating clock multiplier IC that meets
or exceeds the performance, integration, frequandlyjitter requirements for the 1G and 10G SyncbusrEthernet (Synck) market, a new
family of clock generators and buffers, an integdautomotive AM/FM radio receiver IC, a 100% CMQsillator, a highly integrated
automotive communications controller, a family wieigrated isolated gate drivers, four new FM resrsiwith embedded antenna support, a
single-chip digital video demodulator, a singleuhpsingle output jitter-attenuating clock multglilC, two highperformance radio data syst
(RDS) receivers for portable and in-car navigatiemices, a family of fully-integrated AM/FM radiegeivers with weather band coverage and
expanded our microcontroller portfolio with the &atgh of low voltage microcontrollers capable ofespting down to 0.9 volts and new small
form factor microcontrollers with EPROM. We plandontinue to introduce products that increase tment we provide for existing
applications, thereby enabling us to serve marnketslo not currently address and expanding our &ailable market opportunity.

We had no customers that accounted for rin@ne 10% of our revenues during fiscal 2008, 2680Z006. In addition to direct sales to
customers, some of our end customers purchasegisohdirectly from us through distributors and want manufacturers. An end customer
purchasing through a contract manufacturer typidaitructs such contract manufacturer to obtainpsaducts and incorporate such products
with other components for sale by such contractufearturer to the end customer. Although we actusdly the products to, and are paid by
distributors and contract manufacturers, we refesuich end customer as our customer. One of ouiibditors, Edom Technology, represented
31% of our revenues during fiscal 2008. Two of distributors, Edom and Avnet, represented 36% &3d af our revenues during fiscal 20
and 33% and 13% of our revenues during fiscal 288pectively. There were no other distributorsantract manufacturers that accountec
more than 10% of our revenues in fiscal 2008, 2002006.

The percentage of our revenues derived frostomers located outside of the United States888&sin fiscal 2008, 87% in fiscal 2007 ¢
84% in fiscal 2006, which reflects our product andtomer diversification and market penetrationdiar products, as many of our customers
manufacture and design their products in AsiaofAbur revenues to date have been denominatedinddllars. We believe that a majority of
our revenues will continue to be derived from costos outside of the United States.

The sales cycle for our ICs can be as @2 months or more. An additional three to sixithe or more are usually required before a
customer ships a significant volume of devices ithedrporate our ICs. Due to this lengthy saledesywe typically experience a significant
delay between incurring research and developmehtalting, general and administrative expensesttamdorresponding sales. Consequently,
if sales in any quarter do not occur when expearpgenses and inventory levels could be disprommately high, and our operating results for
that quarter and, potentially, future quarters wideg adversely affected. Moreover, the amountoé tbetween initial research and
development and commercialization of a produaty#r, can be substantially longer than the saleke ¢gr the product. Accordingly, if we
incur substantial research and development cost®uti developing a commercially successful prodogt,operating results, as well as our
growth prospects, could be adversely affected.

Because many of our ICs are designed feiusonsumer products such as personal compptnsonal video recorders, set-top boxes,
portable navigation devices and mobile handsetgxpect that the demand for our products will h@dslly subject to some degree of seas
demand. However, rapid changes in our markets arus our product areas make it difficult for usitourately estimate the impact of
seasonal factors on our business.
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Discontinued Operation

In March 2007, we sold our Aero transceiveroFONE single-chip phone and power amplifievdurct lines to NXP for $285 million in
cash, plus additional earn-out potential of uprt@aggregate of $65 million over the following thiesars. The results of operations of the sold
product lines have been presented as discontinpecions.

Results of Operations
The following describes the line itemsfeeth in our Consolidated Statements of Income:

Revenues. Revenues are generated almost exclusivelyleg s&our ICs. We recognize revenue on sales alierf the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehatdn arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsobaarred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonaldgared. Generally, we recognize revenue from pitoghles to direct customers and contract
manufacturers upon shipment. Certain of our salesnade to distributors under agreements allowartam rights of return and price
protection on products unsold by distributors. Adaogly, we defer the revenue and cost of revenusueh sales until the distributors sell the
product to the end customer. Our products typicadiyy a one-year replacement warranty. Replacesiee been insignificant to date. Our
revenues are subject to variation from period tdopedue to the volume of shipments made withireaqa and the prices we charge for our
products. The vast majority of our revenues wegptiated at prices that reflect a discount fromlisteprices for our products. These discot
are made for a variety of reasons, including: Jgdtablish a relationship with a new customer,s2yrmincentive for customers to purchase
products in larger volumes, 3) to provide profitrgia to our distributors who resell our productidin response to competition. In additior
a product matures, we expect that the averagagedtice for such product will decline due to thieajer availability of competing products.
Our ability to increase revenues in the futuregpehdent on increased demand for our establislwelligis and our ability to ship larger
volumes of those products in response to such denaanwell as our ability to develop or acquire mpraducts and subsequently achieve
customer acceptance of newly introduced products.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues includes the cost of purclgafsiished silicon wafers processed by indepenftamidries; costs
associated with assembly, test and shipping oftiposducts; costs of personnel and equipment agsdoivith manufacturing support, logist
and quality assurance; costs of software royadtiesamortization of purchased software, otherlgdalal property license costs, and certain
acquired intangible assets; an allocated portiomuofoccupancy costs; and allocable depreciatidesiing equipment and leasehold
improvements. Recently introduced products terfubtice higher cost of revenues per unit due to ihitiaw production volumes required by
our customers and higher costs associated withpaekage variations. As production volumes for alpod increase, unit production costs t
to decrease as our yields improve and our semiatadfabricators, assemblers and test suppliereeelgreater economies of scale for that
product. Additionally, the cost of wafer procurerhand assembly and test services, which are sigmificomponents of cost of goods sold,
vary cyclically with overall demand for semicondust and our suppliers' available capacity of suddpcts and services.

Research and Development. Research and development expense consistsryimiapersonnel-related expenses, including stock
compensation, new product mask, wafer, packagidgest costs, external consulting and servicesgcastortization of purchased software,
equipment tooling, equipment depreciation, amatitizeof acquired intangible assets, acquired reteand development resulting from
acquisitions, as well as an allocated portion af@acupancy costs for such operations. Researclle®opment activities include the design
of new products and software, refinement of exispnoducts and design of test methodologies torersampliance with required
specifications.
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Selling, General and Administrative  Selling, general and administrative expenseists primarily of personnel-related expenses,
including stock compensation, related allocabldiporof our occupancy costs, sales commissionsdepgendent sales representatives,
applications engineering support, professional,fdigectors' and officers' liability insurance, gatt litigation legal fees, costs related to
relocating our headquarters and promotional andketiaig expenses.

In-Process Research and Development. In-process research and development (IPR&Dessmts acquired technology resulting from
business combinations that had not achieved teobiuall feasibility as of the acquisition closingeland had no alternative future use. These
costs are expensed on the date of acquisition.

Interest Income. Interest income reflects interest earned oncash, cash equivalents and investment balances.
Interest Expense. Interest expense consists of interest on oot simd long-term obligations.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income (expense), net reflects foreigmericy remeasurement adjustments and gains on the
disposal of fixed assets.

Provision for Income Taxes. We accrue a provision for domestic and forémpome tax at the applicable statutory rates aegLiir
non-deductible expenses (including a portion ofsiack compensation), research and developmentéaits and interest income from tax-
exempt investments. We recognize interest and pesatlated to unrecognized tax benefits in tleigion for income taxes.

The following table sets forth our Consatied Statements of Income data as a percentageeriues for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢  December 3C
2009 2007 2006

Revenue:! 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of revenue 38.t 38.¢ 34.¢€
Gross profit 61.t 61.2 65.1
Operating expense

Research and developme 24.% 26.5 31.2

Selling, general and administrati 24.2 28.1 30.¢

In-process research and developn 2.t — 0.9
Operating expense 51.C 54.¢ 63.C
Operating incom: 10.5 6.8 2.1
Other income (expense

Interest incom: 22 7.3 4.7

Interest expens (0.2 (0.2 (0.3

Other income (expense), r (0.2) (0.2) 0.3
Income from continuing operations before income& 12.¢ 13.€ 6.8
Provision for income taxe 4.9 2.C 15
Income from continuing operatio 7. 11.¢ 5.3
Income from discontinued operations, net of incaane: — 48.¢ 5.3
Net income 7.% 60.7% 10.8%
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Comparison of Fiscal 2008 to Fiscal 20C

Revenues
Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢
%
(in millions) 2009 2007 Change Change
Revenue: $ 415€ $ 337t $78.1 23.2%

The growth in the sales of our productBsoal 2008 was driven primarily by increased raxenfrom all of our product groups. Unit
volumes of our products increased compared tolf@@7 by 50.8%. Average selling prices decreaseihd the same period by 19.4%. Unit
volumes and average selling prices were substhnétiected by the addition of certain high voluntey average selling price products thro
the Integration Associates acquisition. Excluding Integration Associates products, during the saened, unit volumes increased by 28.1%
and average selling prices decreased by only 8ri%eneral, as our products become more maturexyect to experience decreases in
average selling prices. We anticipate that newhoamced, higher priced, next generation produatsparaduct derivatives will offset these
decreases to some degree.

Gross Profit

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢
%
(in millions) 2009 2007 Change Change
Gross profil $ 255.6 $ 207.2 $48.€ 23.4%
Percent of revenu 61.5% 61.2%

The increase in the dollar amount of grosdit in fiscal 2008 was primarily due to our ireased sales.

We may experience declines in the averatlieg prices of certain of our products. This devand pressure on gross profit as a percer
of revenues may be offset to the extent we aretablt) introduce higher margin new products anid gaarket share with our ICs; or
2) achieve lower production costs from our wafgpdiers and third-party assembly and test subcoturs.

Research and Development

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢
%
(in millions) 2009 2007 Change Change
Research and developm $ 1012 $ 89.2 $11¢ 13.T%
Percent of revenu 24.2% 26.5%

The increase in research and developmemrese in fiscal 2008 was principally due to (a)remnease of $8.6 million for personnelliated
expenses, (b) $2.7 million of reduced occupancyl@rslipport costs during fiscal 2007, which weréelito NXP in connection with our
transition services agreement (TSA) which has negpired, and (c) an increase of $1.8 million forglwot introduction costs. These impacts
were partially offset by increased foreign reseamedits and incentives of $1.2 million for theeatperiod. The decrease in research and
development expense as a percent of revenues i® due increased sales.

Significant recent development projectsude the expansion of our Any-Rate Precision Chackily, a new family of clock generators
and buffers, an integrated automotive AM/FM radiosgiver IC, a 100% CMOS oscillator, a highly ingggd automotive communications
controller, a family of
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integrated isolated gate drivers, four new FM reees with embedded antenna support, a single-dbitabvideo demodulator, a single input,
single output jitter-attenuating clock multiplie2,Itwo high-performance radio data system (RDSgivets for portable and in-car navigation
devices, a family of fully-integrated AM/FM radieceivers with weather band coverage and we fugkgeanded our microcontroller portfolio.
We expect that research and development expenkeemiin relatively stable in absolute dollars amaly fluctuate as a percentage of revenue
due to changes in sales and the timing of certgiemrsive items related to new product developnmétiafives, such as engineering mask and
wafer costs.

Selling, General and Administrative

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢
%
(in millions) 2009 2007 Change Change
Selling, general and administrati $ 100.7 $ 94.¢ $ 5.9 6.2%
Percent of revenu 24.2% 28.1%

The increase in selling, general and adstraive expense in fiscal 2008 was principally thuéa) an increase of $6.4 million for
personnel-related expenses, (b) $1.0 million oficed occupancy costs during fiscal 2007 which vedted to NXP in connection with our
TSA, and (c) an increase of $0.7 million for sademmissions. These impacts were partially offsetiégreased legal fees, primarily related to
litigation, of $2.6 million. The decrease in sejligeneral and administrative expense as a peofeavenues is due to our increased sales. We
expect that selling, general and administrativecesp will remain relatively stable in absolute ddlin future periods.

In-Process Research and Development

In-process research and development (IPR&B)rded in connection with the acquisition oklyriation Associates was $10.3 million in
fiscal 2008. The IPR&D projects included optoelentc, power, and radio transmitter and transceigehnologies. The optoelectronic projects
are used for infrared data communications and pridxisensing. The power projects enable AC-DC cosive in power supply systems. The
radio transmitters and transceivers projects erthbleelivery of data over proprietary, short rangeeless links. The fair value of each project
was determined using the income approach. The didcate applicable to the cash flows was 20%. Wtis reflects the weighted-average cost
of capital and the risks inherent in the developihpeacess.

We estimate that these projects ranged 80% to 84% complete at the date of acquisitiore fidmaining research and development
efforts include additional design, integration d@esting. We project the costs to complete the ptsj@ill be $2.8 million as of January 3, 20
The significant risks associated with the succéssfmpletion of these projects include our potdritiability to finish the product designs,
produce working models and gain customer accept&atiire to complete these projects in a timelywn@a could result in lost revenues.
Projected costs to complete the projects have beesistent with our assumptions at the time ofabguisition. We do not expect the products
in design derived from these technologies to bégitontribute to revenues prior to the third orrfbuguarter of fiscal 2009.

There was no IPR&D in fiscal 2007.
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Interest Income

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢
(in millions) 2009 2007 Change
Interest incomt $ 104 $ 24t $(14.))

The decrease in interest income for themeperiod was due to lower interest rates on titetlying instruments and lower average cash
and investment balances.

Interest Expense
Interest expense in fiscal 2008 was $0Manicompared to $0.6 million in fiscal 2007.
Other Income (Expense), Net
Other income (expense), net in fiscal 28@8 $(0.6) million compared to $(0.5) million irséal 2007.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢
(in millions) 2009 2007 Change
Provision for income taxe $ 202 $ 6.6 $13.4
Effective tax rate 38.(% 14.7%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2008 wégher than fiscal 2007 primarily due to a one-titave cost associated with the intercompany
licensing of certain intellectual property, the avidrable impact of a reduction in tax exempt irgdeimecome and the non-deductible write-off of
in-process research and development costs. Thesmges were partially offset by an increase irfdreign tax rate benefit and the reduction
of the liability for unrecognized tax benefits dioethe closure of an open tax year.

In fiscal 2008, we aligned, through an iatenpany license, the non-U.S. intellectual propeghts associated with the acquisition of
Integration Associates with existing non-U.S. rigbtirrently owned by one of our non-U.S. subsid&rThis transfer resulted in a one-time
increase in the 2008 effective tax rate.

The effective tax rates for each of thequks presented differ from the federal statutote k& 35% due to the amount of income earned in
foreign jurisdictions where the tax rate may bedothan the federal statutory rate, tax exemptesténcome, the limited deductibility of sto
compensation expense and other permanent itemslinglreductions of the liability for unrecogniziec benefits and non-deductible in-
process research and development.

Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of Incom&axes

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢
(in millions) 2009 2007 Change
Income from discontinued operations, net of incaan@: $ — $ 165.1 $(165.])

Revenues from our discontinued operatiarfisscal 2008 were zero, as compared to $46.3anilin fiscal 2007. Income from our
discontinued operations in fiscal 2007 includedi @n the sale of our Aero product lines of $224ilion and a provision for income taxes
$62.2 million. We do not
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expect to recognize any additional revenue fromdiszontinued operations. See Not®&continued Operationto the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information.

Comparison of Fiscal 2007 to Fiscal 2006

Revenues
Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
%
(in millions) 2007 2006 Change Change
Revenue: $ 3378 $ 288 $49.: 17.1%

The growth in the sales of our productBsoal 2007 was primarily driven by increased raxenfrom our broadcast and microcontroller
products. Such growth was offset in part by a declh revenues from our VolP products. Unit volurakeur products increased compared to
fiscal 2006 by 36.6%. Average selling prices desedaduring the same period by 14.6%.

Gross Profit

Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
%
(in millions) 2007 2006 Change Change
Gross profil $ 207z $ 187t $19.7 10.5%
Percent of revenu 61.2% 65.1%

The decrease in gross profit as a perdervenue in fiscal 2007 was primarily due to chesyin product mix.

Research and Development

Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
%
(in millions) 2007 2006 Change Change
Research and developm: $ 89 $ 89.¢& $(0.5 (0.5%
Percent of revenu 26.5% 31.2%

The decrease in research and developmeense in fiscal 2007 was principally due to (a& $nillion reduction in occupancy and IT
support costs allocated to research and developmheato our TSA with NXP, (b) decreased depremmtf $1.6 million, and (c) decreased
product introduction costs of $1.5 million. Thiscdease was offset in part by $5.1 million of inae@ stock compensation and other personnel-
related expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative

Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
%
(in millions) 2007 2006 Change Change
Selling, general and administrati $ 94.¢ $ 89.C $ 5.8 6.5%
Percent of revenu 28.1% 30.9%

The increase in selling, general and adstriaive expense in fiscal 2007 was principally tluéa) $5.6 million for stock compensation
other personnel-related expenses, (b) $2.4 millidagal fees primarily related to litigation, af@ $1.9 million for depreciation. The increase
was offset in part by decreases of (a) $2.2 milfmmcharges related to relocating our corporatdiearters, (b) $1.5 million for sales
commissions, and (c) $1.0 million due to reduceclpancy costs, in connection with our TSA with NXP.
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In-process Research and Developme

In-process research and development (IPR&@}ed to the acquisition of Silembia was $2.8iom in fiscal 2006. There was no IPR&D
in fiscal 2007.

Interest Income

Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
(in millions) 2007 2006 Change
Interest incom $ 245 % 13.7 $10.t

The increase in interest income in fis€@2was primarily due to greater cash and shont-tavestments balances, and to a lesser extent
an increase in interest rates of the underlyingrunsents.

Interest Expense
Interest expense in fiscal 2007 was $0l6anicompared to $0.9 million in fiscal 2006.
Other Income (Expense), Net
Other income (expense), net in fiscal 28@8 $(0.5) million compared to $0.7 million in &&006.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
(in millions) 2007 2006 Change
Provision for income taxe $ 6.8 $ 43 $ 2E
Effective tax rate 14.7%% 22.(%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2007 i@wer than fiscal 2006 due to an increase in thie i tax deductible stock compensation
expense as a percentage of income from continypegations before income taxes as well as the rexfuof the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits (and associated interest) due to the @asfuopen tax years. These decreases were padfédet by a decrease in research and
development tax credits as well as a decreasesifatiorable impact of tax exempt interest incomfisical 2007.

The effective tax rates for each of thaquky presented differ from the federal statutotg &f 35% due to the amount of income earned in
foreign jurisdictions where the tax rate may bedothan the federal statutory rate, tax exemptestancome, the limited deductibility of sto
compensation expense, research and developmeeriedixs and other permanent items. In additionfimal 2007, the effective tax rate diff
from the federal statutory rate of 35% as a resutlhe reduction of the liability for unrecogniztak benefits (and associated interest) due to the
closure of open tax years.

Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of Incom&axes

Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
(in millions) 2007 2006 Change

Income from discontinued operations, net of incaenxe: $ 165.1 $ 15.¢ $149.:

Revenues from our discontinued operatiarfsscal 2007 were $46.3 million, as compared té654 million in fiscal 2006. Income from
our discontinued operations in fiscal 2007 includeghin on the sale of our Aero product lines &452 million and a provision for income
taxes of $62.2 million.
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See Note 3Discontinued Operatiortp the Consolidated Financial Statements for amlatti information.
Business Outlook

While we achieved good operating resultsifral 2008, deteriorating economic conditiongéeesulted in more cautious customer
spending behavior and generally lower demand fopooducts. We cannot predict the severity, duratipprecise impact of the economic
downturn on our future financial results. Consedlyeour reported results for the fourth quarted discal year 2008 may not be indicative of
our future results.

We expect revenues in the first quartdiszial 2009 to be down 20 to 25 percent sequentiglirthermore, we expect our diluted net loss
per share to be in the range of $(0.06) to $(0.10).

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity as ohdary 3, 2009 consisted of $273.5 million in casish equivalents and short-term investments.
Our short-term investments consist primarily of ieigpal bonds and U.S government agency notes.

Our long-term investments consist primaofauction-rate securities. Early in fiscal 2088¢tions for many of our auction-rate securities
failed because sell orders exceeded buy ordersf Aanuary 3, 2009, we held $58.0 million par valuetion-rate securities, all of which
experienced failed auctions. The securities hadipusly been valued using quoted prices in actieek®ts. When the auctions began to fail,
quoted prices for the securities were no longeendable. As such, we changed our fair value measeme methodology for all auction-rate
securities from quoted prices in active marketa tash flow model. The assumptions used in pregdhni@ discounted cash flow model include
estimates for interest rates, amount of cash flewsected holding periods of the securities anideodnt to reflect our inability to liquidate t|
securities.

The underlying assets of our auctiate securities consisted of student loans andeipaiibonds, of which $52.8 million were guarant
by the U.S. government and the remaining $5.2 onilivere privately insured. $54.8 million of the toi-rate securities had credit ratings of
AAA and $3.2 million had credit ratings of AA. Theesecurities had contractual maturity dates ranfyorg 2025 to 2047 and were yielding
1.4% to 7.0% per year at January 3, 2009. We amviag the underlying cash flows on all of our tiig-rate securities. The principal
associated with failed auctions are not expectdrkbtaccessible until a successful auction occhesissuer redeems the security, a buyer is
found outside of the auction process or the undeglgecurities mature. We are unable to predittaée funds will become available before
their maturity dates. As such, our auction-rateisées have been classified as long-term investsas of January 3, 2009.

In November 2008, we entered into an agesgiwith UBS AG, which provides us certain righissell to UBS the auction-rate securities
which were purchased through them. As of Janua®p39, we held $26.2 million par value auction-isgeurities purchased from UBS. We
have the option to sell these securities to UB@aatvalue from June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2QES, at its discretion, may purchase or sell
these securities on our behalf at any time providedeceive par value for the securities sold. iSkeers of the auction-rate securities continue
to have the right to redeem the securities at ttisoretion. The agreement allows for the contiimmadf the accrual and payment of interest
on the securities. The agreement also providesithsascess to loans of up to 75% of the par vafue@unredeemed securities until June 30,
2010. These loans would carry interest rates wivichld be consistent with the interest income onréiated auction-rate securities. As of
January 3, 2009, we had no loans outstanding uhdeagreement.
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We do not expect to need access to theatappresented by any of our auction-rate seegritrior to their maturities and we have the
ability and intent to hold our non-UBS investmeiatisa period of time sufficient to allow for anytaipated recovery in market value or final
settlement at the underlying par value. See NoEérancial Instruments to the Consolidated Financial Statements fortaafdil information.

Net cash provided by operating activitiesv$119.7 million during fiscal 2008, compared ¢b cash provided of $44.0 million during
fiscal 2007. Operating cash flows during fiscal 206flect our net income of $32.9 million, adjustrteeof $72.0 million for depreciation,
amortization, deferred income taxes, stock comgemrsand inprocess research and development, and a net dash af $14.8 million due t
changes in our operating assets and liabilities.

Accounts receivable decreased to $36.%anilt January 3, 2009 from $51.2 million at Decen, 2007. The decrease in accounts
receivable resulted primarily from most of the deds shipments occurring in the first half of theee month period ended January 3, 2009
versus more equally distributed shipments in thergrear. Our average days sales outstanding (RieGeased to 33 days at January 3, 2009
from 46 days at December 29, 2007.

Inventory decreased to $28.3 million atutag 3, 2009 from $28.6 million at December 29, 200ur inventory level is primarily
impacted by our need to make purchase commitmersisgport forecasted demand and variations betfagecasted and actual demand. Our
average days of inventory (DOI) was 65 days atdgn8, 2009 and 70 days at December 29, 2007.

Net cash provided by investing activitiessn$69.2 million during fiscal 2008, compared tocash provided of $256.9 million during
fiscal 2007. The decrease was principally duedeaease in cash proceeds of $256.5 million fraarstie of our Aero product lines and an
increase of $69.9 million used for the acquisitidtusinesses, offset by an increase of $143.9amilh net proceeds from sales and maturities
of available-for-sale investments. Net cash prawidg investing activities during fiscal 2008 incagdreceipt of the $14.3 million previously
held in escrow in connection with the sale of therd\product lines.

We anticipate capital expenditures of appnately $10 to $15 million for fiscal 2009. Additially, as part of our growth strategy, we
expect to evaluate opportunities to invest in a@ruéie other businesses, intellectual property dntelogies that would complement or expand
our current offerings, expand the breadth of ourkets or enhance our technical capabilities.

Net cash used in financing activities wa80 million during fiscal 2008, compared to naste used of $140.0 million during fiscal 20
The increase was principally due to an increasgl@8.8 million for repurchases of our common stall a decrease of $12.6 million from
proceeds from the issuance of common stock. In2007 and October 2008, our Board of Directors @iigled programs to repurchase up to
$400 million and $100 million of our common stockspectively.

Net cash provided by discontinued operatioas zero during fiscal 2008. Net cash providedibgontinued operations during fiscal 2007
was $35.4 million, which included adjustments o6 $2million for proceeds from the exercise of stogkions from employees who were hired
by NXP in connection with the sale of the Aero prodines and $7.4 million for stock compensation.
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Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contmatbbligations as of January 3, 2009 (in thouspnds

Payments due by period

Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter
Operating lease obligations( $39,53¢ $ 9,73¢ $7,42¢ $6,46( $6,34<¢ $2,58¢ $ 6,97¢
Purchase obligations(: 27,32¢  26,67: 392 26C — — —
Other lon¢-term obligations(: 1,427 —  1,40¢ 23 — — —

Q) Operating lease obligations include amounts fosdddacilities

2) Purchase obligations include contractual arrang¢sriarthe form of purchase orders with supplieremelthere is a fixed n-
cancelable payment schedule or minimum paymentsvithea reduced delivery schedule.

3) We are unable to make a reasonably reliable estiamto when cash settlement with taxing autheritiay occur for our unrecogniz
tax benefits. Therefore, our liability for unrecazgd tax benefits is not included in the table abh®&ee Note 14ncome Taxedp the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfdrimation.

Our future capital requirements will depemdmany factors, including the rate of sales ghpwiarket acceptance of our products, the
timing and extent of research and development pi®j@otential acquisitions of companies or tecbgials and the expansion of our sales and
marketing activities. We believe our existing casld investment balances are sufficient to meetapital requirements through at least the
next 12 months, although we could be requiredpaictelect, to seek additional funding prior totttime. We may enter into acquisitions or
strategic arrangements in the future which alsddcmrquire us to seek additional equity or debafficing.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In March 2006, we entered into an operali#age agreement and a related participation agnetefor a facility at 400 W. Cesar Chavez
("400 WCC") in Austin, Texas for our corporate hgadrters. The lease has a term of seven yearhd3werent for the term of the lease is an
amount equal to the interest accruing on $44.3onikht 110 basis points over the three-month LIB@Rich would be approximately
$4.8 million over the remaining term assuming LIB@®erages 1.47% during such term).

In March 2008, we entered into an operal#@ge agreement and a related participation agnetefor a facility at 200 W. Cesar Chavez
("200 WCC") in Austin, Texas for the expansion af eorporate headquarters. The lease has a tefiregfears. The base rent for the term of
the lease is an amount equal to the interest aagn $50.1 million at 155 basis points over thre¢hmonth LIBOR (which would be
approximately $6.4 million over the remaining teassuming LIBOR averages 1.47% during such term).

We have granted certain rights and remddiéise lessors in the event of certain defauttsiuiding the right to terminate the leases, to
bring suit to collect damages, and to compel ysutghase the facilities. The leases contain othgtotnary representations, warranties,
obligations, conditions, indemnification provisiogaisd termination provisions, including covenantt the shall maintain unencumbered cash
and highly-rated short-term investments of at 1&7& million. If our unencumbered cash and higldted short-term investments are less than
$150 million, we must also maintain a ratio of fedddebt to earnings before interest expense, intaxes, depreciation, amortization, lease
expense and other non-cash charges (EBITDAR) dneefor prior fiscal quarters
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of no greater than 2 to 1. As of January 3, 20@believe we were in compliance with all covenafthe leases.

During the terms of the leases, we havgaing options to purchase the buildings for purehasces of approximately $44.3 million for
400 WCC and $50.1 million for 200 WCC. Alternatiyelve can cause each such property to be soldrtbghrties provided we are not in
default under that property's lease. We are coetitlg liable on a first dollar loss basis for uph®5.3 million to the extent that the 400 WCC
sale proceeds are less than the $44.3 million peclbption and up to $40.0 million to the exteat the 200 WCC sale proceeds are less than
the $50.1 million purchase option.

In accordance with FASB Interpretation KfeIN) 45, Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requiremémt&Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Othwe determined that the fair value associated wighguaranteed residual values was $1.0 million
for 400 WCC and $1.2 million for 200 WCC, as of theeption of the leases. These amounts were redand'Other assets, net" and "Long-
term obligations and other liabilities" in the Colidated Balance Sheets and are being amortizedtioge¢erm of the leases.

We are required to periodically evaluaie ¢lxpected fair value of each facility at the ehthe lease terms. If we determine that it is
estimable and probable that the expected fair galikk be less than $44.3 million for 400 WCC argD$#. million for 200 WCC, we will
ratably accrue the loss up to a maximum of appreaséty $35.3 million and $40.0 million, respectivebywer the remaining lease terms as
additional rent expense. As of January 3, 2009devact believe that a loss contingency accruadgired for either property. However, a
prolonged economic downturn could increase thdiliked of such a loss accrual.

In connection with our headquarters leagesng fiscal 2008 we entered into interest ratapagreements as a hedge against the variabls
rent under the leases. Under the terms of the ssgegements, we have effectively converted the berigents to fixed rents through March
2011 for 400 WCC and March 2013 for 200 WCC. SeteMNoFinancial Instruments to the Consolidated Financial Statements for taatdil
information.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements acmbmpanying notes in conformity with U.S. gerlgratcepted accounting principles requires
that we make estimates and assumptions that affee@mounts reported. Changes in facts and cireumoss could have a significant impact on
the resulting estimated amounts included in tharfamal statements. We believe the following critmecounting policies affect our more
complex judgments and estimates. We also have ptiigies that we consider to be key accountingcpes, such as our policies for revenue
recognition, including the deferral of revenues aast of revenues on sales to distributors; howehese policies do not meet the definition of
critical accounting estimates because they do eoérglly require us to make estimates or judgmihatsare difficult or subjective.

Inventory valuation—We assess the recoverability of inventories thiotig application of a set of methods, assumptankestimates.
In determining net realizable value, we write dawentory that may be slow moving or have some fofrabsolescence, including inventory
that has aged more than 12 months. We also adigistaiuation of inventory when its standard coseexls the estimated market value. We
assess the potential for any unusual customemshased on known quality or business issues aite--off inventory losses for scrap or non-
saleable material. Inventory not otherwise ideedifio be written down is compared to an assessofienir 12-month forecasted demand. The
result of this methodology is compared againsipttoeluct life cycle and competitive situations ie tharketplace to determine the
appropriateness of the resulting inventory lev@ksmand for our products may fluctuate significamtler time, and actual demand and market
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conditions may be more or less favorable than thiwstewe project. In the event that actual demardvier or market conditions are worse t
originally projected, additional inventory writeagdas may be required.

Stock compensatior-We recognize the fair-value of stock-based comaigms transactions in the Consolidated Statemetagfme in
accordance with FASB SFAS No. 123 (revised 208#pgre-Based Paymen{SFAS 123R). The fair value of our stock-basedrals is
estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Bshaption pricing model. The Black-Scholes valattalculation requires us to estimate key
assumptions such as future stock price volatiéigpected terms, risk-free rates and dividend yiglghected stock price volatility is based on
implied volatility from traded options on our stoitkthe marketplace and historical volatility ofr@iock. The expected term of options granted
is derived from an analysis of historical exerciged remaining contractual life of stock optionsd aepresents the period of time that options
granted are expected to be outstanding. The resk+fte is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curedféct at the time of grant. We have never
paid cash dividends, and do not currently intenpay cash dividends, and thus have assumed a Qéeddsyield. In addition, we are required
to estimate the expected forfeiture rate of ouclsgrants and only recognize the expense for tebases expected to vest. If our actual
experience differs significantly from the assumpsizised to compute our stock-based compensationocakdifferent assumptions had been
used, we may have recorded too much or too litleksbased compensation cost. See NoteSidckholders' Equity and Stock-Based
Compensation to the Consolidated Financial Statements fortéu discussion on stock-based compensation.

Long-term investments-Our long-term investments consist primarily of t-rate securities. We determine the fair valtiewr long-
term auction-rate securities using a discountet lasr model. The assumptions used in preparingltseounted cash flow model include
estimates for interest rates, amount of cash flewsected holding periods of the securities anideodnt to reflect our inability to liquidate t|
securities. For the available-for-sale auction-ssteurities, if the calculated value is below theying amount of the securities, we then
determine if the decline in value is other-thanyenary. We consider various factors in determinifigether an impairment is other-than-
temporary, including the severity and durationhaf impairment, changes in underlying credit ratjrfiggecasted recovery, our ability and int
to hold the investment for a period of time su#itti to allow for any anticipated recovery in mankatue and the probability that the scheduled
cash payments will continue to be made. When welade that an other-than-temporary impairment baslted, the difference between the
fair value and the carrying value is recorded asrgrairment charge in the Consolidated Statemefricfme. Impairments that we conclude
are temporary are recorded in accumulated othepretmensive loss.

Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived asset§Ve review long-lived assets which are held andiuseluding fixed assets and
purchased intangible assets, for impairment whanghwenges in circumstances indicate that the aagrgmount of the assets may not be
recoverable. Such evaluations compare the cargmmgunt of an asset to future undiscounted net ftasis expected to be generated by the
asset over its expected useful life and are sigpnitly impacted by estimates of future prices amldmes for our products, capital needs,
economic trends and other factors which are inhiréifficult to forecast. If the asset is considdrto be impaired, we record an impairment
charge equal to the amount by which the carryirigesaf the asset exceeds its fair value determiyeeither a quoted market price, if any, or a
value determined by utilizing a discounted casiwftechnique.

We test our goodwill for impairment annyak of the first day of our fourth fiscal quarderd in interim periods if certain events occur
indicating that the carrying value of goodwill mlag impaired. The goodwill impairment test is a tstep process. The first step of the
impairment analysis compares our fair value tormtrbook value. In determining fair value, the agtong guidance allows for the use of
several valuation methodologies, although it stgtested market prices are the best evidence of
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fair value. If the fair value is less than the bebk value, the second step of the analysis corsphesimplied fair value of our goodwill to its
carrying amount. If the carrying amount of goodwiticeeds its implied fair value, we recognize apaimment loss equal to that excess amc

Income taxes—We are required to estimate income taxes in eathegurisdictions in which we operate. This pracgsolves estimatin
the actual current tax liability together with assiag temporary differences in recognition of ineofioss) for tax and accounting purposes.
These differences result in deferred tax assetdialnitities, which are included in our ConsoliddtBalance Sheet. We then assess the
likelihood that the deferred tax assets will beokered from future taxable income and, to the ebstenbelieve that recovery is not likely, we
establish a valuation allowance against the delaar asset.

We adopted FASB Financial Interpretation (F3N) 48,Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxeat the beginning of fiscal 2007. As
a result of the adoption of FIN 48, we recogniadilities for uncertain tax positions based ontthe-step process prescribed by the
interpretation. The first step requires us to daiee if the weight of available evidence indicattest the tax position has met the threshold for
recognition; therefore, we must evaluate whethisriitore likely than not that the position will bestained on audit, including resolution of
related appeals or litigation processes. The sestapdrequires us to measure the tax benefit aftheosition taken, or expected to be take
an income tax return as the largest amount thabi® than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimaéttlement. This measurement step is
inherently complex and requires subjective estiamatiof such amounts to determine the probabilityamfous possible outcomes. We
reevaluate the uncertain tax positions each qubased on factors including, but not limited toampes in facts or circumstances, changes in
tax law, expirations of statutes of limitation,effively settled issues under audit, and new agtivity. Such a change in recognition or
measurement would result in the recognition ofxabienefit or an additional charge to the tax priovisn the period.

Although we believe the measurement oflialbilities for uncertain tax positions is reasolealmo assurance can be given that the final
outcome of these matters will not be different thdrat is reflected in the historical income tax\ypstmns and accruals. If additional taxes are
assessed as a result of an audit or litigatiozguld have a material effect on our income tax jsiown and net income in the period or periods
for which that determination is made. We operatidiwimultiple taxing jurisdictions and are subjeztwudit in these jurisdictions. These audits
can involve complex issues which may require arrektd period of time to resolve and could resutdditional assessments of income tax.
We believe adequate provisions for income taxeg leen made for all periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. TB#% Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Biptes. SFAS 162 identifies the
sources of accounting principles and the framevimriselecting the principles used in the preparatibfinancial statements of
nongovernmental entities that are presented inoconify with generally accepted accounting princspie the United States (the GAAP
hierarchy). SFAS 162 will become effective 60 diotwing the SEC's approval of the Public Comp&mwgounting Oversight Board
amendments to AU Section 41lhe Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity Withr@eally Accepted Accounting PrincipleBased on our
current operations, we do not expect that the adloptf SFAS 162 will have a material impact on énancial position or results of operations.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS Wé2-3,Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assé=SP FAS 142-3 amends the
factors that should be considered in developingweh or extension assumptions used to determinadéfil life of a recognized intangible
asset under FASB Statement No. 1@dpdwill and Other Intangible AssetESP FAS 142-3 is effective for financial statetsessued for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, iat&dim periods within those fiscal years. Early
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adoption is prohibited. Based on our current opa@nat we do not expect that the adoption of FSP EAE3 will have a material impact on o
financial position or results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No.,TH&closures about Derivative Instruments and Heddh\ativities, an amendment of FASB

Statement No. 133SFAS 161 amends and expands the disclosure esgeits of SFAS No. 133ccounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. SFAS 161 requires entities to provide greatersparency about (a) how and why an entity usesatére instruments,
(b) how derivative instruments and related hed¢ems are accounted for under SFAS 133 and itsecklaterpretations, and (c) how derival
instruments and related hedged items affect aty&nfinancial position, results of operations aagh flows. SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods beginning after Noveniier2008. Based on our current operations, we dexpect that the adoption of SFAS 1
will have a material impact on our financial pasitior results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASIMG. (revised 2007Business CombinationgSFAS 141R). SFAS 141R establishes
principles and requirements for how an acquireogaizes and measures in its financial statemest&gtntifiable assets acquired, including
goodwill, the liabilities assumed and any non-coltitrg interest in the acquiree. The Statement alablishes disclosure requirements to
enable users of the financial statements to evalingt nature and financial effects of the busilwessbination. SFAS 141R is effective for
business combinations for which the acquisitioredsibn or after the beginning of the first anmeglorting period beginning on or after
December 15, 2008. The impact of adopting SFAS Milbe dependent on the future business comhinatthat we may pursue after its
effective date.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS M@, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities—Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 13B5AS 159 permits entities to choose to measurg/fimancial instruments and certain other items at
fair value that are not currently required to beamered at fair value. SFAS 159 requires that urmexdlgains and losses on items for which the
fair value option has been elected be reporteciniegs at each reporting date. SFAS 159 was aféeftr fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. As of the date of the adop®AS 159 did not have a material impact on ountiie position or results of operatior

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASIN®G,Fair Value MeasurementsSFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a fraonkeor
measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosat®ut fair value measurements. In February 20@8-ASB amended SFAS 157 by
issuing FSP FAS No. 157-Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Stan¢ No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements Tha
Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes o$é &assification or Measurement under Statemenand FAS No. 157-2Effective
Date of FASB Statement No. 1. In October 2008, the FASB amended SFAS 157 lyrigs=SP FAS No. 157-Betermining the Fair Value
of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Atsé&tot Active FSP FAS 157-1 amends SFAS 157 to exclude SFA8d&yunting for
Leasesand certain other lease-related accounting proremaeats. FSP FAS 157-2 delays the effective da8F&iS 157 for nonfinancial
assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except fomisethat are recognized or disclosed at fair vaiudeé financial statements on a recurring basis
(at least annually), to fiscal years beginningrdftevember 15, 2008. FSP FAS 157-3 clarifies thaiegtion of SFAS 157 in a market that is
not active and provides an example to illustrate densiderations in determining the fair value dihancial asset when the market for that
financial asset is not active. We adopted certadwipions of SFAS 157 effective December 30, 205 (Note 6Fair Value of Financial
Instruments, to the Consolidated Financial Statements fortamdhl information). Based on our current operadione do not expect that the
adoption of the provisions deferred by FSP FAS 25vill have a material impact on our financial gimsi or results of operations. FSP
FAS 157-3 was effective upon issuance, includingrperiods for which financial statements havelm¢n issued. The adoption of FSP
FAS 157-3 did not have a material impact on ouaritial position or results of operations.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk
Interest Income¢

Our investment portfolio includes cash hcequivalents, short-term investments and long-fesastments. Our main investment
objectives are the preservation of investment ahpitd the maximization of aftésx returns on our investment portfolio. Our ingri@come i
sensitive to changes in the general level of Lh&rest rates. Based on our investment portfolidihgs as of January 3, 2009 and
December 29, 2007, an immediate 100 basis poiringeia the yield for such instruments would deseaur annual interest income by
approximately $3.3 million and $5.7 million, respeely. We believe that our investment policy imeervative, both in the duration of our
investments and the credit quality of the investimeve hold.

Headquarters Lease Re

We are exposed to interest rate fluctuatiorthe normal course of our business, includimgugh our corporate headquarters leases. The
base rents for these leases are calculated usiagadble interest rate based on the three-montfORBWe have entered into interest rate swap
agreements with notional values of $44.3 milliod &50.1 million and, effectively, fixed the rentyp@aent amounts on these leases through
March 2011 and March 2013, respectively. The falug of the interest rate swap agreements at JaBu2009 was a $5.6 million obligation.

Longterm Investments

Our long-term investments consist primaofyauction-rate securities. Beginning in fiscabD80auctions for many of our auction-rate
securities failed because sell orders exceedeaiiers. As of January 3, 2009, we held $58.0 mnilhar value auction-rate securities, all of
which experienced failed auctions during the y&ae principal associated with failed auctions areaxpected to be accessible until a
successful auction occurs, the issuer redeemstheises, a buyer is found outside of the aucfiozcess or the underlying securities mature.
We are unable to predict if these funds will becavailable before their maturity dates. Additiogaif we determine that an other-than-
temporary decline in the fair value of any of ouaiéable-for-sale auctionate securities has occurred, we may be requiredijtest the carryin
value of the investments through an impairmentgéaln November 2008, we entered into an agreemiémiUBS, which provides us certain
rights to sell to UBS the auction-rate securitidsolt were purchased through them. As of Janua?@@9, we held $26.2 million par value
auction-rate securities purchased from UBS. We llag@ption to sell these securities to UBS atvaduie from June 30, 2010 through July 2,
2012. See Note Financial Instruments to the Consolidated Financial Statements fortaafdil information.

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a

The Financial Statements and supplemelaty required by this item are included in Partltéin 15 of this Form 16 and are present
beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation under tipevision and with the participation of our managet, including our Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), thie effectiveness of our disclosure controls amd@dures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Brgk Act). Based on that evaluation, our management
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including our CEO and CFO, concluded that our disaie controls and procedures were effective damfiary 3, 2009 to provide reasonable
assurance that information required to be discléigeds in the reports filed or submitted by us urtle Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ied in the SEC's rules and forms. Such disclesuamtrols and procedures include
controls and procedures designed to ensure thaniation required to be disclosed is accumulateticammunicated to our management,
including our CEO and CFO, to allow timely decisaegarding required disclosures. There was nogehamour internal controls during the
fiscal quarter ended January 3, 2009 that materéddected, or is reasonably likely to materialffeat, our internal controls over financial
reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlisand maintaining adequate internal control divemncial reporting. Our internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assu@ooe management and Board of Directors regarttiagreparation and fair presentation
of published financial statements.

Our management assessed the effectivefiess mternal control over financial reporting @sJanuary 3, 2009. In making this
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by thar@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (COSO) imternal
Control—Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment we believe that, angéda3, 2009, our internal control over financgporting is
effective based on those criteria.

Our independent registered public accogrfitm, Ernst & Young LLP, issued an attestatiopa® on our internal control over financial
reporting. This report appears on page F-1.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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Part Ill

Certain information required by Part Illamitted from this report because we intend todildefinitive Proxy Statement pursuant to
Regulation 14A (the "Proxy Statement") no latemth20 days after the end of the fiscal year covesethis report, and certain information to
be included therein is incorporated herein by egfee.

Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance

Set forth below is information regarding tixecutive officers and directors of Silicon Ledtories as of January 31, 2009.

Name Age Position

Navdeep S. Sooc 46 Chairman of the Boar

Necip Sayine 43 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
William G. Bock 58 Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presid
Jonathan D. lveste 53 Senior Vice President of Worldwide Operatic
Kurt W. Hoff 51 Vice President of Worldwide Sal

Paul V. Walsh, Jr 44 Chief Accounting Officer and Vice President of Hine
David R. Wellanc 53 Vice President and Direct

Harvey B. Casl 70 Director

Nelson C. Chai 47 Director

R. Ted Enloe Il 70 Director

Kristen M. Onker 59 Director

Laurence G. Walke 60 Director

William P. Wood 53 Director

Navdeep S. Sooch co-founded Silicon Lalooies in August 1996 and has served as Chairm#redBoard since our inception.
Mr. Sooch served as our Chief Executive Officenfrour inception through the end of fiscal 2003 aar/ed as interim Chief Executive
Officer from April 2005 to September 2005. From klad 985 until founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr.dg8t held various positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Vice Presitef Engineering, as well as Product
Planning Manager of Strategic Marketing and De&iggineer. From May 1982 to March 1985, Mr. Soock wd®esign Engineer with AT&T
Bell Labs. Mr. Sooch holds a B.S. in Electrical Ergring from the University of Michigan, Dearband an M.S. in Electrical Engineering
from Stanford University.

Necip Sayiner has served as director, 8eesiand Chief Executive Officer since Septemb@®52@rior to joining Silicon Laboratories,
Mr. Sayiner held various leadership positions aggSystems Inc. From August 2004 to September,20055ayiner served as Vice Presic
and General Manager of Agere's Enterprise and N&tag Division and from March 2002 to August 2002 derved as Vice President and
General Manager of Agere's Networking IC DivisiMr. Sayiner holds a B.S. in electrical engineermgl physics from Bosphorus University
in Turkey, an M.S. in Electrical Engineering fromaushern lllinois University, and a Ph.D. in Electi Engineering from the University of
Pennsylvania.

William G. Bock has served as Senior Vicesitlent of Finance and Administration and Chiefaficial Officer since November 2006.
Mr. Bock joined Silicon Laboratories as a diredtoMarch 2000, and served as Chairman of the aoditmittee until November 2006 when
stepped down from the Board of Directors to asshimeurrent role. From April 2001 to November 2008, Bock participated in the venture
capital industry, principally as a partner with @R oint Ventures. From February 1997 to March 200l Bock led DAZEL Corporation, a
provider of electronic information delivery systermstially as its President and Chief Executivdi€dr and subsequent to its acquisition
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by Hewlett-Packard in June 1999 as an HP Vice &easiand General Manager. Prior to 1997, Mr. Basked as Chief Operating Officer of
Tivoli Systems, a client server software compamyu&red by IBM in March 1996, in senior sales anthficial management positions with
Convex Computer Corporation and began his cargérTexas Instruments. Mr. Bock holds a B.S. in CatepScience from lowa State
University and an M.S. in Industrial Administratifmom Carnegie Mellon University.

Jonathan D. Ivester joined Silicon Laborig®in September 1997 as Vice President. He sexs&ce President of Worldwide Operati
since May 2005. Mr. Ivester was promoted to Se¥ioe President of Worldwide Operations in June 2088m May 1984 to September 19
Mr. Ivester was with Applied Materials, a supplerequipment and services to the semiconductorsimguand served as Director of
Manufacturing and Director of U.S. Procurementddiion to various engineering and manufacturinghaggement positions. Mr. Ivester was a
scientist at Bechtel Corporation, an engineerindj@nstruction company, from 1980 to 1982 and atohkbinc., an ultrafiltration company and
subsidiary of Koch Industries, from 1978 to 1980. Mester holds a B.S. in Chemistry from the Mabsesetts Institute of Technology and an
M.B.A. from Stanford University.

Kurt W. Hoff has served as Vice Presiddntorldwide Sales for Silicon Laboratories sincéy2007. From 2005 until July 2007, he
managed the company's European sales and oper&iamsto joining Silicon Laboratories in 2005, Mitoff served as president, chief
executive officer and director of Cognio, a spettrmanagement company. Mr. Hoff also managed theatipas and sales of C-Port
Corporation, a network processor company acquiyeldtorola in May 2000. Additionally, Mr. Hoff spéd0 years in various sales positions
at AMD. Mr. Hoff holds an M.B.A. from the Univergiof Chicago and a B.S. degree in Physics fromthieersity of lllinois.

Paul V. Walsh, Jr. joined Silicon Labor&srin January 2004 as Director of Finance, Wortthw®©perations, and was appointed Corpc
Controller in May 2005. In November 2006, Mr. Waishs promoted to Vice President and Chief Accogn@fficer. In January 2009,
Mr. Walsh was appointed to the Board of Directdr&mnde Communications Holdings, Inc., a providiecable, internet and phone services,
and will serve as the Chairman of the Audit Comeeitand as a member of the Finance Committee. #rjoining Silicon Laboratories,
Mr. Walsh was Site Controller from February 2003Jamuary 2004 with PerkinElmer, a supplier to tealth sciences and photonics markets.
From 1992 to 2003, Mr. Walsh held various operatipfinance and management roles at Teradyne aatbg§evices. Mr. Walsh received
his B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the Uniugrsf Maine, and an M.B.A from Boston University.

David R. Welland co-founded Silicon Laborégs in August 1996, has served as a Vice Presatehdirector since our inception and was
appointed Fellow in March 2004. From November 106fil founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Wellandltiezarious positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Senior Deskngineer. Mr. Welland holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts tingtiof Technology.

Harvey B. Cash has served as a direct8ilion Laboratories since June 1997. Mr. Cashseaged as general partner of InterWest
Partners, a venture capital firm, since 1986. MasiCcurrently serves on the Board of Directordieffollowing public companies: Ciena
Corporation, a designer and manufacturer of dersselength division multiplexing systems for fibgatic networks; Argo Group International
Holdings, Ltd., a specialty insurance company; Binst Acceptance Corp, a provider of low-cost dagurance. Mr. Cash holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from Texas A&M Universitycaan M.B.A. from Western Michigan University.

Nelson C. Chan has served as a direct8ilicbn Laboratories since September 2007. Mr. Gham independent consultant in the
semiconductor and consumer electronics industgmHAbdecember 2006 through July 2008, Mr. Chan seaggoresident and chief executive
officer of Magellan, a leading maker of GPS devifl@sconsumer and professional applications. He sésves on the board
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of directors of Synaptics Incorporated, a proviofeuser interface solutions for mobile electrormppkances. From 1992 through 2006,

Mr. Chan served in various senior management positivith SanDisk Corporation, including most regeas Executive Vice President and
General Manager of the Consumer Business. From 983892, Mr. Chan held various marketing and esgjiing positions at Chips and
Technologies, Signetics, and Delco Electronics.®han holds a B.S. in Electrical and Computer Eegiimg from the University of Californ
at Santa Barbara, and an M.B.A. from Santa Claradysity.

R. Ted Enloe Ill has served as a direct@ilicon Laboratories since April 2003. Mr. Enlecurrently the Managing General Partner of
Balquita Partners, Ltd., a family investment fifareviously, Mr. Enloe served as President and (Ewxeftutive Officer of Optisoft, Inc., a
provider of intelligent traffic signal platforms.MEnloe formerly served as Vice Chairman and merobéhe office of chief executive of
Compag Computer Corporation. He also served asderéof Lomas Financial Corporation and Libertedstors for more than 15 years.

Mr. Enloe co-founded a number of other publiclychiéims, including Capstead Mortgage Corp., TylabGt Mortgage Securities Corp., and
Seaman's Corp. Mr. Enloe currently serves on trerdof Directors of Leggett & Platt, Inc. and LiMation, Inc. Mr. Enloe holds a B.S. in
Engineering from Louisiana Polytechnic Universihda J.D. from Southern Methodist University.

Kristen M. Onken has served as a direct@ilacon Laboratories since September 2007. Mkédrretired from Logitech in May 2006, a
maker of electronics peripherals, where she sesgefenior Vice President, Finance, and Chief Fiad@fficer from February 1999 to May
2006. From September 1996 to February 1999, Msef®@skrved as Vice President of Finance at FujiGCBrporation, the U.S. subsidiary of
the Japanese electronics manufacturer. From 198g¢ptember 1996, Ms. Onken was employed by Sundglystems initially as Controller of
the Southwest Area, and later as Director of FieaBun Professional Services. Ms. Onken holds afBi® Southern lllinois University, and
an M.B.A. in Finance from the University of Chicago

Laurence G. Walker has served as a dir@ft8ilicon Laboratories since June 2003. Previpudlr. Walker co-founded and served as
Chief Executive Officer of QRort Corporation, a pioneer in the network processtustry, which was acquired by Motorola in 20B806llowing
the acquisition, Mr. Walker served as Vice PresiaddrStrategy for Motorola's Network and ComputBgstems Group and then as Vice
President and General Manager of the Network amdptiting Systems Group until 2002. From August 1@9Blay 1997, Mr. Walker served
as Chief Executive Officer of CertCo, a digitaltdfération supplier. Mr. Walker served as Vice Rdemt and General Manager, Network
Products Business Unit, of Digital Equipment Cogtimn, a computer hardware company, from Janua®y 1® July 1996. From 1981 to 19¢
he held a variety of other management positiofiZigital Equipment Corporation. Mr. Walker holds &Bin Electrical Engineering from
Princeton University and an M.S. and Ph.D. in Eleat Engineering from the Massachusetts Instiait€echnology.

William P. Wood has served as a directoBiti€on Laboratories since March 1997 and as L®is€elctor since December 2005. Since
1996, Mr. Wood has also served as general parfnarmus funds associated with Silverton Partnangenture capital firm. From 1984 to
2003, Mr. Wood was a general partner, and for oeftands created since 1996, a special limitedngartof various funds associated with
Austin Ventures, a venture capital firm. Mr. Woaalds a B.A. in History from Brown University and &B.A. from Harvard University.

The remaining information required by thém is incorporated by reference to the ProxyeStesnt under the sections captioned "Prog
One: Election of Directors”, "Executive Compensaltjd'Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportingn@liance” and "Code of Ethics."
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ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the caption "Execeti@ompensation” and "Proposal One: Election of @ims" appearing in the Proxy Statement,
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibfOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Métrs

The information under the caption "Ownepsbii Securities" and "Equity Compensation Plan imfation” appearing in the Proxy
Statement, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information under the caption "Certilationships and Related Transactions, and Dirdatiependence " appearing in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information under the caption "Propdsab: Ratification of Appointment of Independentd®aered Public Accounting Firm"
appearing in the Proxy Statement is incorporatedihdy reference.
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Part IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes

(a) 1. Financial Statemer

I ndex
Page
Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-1
Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets at January 3, 200®acember 29, 200 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended January 3, 2009, December 29, 2007 acehiber 30, 200 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholHersty for the fiscal years ended January 3, 208&%ember 29, 2007 al
December 30, 200 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the lfigears ended January 3, 2009, December 29, 20)Dacember 30, 20C F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-7
2. Schedules
All schedules have been omitted since itfi@mation required by the schedule is not appligatr is not present in amou
sufficient to require submission of the schedutdyecause the information required is includedhn€Consolidated Financial
Statements and notes thereto.
3. Exhibits
The exhibits listed on the accompanyingintb exhibits immediately following the ConsoliddtFinancial Statements are
filed as part of, or hereby incorporated by refeeeimto, this Form 10-K.
(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number
2.1* Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated Jun2@B, by and among Silicon Laboratories Inc.ingWerger Sub, Inc
Integration Associates Incorporated and Sharehdtépresentative Services, LLC (filed as Exhibit . the Form 8-K filed
June 25, 2008
3.1* Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Certificattmadrporation of Silicon Laboratories Inc. (filed Bxhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-tui#ees and Exchange Commission File No. 333-9486® "IPO
Registration Statement")
3.2% Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Silicon Latbdes Inc (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registtawtnnual Report on
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 20|
4.1* Specimen certificate for shares of common stod&dfas Exhibit 4.1 to the IPO Registration Stateth:
10.1* Form of Indemnification Agreement between Silicabbratories Inc. and each of its directors and wiez officers (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the IPO Registration Stateme
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Exhibit
Number
10.2*+ Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Ffiled as Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant's Regitstm Statement on Forn-8
(Securities and Exchange Commission File No-60794) filed on May 11, 2001
10.3*+ Form of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Grafrbtock Option under Registrant's 2000 Stock ltigerPlan (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Annual Report annk 1(-K for the year ended January 1, 20(
10.4*+ Form of Addendum to Stock Option Agreement undegifeant's 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (filed as BiHi0.4 to the

Registrant's Annual Report on Formr-K for the year ended January 1, 20(



10.5%+

10.6*+

10.7*%+

10.8*+

10.9*+

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*+

10.15*

Form of Stock Issuance Agreement under Registra@0€ Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 1@53He Registrant's Annt
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended January 1, 20(

Form of Addendum to Stock Issuance Agreement uRaegistrant's 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (filed akiBix10.6 to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Formr-K for the year ended January 1, 20(

Silicon Laboratories Inc. Employee Stock Purchdse Filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's AahReport on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 20!

Employment Agreement dated August 30, 2005 betv&igon Laboratories Inc. and Dr. Necip Sayineleffias Exhibit 10.1
to the Form -K filed September 12, 200&

Employment Agreement dated November 3, 2006 bet@daon Laboratories Inc. and William Bock (files Exhibit 10.1 to
the Form K filed November 8, 2006

Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement datatiM30, 2006 among Silicon Laboratories Inc., BAtestment &
Advisory, Inc. and Gary S. Farmer (filed as Exhitiit1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Fa-K filed on April 5, 2006).

Participation Agreement dated March 30, 2006 anfitigon Laboratories Inc., BAL Investment & Advigginc., Wells Farg:
Bank Northwest, National Association and variouseoffinancial institutions named therein (filedEaghibit 10.2 to the
Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on April 5, 2006).

Sale and Purchase Agreement dated February 8,i808id between NXP B.V., NXP Semiconductors Fr&3®g, Silicon
Laboratories Inc. and Silicon Laboratories Inteiovad! Pte. Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Reégast's Current Report on
Form &K filed on February 9, 2007

Intellectual Property License Agreement dated adafch 23, 2007, by and among Silicon Laboratames, Silicon
Laboratories International Pte. Ltd., NXP B.V. &4®P Semiconductors France SAS (filed as Exhibiil10.the Registrant's
Current Report on Formr-K filed on March 29, 2007

Amendment to Stock Options Agreement between Sillcaboratories Inc. and William G. Bock dated Ju®y 2007 (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomm ¢-K filed on July 20, 2007

Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement datatiM14, 2008 among Silicon Laboratories Inc., Bfasing BSC, LLC
and Gary S. Farmer (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thgiReant's Current Report on Forr-K filed on March 19, 2008
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Exhibit

1Ol.\l;2;’?er Participation Agreement dated March 14&@among Silicon Laboratories Inc., BA Leasing BEOC, Wells Fargo Bank
Northwest, National Association and various otliearicial institutions named therein (filed as Exhi®.2 to the Registrant
Current Report on Formr-K filed on March 19, 2008

10.17*+ Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2009 Bonus Plan (filedexibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Reporfonm 8-K filed on
January 29, 2009

21 Subsidiaries of the Registra

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

24 Power of Attorney (included on signature page i Borm 1(-K).

31.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officets eequired by Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley

31.2 Certification of the Principal Accounting Officeas required by Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

321 Certification as required by Section 906 of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002

* Incorporated herein by reference to the indicailethf

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectionrlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, réegistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized, in Austin, Texas, on February @2

SILICON LABORATORIES INC.

By: /s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayiner
President and
Chief Executive Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatleperson whose signature appears below constangappoints Necip Sayiner
and William G. Bock, and each of them, acting indiixally, as his or her attorney-fact, each with full power of substitution and restitution
for him or her and in his or her name, place arddtin any and all capacities, to sign any andrafndments to this annual report on Form 10.
K and other documents in connection herewith aedethith, and to file the same, with all exhibiteréto, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact agents, and each of them, full power and authtwitlo and perform each and every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done inemiion herewith and therewith and about the prespias fully to all intents and purposes as
he or she might or could do in person, herebyyiatf and confirming all that said attorneys-in-faad agents, or any of them, or their or his
substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or catesbe done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and orddtes indicated:
Name

Title Date

/sl NAVDEEP S. SOOCH
Chairman of the Board

February 9, 200
Navdeep S. Sooc

/s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine

/sl WILLIAM G. BOCK

William G. Bock

/s/ PAUL V. WALSH, JR.

Paul V. Walsh, Jt

President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director (Principal
Executive Officer;

February 9, 200

Senior Vice President and Ct
Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer)

February 9, 200

Vice President (Principal

Accounting Officer) February 9, 200
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Name

/s DAVID R. WELLAND

David R. Wellanc

/sl HARVEY B. CASH

Harvey B. Casl

/s/ NELSON C. CHAN

Title Date

Vice President and Director

February 9, 200

Director February 9, 200



Nelson C. Cha

/sl ROBERT TED ENLOE, IlI

Robert Ted Enloe, Il

/s/ KRISTEN M. ONKEN

Kristen M. Onker

/sl LAURENCE G. WALKER

Laurence G. Walke

/s/ WILLIAM P. WOOD

William P. Wood

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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February 9, 200

February 9, 200
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicor.aboratories Inc.

We have audited Silicon Laboratories Inaternal control over financial reporting as ohdary 3, 2009, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGloenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (the COSO
criteria). Silicon Laboratories Inc.'s managemsmesponsible for maintaining effective internahirol over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagement's Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiig to express an opinion on the company's interoiatrol over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etést#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstanceddlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaiborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could bawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Silicon Laboratories Incaimtained, in all material respects, effective iné control over financial reporting as of
January 3, 2009, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Silicon Laboratdniesas of January 3, 2009 and December 29, 200¥the related consolidated statemen
income, changes in stockholders' equity, and das¥sffor each of the three fiscal years in theqeended January 3, 2009 of Silicon
Laboratories Inc. and our report dated Februarn2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 10, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicor.aboratories Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cons@itbtlance sheets of Silicon Laboratories Incfdsiouary 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007,
and the related consolidated statements of incohanges in stockholders' equity, and cash flowg#ah of the three fiscal years in the period
ended January 3, 2009. These financial statemeats@ responsibility of the Company's managent@ut.responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementieneed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Silicon Laboratories Inc. at January 3, 2009 anddb&er 29, 2007, and the consolidated results afpierations and its cash flows for each of
the three fiscal years in the period ended JanB,a2909, in conformity with U.S. generally accepéedounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtdoard (United States), Silicon
Laboratories Inc.'s internal control over financighorting as of January 3, 2009, based on criestablished in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission and our ttegiied February 10, 2009
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 10, 2009
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 2¢

January 3,
2009 2007
Assets

Current assett

Cash and cash equivalel $172,27. $ 264,40

Shor-term investment 101,26° 308,56t

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $1,011 at January 3, 2009 and $512eember 29

2007 36,14« 51,21:

Inventories 28,29: 28,581

Deferred income taxe 6,43¢ 6,02¢

Prepaid expenses and other current a: 18,297 33,89¢
Total current asse 362,71. 692,69.
Long-term investment 51,82 —
Property, equipment and software, 30,49¢ 28,15%
Goodwill 105,51! 73,19¢
Other intangible assets, r 49,72¢ 18,077
Other assets, n 23,97 28,12:
Total asset $624,24' $ 840,24t

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 22,27 $ 33,32

Accrued expense 29,11¢ 26,39%

Deferred income on shipments to distribut 21,59¢ 28,44t

Income taxe: 4 5,22¢
Total current liabilities 72,99¢ 93,39:
Long-term obligations and other liabiliti¢ 48,78¢ 43,30¢
Total liabilities 121,78 136,70:
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity

Preferred stoc—$0.0001 par value; 10,000 shares authorized; ne@shssued and outstandi — —

Common stock—$0.0001 par value; 250,000 share®anéd; 44,613 and 52,810 shares issued and odistpat

January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, respec 4 5

Additional paic-in capital 75,71 303,68.

Retained earninc 432,79: 399,85¢

Accumulated other comprehensive i (6,04¢) —
Total stockholders' equi 502,46( 703,54!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $624,24" $ 840,24t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenue:
Cost of revenue

Gross profit
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
In-process research and developn
Operating expense
Operating incomi
Other income (expense
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Other income (expense), r

Income from continuing operations before incomet
Provision for income taxe

Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operations, net of incaaxe:

Net income

Basic earnings per shal
Income from continuing operatiol
Net income

Diluted earnings per shat
Income from continuing operatiol
Net income

Weightec-average common shares outstand
Basic
Diluted

Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
January 3,

2009 2007 2006
$415,63( $ 337,46: $ 288,15t
159,84! 130,22! 100,67¢
255,78! 207,23t 187,47¢
101,20! 89,32( 89,80¢
100,67- 94,81¢ 89,02:
10,25( — 2,60(
212,12¢ 184,13¢ 181,42¢
43,65¢ 23,097 6,052
10,44¢ 24,52°¢ 13,74¢
(437) (62¢€) (872)
(55€) (46<) 744
53,11¢ 46,52¢ 19,66¢
20,18: 6,83¢ 4,32¢
32,93¢ 39,68 15,34:
— 165,14¢ 15,81¢
$ 32,93 $ 204,83t $ 31,15¢
$ 068 $ 07z $ 0.2¢
$ 068 $ 3.74  $ 0.5¢€
$ 067 $ 0.7C $ 0.27
$ 067 $ 364 $ 0.5¢
48,10¢ 54,82¢ 55,34¢
48,98¢ 56,32 57,20:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderSquity

(in thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2(
Net income
Stock issuances under employee plans, net of shéttgseld for taxe:
Income tax benefit from employee st-based award
Repurchases of common stc
Reclass due to the adoption of SFAS 1.
Stock compensatic

Balance as of December 30, 2(
Net income
Stock issuances under employee plans, net of shéttgseld for taxe:
Income tax benefit from employee st-based award
Repurchases of common stc
Stock compensatic

Balance as of December 29, 2(

Comprehensive incom
Net income

Unrealized losses on availa-for-sale securities, net of tax of $1,:

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges, net of {t$4 861
Total comprehensive incon

Stock issuances under employee plans, net of shattgseld for taxe:
Income tax benefit from employee st-based award

Repurchases of common stc

Stock compensatic

Purchase acquisitic

Balance as of January 3, 2C

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Other Total

Deferred Stock Retainec Comprehensive Stockholders
Number Par Paid-In

of Share« Value Capital Compensation Earnings Loss Equity
5453( $ 5% 33528 $ (1,105$163,86: $ — $ 498,04t
— — — —  31,15¢ — 31,15¢
1,82¢ — 36,86 — — — 36,86:
— - 13,04« — — — 13,04«
(1,559 — (50,04¢) — — — (50,04¢)
- — (1,109 1,10¢ — — —
- = 39,617 — — — 39,617
54,80: 5 373,65! — 195,02 — 568,68:
- = — — 204,83t — 204,83t
2,448 —  41,53¢ — — — 41,53¢
- — 4,69¢ — — — 4,69¢
(4,437) — (163,18) — — — (163,18)
- = 46,977 — — — 46,977
52,81( 5 303,68. — 399,85¢ — 703,54!
- — — — 32,93 — 32,93t
- = — — — (2,406) (2,40¢)
[ — — — — (3,647) (3,647)
26,887
97z  — 4,26¢ — — — 4,26¢
- — 962 — — — 96°
9,37) (1) (280,280 — — — (280,28
- = 40,56¢ — — — 40,56¢
20z — 6,521 — — — 6,521
44611 $ 4% 7571 $ — $432,79. $ (6,04¢) $ 502,46(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praViol operating activities
Income from discontinued operatic
Depreciation and amortization of property, equiptreerd softwar¢
Loss on disposal of property, equipment and soft
Amortization of other intangible assets and otesete
Stock compensation exper
Purchased -process research and developr
Additional income tax benefit from employee st-based award
Excess income tax benefit from employee s-based award
Deferred income taxe
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Deferred income on shipments to distribui
Income taxe:

Net cash provided by operating activities of comitig operation:
Investing Activities

Purchases of availal-for-sale investment

Proceeds from sales and maturities of avai-for-sale investment
Purchases of property, equipment and softy

Proceeds from the sale of ass

Purchases of other ass

Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acqt

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activibgésontinuing operation
Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of common st

Excess income tax benefit from employee s-based award
Repurchases of common stc

Repurchases of stock to satisfy employee tax withihg

Payments on del

Net cash used in financing activities of continuaggeration:
Discontinued Operations

Operating activitie:

Investing activities

Financing activitie:

Net cash provided by discontinued operati
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv:

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest paic

Income taxes pai

Year Ended

January 3, December 2¢ December 3C

2009 2007 2006
$ 3293 $ 204,83t $ 31,15¢
— (165,149 (15,815
10,76¢ 11,10¢ 13,27(
68t 64 712
7,85¢ 4,98( 4,72(
40,66¢ 39,97¢ 31,02¢
10,25( — 2,60(
832 2,997 11,87(
(88¢) (1,959 (6,639
1,81¢ (15%3) (7,929
19,61¢ (14,559 (2,627)
3,72¢ (6,399 (10,357
11,41: 9,271 (6,876
(5,639 (3,129 (1,34¢)
(6,202) 3,06( 9,96:
(6,84¢) 7,88( 5,91¢
(1,316) (48,84°) (3,33%)
119,68: 43,98 56,33
(151,47() (555,79%) (404,66
304,92 565,33t 349,76t
(12,525 (5,38%) (22,319
14,26¢ 270,75( 2,032
(7,557) (9,502) (3,659
(78,477) (8,540 (15,71))
69,17( 256,85¢ (94,557)
9,22( 21,86 32,93¢
88¢ 1,95¢ 6,63¢
(286,141) (157,33) (50,04¢)
(4,95€) (6,50%) (1,29%)
— — (774)
(280,98%) (140,01)) (12,547
— 10,79: 28,06:
— (1,659 (15,606
— 26,24¢ 5,98¢
— 35,38t 18,44(
(92,13¢) 196,22( (32,31¢)
264,40t 68,18¢ 100,50«
$ 172,27. % 264,40t $ 68,18¢
$ 44C  $ 70 % 631
$ 1861 $ 49,19. $ 8,51¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 3, 2009

1. Description of Business

Silicon Laboratories Inc. (the "Company)Delaware corporation, develops and markets méigalal analog intensive integrated circuits
(ICs) for a broad range of applications for glotmearkets. Within the semiconductor industry, the @any is known as a "fabless" company
meaning that the ICs are manufactured by thirdydadndry semiconductor companies.

In March 2007, the Company sold its Aeemsceiver, AeroFONE single-chip phone and powerdifierproduct lines (the "Aero product
lines") to NXP B.V. and NXP Semiconductors FrangesScollectively "NXP"). The financial results df¢ sold product lines have been
presented as discontinued operations in the Calaeli Financial Statements. See Not®i8continued Operationfor additional information.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolioia

The Company prepares financial statememts $2-53 week year that ends on the Saturdaystlts®ecember 31. Fiscal 2008 had
53 weeks with the extra week occurring in the fipsérter of the year and ended January 3, 2008alRigars 2007 and 2006 were 52-week
years and ended December 29, 2007 and Decemb20@®, respectively. The accompanying Consolidatedrieial Statements include t
accounts of the Company and its wholly owned suésés. All significant intercompany balances arahsactions have been eliminated.

Foreign Currency Transactior

The functional currency of the Companyieign subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar; accordinglygains and losses resulting from
remeasuring transactions denominated in curreinties than U.S. dollars are included in net income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiwetttae amounts reported in the financial statet®@nd accompanying notes. Among
the significant estimates affecting the financtatements are those related to inventories, stogkpensation, long-term investments, goodwiill,
long-lived assets and income taxes. Actual resoltdd differ from those estimates, and such difiees could be material to the financial
statements.

Reclassification:
Certain reclassifications have been mageito year financial statements to conform withreat year presentation.
Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The Company's financial instruments aremed at amounts that reflect the Company's estimiatheir fair values. SFAS 15Fair Value
Measuremeniprovides a hierarchal disclosure framework
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
January 3, 2009

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

associated with the level of subjectivity used i@asuring assets and liabilities at fair value. ffinee levels defined by the SFAS 157 hierarchy
are as follows:

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices iivacharkets for identical assets or liabilitiegteg measurement date.

Level 2—Inputs are inputs other than quoted priceided within Level 1 that are observable for #isset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3—Inputs are unobservable for the assetabilify and are developed based on the best infiomavailable in the
circumstances, which might include the Company's deta.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cephgits and investments with original maturitiesioiety days or less when purchased.

Investment:

The Company's investments consist primafilgnunicipal bonds, U.S. government agency nobelsaaiction-rate securities. These
securities typically have original maturities gexahan ninety days as of the date of purchaseendlassified as available-for-sale or trading
securities. Investments in available-for-sale séesrare reported at fair value, with unrealizaihg and losses, net of tax, recorded as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive ind@as) in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Investsne trading securities are reported
at fair value, with both realized and unrealizethgand losses recorded in other income (expense)n the Consolidated Statement of
Income. Investments in which the Company has tfil#yalnd intent, if necessary, to liquidate in erdo support its current operations
(including those with contractual maturities gredktan one year from the date of purchase) arasifiled as short-term. The Company's long-
term investments consist primarily of auction-regeurities.

The Company reviews its available-for-saleestments as of the end of each reporting pddodther-than-temporary declines in fair
value based on the specific identification methidie Company considers various factors in deterrgimihether an impairment is other-than-
temporary, including the severity and durationh&f impairment, changes in underlying credit ratifiggecasted recovery, its ability and intent
to hold the investment for a period of time suffiti to allow for any anticipated recovery in markaiue, counterparty risk and the probability
that the scheduled cash payments will continueetmbde. When the Company concludes that an othas¢mporary impairment has result
the difference between the fair value and the aagryalue is written off and recorded as an impaintrcharge in the Consolidated Stateme
Income.

Derivative Financial Instrumenti

The Company uses derivative financial instents to manage exposures to the variability tef@st rates used to calculate base rents for
its corporate headquarters leases. The Compangstiob is to offset gains and losses resultingnfichanges in interest rates with losses and
gains on the derivative contracts, thereby reducoigtility of earnings. The Company does not usev@tive contracts for speculative
purposes. The Company recognizes derivatives i€tresolidated Balance
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
January 3, 2009

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Sheet at fair value and reports them in other asset or long-term obligations and other liakekti The effective portion of the gain or loss on
interest rate swaps is recorded in accumulated etiraprehensive loss as a separate componentabhstders' equity. Cash flows from
derivatives are classified as cash flows from djirggaactivities in the Consolidated Statement o$ICRlows.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of abstermined using the first-in, first-out method market.
Property, Equipment and Softwe

Property, equipment, and software are dtateost, net of accumulated depreciation and @zation. Depreciation and amortization are
computed using the straight-line method over treduldives of the assets ranging from three to frears. Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the contractual lease periodair tiseful life, whichever is shorter.

Long-Lived Assets

Purchased intangible assets are statemsgtret of accumulated amortization, and are drsattusing the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, ranging from two to twejears.

The Company evaluates its long-lived assitsfinite lives in accordance with FASB SFAS Nal4, Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-lived Assets Long-lived assets "held and used" by the Compaayreviewed for impairment whenever events or gharn
circumstances indicate that their net book valug nw be recoverable. When such factors and cirtamess exist, the Company compares the
projected undiscounted future cash flows associatédthe related asset or group of assets ovér élséimated useful lives, against their
respective carrying amounts. Impairment, if anjgdased on the excess of the carrying amount oediaihvalue of those assets and is recorded
in the period in which the determination was made.

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewatleast annually by the Company for possible impant in accordance with FASB SFAS
No. 142,Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset3he goodwill impairment test is a two-step pracdde first step of the impairment analysis
compares the fair value of the company or reportinigj to the net book value of the company or répgrunit. In determining fair value,
SFAS 142 allows for the use of several valuatiothmdologies, although it states quoted market prére the best evidence of fair value. If
results of the first step demonstrate that thének value is greater than the fair value, the Camypmust proceed to step two of the analysis.
Step two of the analysis compares the impliedvaiue of goodwill to its carrying amount. If theroang amount of goodwill exceeds its
implied fair value, an impairment loss is recogdizgual to that excess. The Company tests gooftwilinpairment annually as of the first d
of its fourth fiscal quarter and in interim periaflevents occur that would indicate that the caugwalue of goodwill may be impaired.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue Recognitic

Revenues are generated almost exclusiyesales of the Company's ICs. The Company recogmeaeenue when all of the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehaean arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsokasrred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonabdg@ed. Revenue from product sales to direct cies®mand contract manufacturers is
recognized upon shipment or delivery, as applicabétain of the Company's sales are made to lligtnis under agreements allowing certain
rights of return and price protection related te fimal selling price to the end customers. Accagtli, the Company defers revenue and cost of
revenue on such sales until the distributors kellproduct to the end customer.

Shipping and Handling
Shipping and handling costs are classidi@d component of cost of revenues in the Congdetidatatements of Income.
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has two stock-based compemsplms, the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and the Byea Stock Purchase Plan. The
Company accounts for those plans under the redogrdahd measurement provisions of FASB SFAS No.(t®dsed 2004)Share-Based
Paymen, (SFAS 123R). Under SFAS 123R, companies are redjtid account for such transactions using a faline’ method and recognize
the expense in their statement of income.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incukégertising expenses were $1.7 million, $1.1 railliand $1.6 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes @o@ance with FASB SFAS No. 108¢ccounting for Income Taxed his statement requires
the use of the asset and liability method wheredferied tax asset and liability account balanceslatermined based on differences between
financial reporting and the tax bases of assetdiahilities and are measured using the enactethtag and related rates that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. Tdifeeences result in deferred tax assets andlitial, which are included in the Company's
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company then a&sstmslikelihood that the deferred tax assetsheiltecovered from future taxable inco
A valuation allowance is established against detetax assets to the extent the Company beliea¢sabovery is not likely based on the level
of historical taxable income and projections faufe taxable income over the periods in which dmegorary differences are deductible.

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation (RtN) 48,Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes the beginning of fiscal 2007.
FIN 48 provides specific guidance for the finanai@tement recognition, measurement and discladuracertain tax positions recognized in
an enterprise's financial statements. Income takipos must meet a more-likely-thaot threshold to be recognized in the financialesteents
and the tax benefits recognized are measured loastiak largest benefit
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

that has a greater than fifty percent likelihoodeing realized upon final settlement. See furthiscussion in Note 14ncome Taxes
Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. TB%# Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Biptes. SFAS 162 identifies the
sources of accounting principles and the framevimriselecting the principles used in the preparatibfinancial statements of
nongovernmental entities that are presented inoconify with generally accepted accounting principile the United States (the GAAP
hierarchy). SFAS 162 will become effective 60 diptowing the SEC's approval of the Public Comp&mwgounting Oversight Board
amendments to AU Section 4Ilhe Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity Withr@eally Accepted Accounting PrincipleBased on its
current operations, the Company does not expetthiraadoption of SFAS 162 will have a material &opon its financial position or results of
operations.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staffdtion (FSP) FAS No. 142-Betermination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assed=SP
FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be coreidae developing renewal or extension assumptisesi to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under FASB StatemenfLA®, Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsSP FAS 142-3 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning &ftsrember 15, 2008, and interim periods within thseal years. Early adoption is prohibited.
Based on its current operations, the Company doesxpect that the adoption of FSP FAS 142-3 védlldna material impact on its financial
position or results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No., TH&closures about Derivative Instruments and Hedghativities, an amendment of FASB

Statement No. 133SFAS 161 amends and expands the disclosure esgeints of SFAS No. 133ccounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. SFAS 161 requires entities to provide greatersparency about (a) how and why an entity usesvatére instruments,
(b) how derivative instruments and related hed¢mas are accounted for under SFAS 133 and itseeklaterpretations, and (c) how derival
instruments and related hedged items affect aty&ntinancial position, results of operations aagh flows. SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods beginning after Novenitier2008. Based on its current operations, the @omyploes not expect that the adoptiol
SFAS 161 will have a material impact on its finahgosition or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASIMG. (revised 2007Business CombinationgSFAS 141R). SFAS 141R establishes
principles and requirements for how an acquireogaizes and measures in its financial statemest&gtntifiable assets acquired, including
goodwill, the liabilities assumed and any non-coltitrg interest in the acquiree. The Statement alablishes disclosure requirements to
enable users of the financial statements to evaliigt nature and financial effects of the busiwessbination. SFAS 141R is effective for
business combinations for which the acquisitioredsion or after the beginning of the first anmeglorting period beginning on or after
December 15, 2008. The impact of adopting SFAS Millbe dependent on the future business comhinatthat the Company may pursue
after its effective date.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS M@, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities—Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 13BAS 159 permits entities to
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

choose to measure many financial instruments antdicether items at fair value that are not cullyerequired to be measured at fair value.
SFAS 159 requires that unrealized gains and lamsé®ms for which the fair value option has beletcted be reported in earnings at each
reporting date. SFAS 159 was effective for fisazdus beginning after November 15, 2007. As of tite df the adoption, SFAS 159 did not
have a material impact on the Company's finan@altjpn or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASIN®G,Fair Value MeasurementsSFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a fraonkeor
measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosat®ut fair value measurements. In February 20@8-ASB amended SFAS 157 by
issuing FSP FAS No. 157-Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Stan¢ No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements Tha
Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes o$é &assification or Measurement under Statemenand FAS No. 157-2Effective
Date of FASB Statement No. 1. In October 2008, the FASB amended SFAS 157 lyrigs=SP FAS No. 157-Betermining the Fair Value
of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Atsétot Active FSP FAS 157-1 amends SFAS 157 to exclude SFA8d&yunting for
Leasesand certain other lease-related accounting proremaeats. FSP FAS 157-2 delays the effective da8F&fS 157 for nonfinancial
assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except fomigethat are recognized or disclosed at fair vaiube financial statements on a recurring basis
(at least annually), to fiscal years beginningrdftevember 15, 2008. FSP FAS 157-3 clarifies thaiegtion of SFAS 157 in a market that is
not active and provides an example to illustratedensiderations in determining the fair value dihancial asset when the market for that
financial asset is not active. The Company adopéethin provisions of SFAS 157 effective Deceml&r2D07 (see Note &air Value of
Financial Instrument;, for additional information). Based on its curreperations, the Company does not expect thatdbpten of the
provisions deferred by FSP FAS 157-2 will have demal impact on its financial position or resufsoperations. FSP FAS 157-3 was
effective upon issuance, including prior periodsvithich financial statements have not been isstied.adoption of FSP FAS 157-3 did not
have a material impact on the Company's finan@altjpn or results of operations.

3. Discontinued Operation

In March 2007, the Company sold its Aerodurct lines to NXP for $285 million in cash, (indlag $14.3 million held in escrow recorded
in the "prepaid expenses and other current asléetstf the Consolidated Balance Sheet at Dece@®g2007), plus additional earn-out
potential of up to an aggregate of $65 million other next three years. In March 2008, the full amiqueviously held in escrow was distribL
to the Company. To date, no additional earn-outilees recognized from this transaction.
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3. Discontinued Operation (Continued)

The financial results of the sold prodires have been presented as discontinued operatitims Consolidated Financial Statements.
following summarizes results from the discontinogerations (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
2007 2006

Revenue: $ 46,31( $ 176,44:
Costs of revenues and operating expe 43,81( 153,37¢
2,50( 23,06

Gain on sale of discontinued operatit 224,88"
Income from discontinued operations before incoaxe: 227,38 23,06
Provision for income taxe 62,23¢ 7,24¢

Income from discontinued operations, net of incaene: $ 165,14¢ $ 15,81¢

Income from discontinued operations per commones|

Basic $ 3.0 $ 0.2¢
Diluted $ 292 % 0.2i
Weighte-average common shares outstand

Basic 54,82¢ 55,34¢
Diluted 56,32: 57,20:

During fiscal 2007, the Company made $4billlon of estimated tax payments due primariljthe gain on the sale of its Aero product
lines and received $26.2 million for the exerci§stock options from employees who were hired byf\associated with the sale of the Aero
products.

Continuing Involvement

In connection with the closing of the saltes Company entered into certain ancillary agregsmeith NXP, including a Transition Servic
Agreement ("TSA") and an Intellectual Property lrise Agreement ("IPLA"). Through the TSA, the Companbleased certain premises to
NXP and provided various temporary support seryisesh as IT support services. Such services weraded for approximately six montl
from the closing date and are no longer being plexdii The fees for these services were generalliva&guat to the Company's cost and were
approximately $3.9 million in fiscal 2007. Throutite IPLA, the Company granted NXP a license widpeet to retained intellectual property
and NXP granted a license to the Company with i@dperansferred intellectual property. Howeveede cross-license agreements do not
involve the receipt or payment of any royalties #metefore are not considered to be a componertrtfnuing involvement.
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4. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the compiatatof basic and diluted earnings per share frontinaing operations (in thousands, except per
share data):

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢ December 3C

2009 2007 2006
Income from continuing operatiol $32,93¢t $ 39,687 $ 15,34!
Shares used in computing basic net income per  48,10¢ 54,82¢ 55,34¢
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options and awar: 88( 1,49t 1,85¢
Shares used in computing diluted earnings per s  48,98¢ 56,32: 57,20:
Income from continuing operatiol
Basic earnings per she $ 06¢ $ 0.7z $ 0.2¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 067 $ 0.7C $ 0.21

Approximately 4.2 million, 4.0 million argl9 million weighted-average dilutive potential igof common stock have been excluded
from the earnings per share calculation for fisesrs ended January 3, 2009, December 29, 200December 30, 2006, respectively, as they
were anti-dilutive.

5. Financial Instruments
Investment:

The Company's short-term investments copsisharily of municipal bonds and U.S. governmagéncy notes. The Company's long-term
investments consist primarily of auction-rate sés. Prior to fiscal 2008, the Company classifedidauction-rate securities as short-term
investments. Early in fiscal 2008, auctions for pnahthe Company's auction-rate securities failedause sell orders exceeded buy orders. As
of January 3, 2009, the Company held $58.0 milianvalue auction-rate securities, all of whichengnced failed auctions during the year.
The underlying assets of the securities consistatudent loans and municipal bonds, of which $38illon were guaranteed by the U.S.
government and the remaining $5.2 million were gely insured. $54.8 million of the auction-ratewsdies had credit ratings of AAA and
$3.2 million had credit ratings of AA. These setias had contractual maturity dates ranging fro252® 2047 and with current yields of 1.
to 7.0% per year at January 3, 2009. The Compareceiving the underlying cash flows on all ofatsction-rate securities. The principal
associated with failed auctions are not expectdzktaccessible until a successful auction occlesissuer redeems the securities, a buyer is
found outside of the auction process or the undeglgecurities mature. The Company is unable tdipré these funds will become available
before their maturity dates. As such, the Compasytdion-rate securities have been classified rrg-term investments as of January 3, 2009.

In November 2008, the Company enteredamtagreement with UBS AG, which provides the Corgpaartain rights to sell to UBS the
auction-rate securities which were purchased thrdhgm. As of January 3, 2009, the Company held22filion par value auction-rate
securities purchased from
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5. Financial Instruments (Continued)

UBS. The Company has the option to sell these g&=uto UBS at par value from June 30, 2010 throdigly 2, 2012. UBS, at its discretion,
may purchase or sell these securities on the Coytgphahalf at any time provided the Company recepar value for the securities sold. The
issuers of the auction-rate securities continugatce the right to redeem the securities at therdtion. The agreement allows for the
continuation of the accrual and payment of intedest on the securities. The agreement also protide€ompany with access to loans of u
75% of the par value of the unredeemed securitiisJune 30, 2010. These loans would carry intares which would be consistent with
interest income on the related auction-rate seéesriAs of January 3, 2009, the Company had ncsloatstanding under this agreement.

The Company's right to sell the auctrate securities to UBS commencing June 30, 201@septs a put option for a payment equal t
par value of the auction-rate securities. As thiegption is non-transferable and cannot be attathéige auction-rate securities if they are sold
to another entity other than UBS, it representeastanding instrument between the Company and UBSCompany elected the fair value
option under SFAS 159 and recorded the put optidtong-term investments". During fiscal 2008, tbempany recorded a gain of
$5.0 million representing (a) the initial fair valof the put option, and (b) the changes in thevigue of the put option from November to the
end of the year. The Company recorded a loss df $8lion representing (a) the transfer of the UBftion-rate securities from available-for-
sale to trading securities and, accordingly, recgg the unrealized losses previously recordealcicumulated other comprehensive loss in
earnings at the election date, and (b) the subseghanges in fair value from the election datthend of the year. The transfer from
available-for-sale to trading securities was a time- election as allowed under SFAS 1A8counting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securitie.. Both the gain from recording the put option ét ¥alue and the loss due to the transfer fromlafe-for-sale to trading
securities, as well as subsequent fair value adgists, were recorded in "other income (expensé), ne

The Company does not expect to need atodbe capital represented by any of its auctide-s&curities prior to their maturities and it
has the ability and intent to hold its non-UBS isiveents for a period of time sufficient to allow my anticipated recovery in market value or
final settlement at the underlying par value, &Qompany believes that the credit ratings anditcsa@port of the security issuers indicate that
they have the ability to settle the securitiesaatyalue. As such, the Company has determinechthather-than-temporary impairment losses
existed as of January 3, 2009.
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5. Financial Instruments (Continued)
The Company's available-for-sale investmennsist of the following (in thousands):

December 2¢

January 3, 2009 2007
Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Cost and

Estimated Estimated

Debt Security Cost Losses Gains Fair Value Fair Value
Auction-rate securitie $ 30,000 $(4260 $ — $ 2574 $ 172,00(
Variable-rate demand note — — — — 100,47(
Municipal 88,90 — 503 89,41( 8,031
U.S. government agen 10,001 — 56 10,057 16,11¢
Commercial pape — — — — 11,94«

$128,90¢ $(4,26() $ 55¢ $125,207 $ 308,56¢

All of the investments with gross unreatizesses as of January 3, 2009 had been in a contnoss position for less than 12 months.
gross unrealized losses as of January 3, 2009duer@rimarily to the illiquidity of the Company'sa@ion-rate securities.

The following summarizes the contractualentying maturities of the Company's available-$ate investments at January 3, 2009 (in
thousands):

Estimated

Cost Fair Value

Due in less than one ye $ 73,73 $ 73,95¢
Due between one year through ten ye 25,17¢ 25,51:
Due after twenty yeal 30,00( 25,74(

$128,90¢ $125,20°

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company is exposed to interest ratltions in the normal course of its businessuiing through its corporate headquarters
leases. The base rents for these leases are ¢attuking a variable interest rate based on tkethmonth LIBOR. The Company has entered
into interest rate swap agreements with notionklesaof $44.3 million and $50.1 million and, effgety, fixed the rent payment amounts on
these leases through March 2011 and March 2013ectsely. The interest rate swap agreements agigmigted and qualify as cash flow
hedges under SFAS 138¢counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreesain
January 3, 2009 was a $5.6 million obligation.

The Company estimates the fair values df’déves based on quoted prices and market obBkrekata of similar instruments. The
effective portion of the interest rate swaps reedrih accumulated other comprehensive loss wasrfilién, net of tax at January 3, 2009.
None of this amount is expected to be reclasstfieghrnings in the next 12 months. However, ifldase agreements or the interest rate ¢
agreements are terminated prior to maturity, tirevielue of the interest rate swaps recorded iniaedated other comprehensive loss may be
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Incbased on an assessment of the agreements at ¢heftim

F-16




Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
January 3, 2009

5. Financial Instruments (Continued)

termination. During the year ended January 3, 2089Company did not discontinue any cash flow lesedg

For interest rate swaps designated asftasthedges, the Company measures effectivenessimparing the change in fair value of the
hedged item with the change in fair value of theriest rate swap. The Company recognizes ineffegirtions of the hedge, as well as
amounts not included in the assessment of effaatis® in the Consolidated Statement of Income.fAamuary 3, 2009, no portion of hedging
instruments' gains or losses were excluded fronasisessment of effectiveness. Hedge ineffectivamassot material for any of the periods
presented.

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following summarizes the valuationttd Company's financial instruments measured ut@geSEAS 157 hierarchy (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at January 3, 2009 Usin
Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant

Active Markets for Unobservable
Observable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets
Cash equivalent $ 150,72¢ $ — 3 —  $150,72¢
Shor-term investments(1 101,26° — — 101,26
Long-term investments(z — — 51,82: 51,82:
$ 251,99 $ — $ 51,82 $303,81¢
Liabilities
Derivative instrument $ — % 560 $ — $ 5,60¢
$ — 3 5,60 $ — $ 5,60¢

D) Included in the Company's short term investmeregst&89.4 million of municipal debt securities, $1fillion of U.S. governmer
agency debt securities and $1.8 million of auctiate securities which settled shortly after yeat.en

(2) Included in the Company's long term investmentsh2&e7 of availab-for-sale auctio-rate securities, $21.1 million of auct-rate
securities classified as trading and $5.0 milliond put option.

The Company's cash equivalents and shortditevestments are valued using quoted prices #met oelevant information generated by
market transactions involving identical assets. Thenpany's derivative instruments are valued uguwed prices and market observable data
of similar instruments. The Company's lotegm investments are valued using a discounted ftmstmodel. The assumptions used in prepe
the discounted cash flow model include estimategnterest rates, amount of cash flows, expectédimg periods of the securities, a discount
to reflect the Company's inability to liquidate tecurities and counterparty risk.
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following summarizes the activity inMed 3 financial instruments in fiscal 2008 (in tisands):

Auction
Rate Put

Securities Option Total
Balance at December 29, 2C $ = =S
Net transfers into Level 3(: 68,80( —  68,80(
Net purchases, sales, issuances and settlel (12,600 2,68¢ (9,917
Unrealized losse (4,260 — (4,260
Net recognized gains (loss¢ (5,080 2,27: (2,809)
Balance at January 3, 20 $46,85¢ $4,962 $51,82!
Gain (loss) for period included in earnings atttéile to the Level 3 financial instruments stillchat

January 3, 200 $ (5,08)) $4,96: $ (119

(1) Early in fiscal 2008, quoted prices for the Compatgnc-term investments were no longer observable. As,gbel
Company changed its fair value measurement metbggdtom quoted prices in active markets to a dksi model.
Accordingly, these securities were reclassifieanfiloevel 1 to Level 3. In November 2008, the Compeaagorded a put
option to sell a portion of its auction-rate seties, which resulted in a gain recorded in earnifigfe gain was offset by
the reclassification of unrealized losses on tls®eiated securities to realized losses recordedtinings. Both the gain
from recording the put option at fair value and libes due to the reclassification of unrealizeddsswere recorded in
"other income (expense), net".

The Company's other financial instrumeimtsiuding cash, accounts receivable and accounyahba, are recorded at amounts that
approximate their fair values due to their shorturides.

7. Balance Sheet Details
Balance sheet details consist of the falhmw(in thousands):

Inventories

January 3, December 2¢

2009 2007
Work in progres: $23,47¢ $ 25,60¢
Finished good 4,81¢ 2,982

$28,29: $ 28,58i
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7. Balance Sheet Details (Continued)
Property, Equipment and Softwe

January 3, December 2¢

2009 2007

Equipment $34,83¢ $ 30,50¢
Computers and purchased softw 39,17 37,73¢
Furniture and fixture 3,167 2,65(
Leasehold improvemen 15,70: 11,054

92,87¢ 81,94
Accumulated depreciatic (62,38Y) (53,78

$30,49%¢ $ 28,15

Accrued Expense

January 3, December 2¢

2009 2007
Accrued compensation and bene $11,48¢ $ 10,23(
Escrow withheld in acquisitior 4,42¢ —
Accrued price protection credi 4,36( 9,482
Other 8,84: 6,68t

$29,11¢ $ 26,39;

Longterm Obligations and Other Liabilities

January 3, December 2¢

2009 2007
Unrecognized tax benefits (including intere $34,16¢ $ 29,447
Other 14,62( 13,86:

$48,78¢ $ 43,30¢

8. Risks and Uncertainties
Financial Instrument:

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjthe Company to significant concentrations eflirrisk consist primarily of cash, cash
equivalents, investments, accounts receivable andatives. The Company places its cash, cash afguits and investments primarily in
municipal bonds and U.S government agency notescé&drations of credit risk with respect to accsueteivable are
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8. Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)

primarily due to customers with large outstandiatabhces. The Company's customers that accountepidfater than 10% of accounts
receivable consist of the following:

January 3, December 2¢

2009 2007
Edom 28% 43%
Flextronics 12% *k

xk Less than 10% of accounts receivable

The Company performs periodic credit evédue of its customers' financial condition and gratly requires no collateral from its
customers. The Company provides an allowance faanpial credit losses based upon the expectedatibliéty of such receivables. Losses
have not been significant for any of the periodsspnted.

Suppliers

A significant portion of the Company's puotk are fabricated by Taiwan Semiconductor Manufary Co. (TSMC). The inability of
TSMC to deliver wafers to the Company on a timedgib could impact the production of the Companggsiycts for a substantial period of
time, which could have a material adverse effedhenCompany's business, financial condition asdlte of operations.

Customers

The Company sells directly to end customdisgributors and contract manufacturers. AlthotlghCompany actually sells the products
and is paid by, distributors and contract manufact) the Company refers to the end customer asistomer. None of the Company's end
customers or contract manufacturers accountedréater than 10% of revenue during fiscal 2008, 2002006. The Company's distributors
that accounted for greater than 10% of revenueistsnsf the following:

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢  December 3C
2009 2007 2006
Edom 31% 36% 33%
Avnet *x 1C% 13%

*x Less than 10% of revenue
9. Acquisitions
Integration Associate

On July 29, 2008, the Company completeddtguisition of Integration Associates, a private®yd company that designed and developed
silicon solutions for wireless, wireline and povegstem management applications for a wide ranggsiEms. The Company acquired
Integration Associates for approximately $87.1 imil) including $80.6 million in cash and approxielgt202,000 shares of the Company's
common stock valued at $6.5 million on the clogdiage. The shares vest over a two-year
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)

period and are not subject to future service reguoénts. Of such consideration, $9.0 million in casls deposited in escrow as security for
breaches of representations and warranties araircether expressly enumerated matters.

The acquisition was recorded using the lpase method of accounting and accordingly, thdteestilntegration Associates' operations
included in the Company's consolidated resultspefrations beginning with the date of the acquisiti®ro forma financial information has not
been presented since the effect of the acquisitEsnot material. The Company believes that theiaitipn enables the Company to address
new product vectors, accelerates its entry inttagemarkets and further scales the Company's eagimg team. These factors contributed to a
purchase price that was in excess of the fair vafube net assets acquired and, as a result,dhg@ny recorded goodwill. The goodwill is |
deductible for tax purposes. The purchase priceallasated as follows (in thousands):

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)
Intangible asset:
Core and developed technolc $36,27( 9.7
Customer relationshir 1,08( 10.C
In-process research and developn 10,25(
47,60(
Cash and cash equivalel 2,64¢
Accounts receivabl 4,55
Inventories 5,92t
Other current asse 3,50z
Goodwill 32,41¢
Other nol-current asset 4,98¢
Accounts payabl (3,039
Other current liabilitie: (4,53¢)
Deferred tax liabilities (6,909¢)
Total purchase pric $87,14:

The purchase price allocation for this asitjon is preliminary and subject to revision asredetailed analysis is completed and
additional information about the fair value of assend liabilities becomes available. Adjustmentthe fair value of the net assets acquired
may affect the calculation of goodwill.

In-process research and development (IPR&pPesents acquired technology that had not aetiiachnological feasibility as of the
acquisition closing date and that had no alterediiture use. These costs are expensed on thefdatquisition. The fair value of each project
was determined using the income approach. The digcate applicable to the cash flows was 20%. Tdtis reflects
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the weighted-average cost of capital and the iighsrent in the development process. The IPR&Dnasbin connection with the acquisition
consisted of the following (in thousands):

Costs to
Complete as o

January 3,
Projects Fair Value 2009
Radio transmitters and transceiv $ 7,740 $ 2,041
Optoelectronic 2,02( 72¢

Power 49C —
$10,25( % 2,77C

The radio transmitters and transceivergepts enable the delivery of data over proprietahgrt range wireless links. The optoelectronic
projects are used for infrared data communicatarsproximity sensing. The power projects enableDXCconversion in power supply
systems. The Company does not expect the produdissign derived from these technologies to begohtribute to revenues prior to the
third or fourth quarter of fiscal 2009.

SourceCore

On October 9, 2007, the Company compleateddquisition of substantially all of the assdtSourceCore, a privately held mixed-signal
design company for approximately $10.6 million, @fincludes direct acquisition costs. Of such adersition, $2.0 million was withheld as
security for breaches of representations and waesaand certain other expressly enumerated maftbesacquisition was recorded using the
purchase method of accounting and accordinglyrabelts of SourceCore's operations are includéderCompany's consolidated results of
operations from the date of the acquisition. Thiotige acquisition, the Company acquired RF desgyasmwell as an applications and software
team in close proximity to our customer base inn@hirhese factors contributed to a purchase pnittevtas in excess of the fair value of the
net assets acquired and, as a result, the Compaoyded goodwill. None of the goodwill is deduatilidr tax purposes. The purchase price
allocated as follows: goodwill—$7.6 million; intaibde assets—3$2.6 million; and net tangible asset84-#illion.

Silembia

In May 2006, the Company completed its &itjon of Silembia, a privately held company bage®ennes, France. Silembia developed
semiconductor intellectual property for digital destnlation and channel decoding. The Company addjaileof the outstanding capital stock
Silembia in exchange for approximately $20.5 milliavhich includes direct acquisition costs. Of saohsideration, $2.8 million was withheld
as security for breaches of representations anthwées and certain other expressly enumeratecersafthe acquisition was recorded using
purchase method of accounting and accordinglytahelts of Silembia's operations are included eGompany's consolidated results of
operations from the date of the acquisition. Thtothge acquisition, the Company acquired engineezkpertise and reduced the time required
to develop new technologies and products. Thegerfacontributed to a purchase price that was @esx of the fair value of the net assets
acquired and, as a result, the Company recordedvgiboNone of the goodwill is deductible for taxiposes.
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The purchase price was allocated as follows: golbeh$9.9 million; intangible assets—$9.5 million; R&D—%$2.6 million; and net tangible
assets—$(1.5) million.

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The gross carrying amount and accumulateartization of goodwill and other intangible assats as follows (in thousands):

Weighted- January 3, 2009 December 29, 2007
Average Accumulated Accumulated
Amortization Gross Gross
Period (Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Goodwill Not amortizer $105,51! $ — $73,19¢ $ —
Amortized intangible asset
Core & developed technoloy 9.3 $ 55,22( $ (10,137 $18,95( $ (6,167)
Customer relationshig 6.4 5,48( (2,389  4,40( (1,559
Patents 7.0 4,66¢ (3,281)  4,66: (2,612)
Internal use softwar 7.0 60C (433) 68C (413)
Employmen-related — — — 71€ (593
Total 8.8 $ 65,96 $ (16,237 $29,417 $ (11,339

The increases in goodwill and amortizedrigible assets are primarily due to the acquistmfintegration Associates and SourceCore in
fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively. Amortizatiopenxse related to intangible assets for fiscal 20087 and 2006 was $5.7 million,
$4.3 million and $4.1 million, respectively. Fubynortized assets are written off against accumadilateortization. The estimated aggregate
amortization expense for intangible assets for ediche five succeeding fiscal years is as folldimghousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2009 $7,84:
2010 7,20¢
2011 6,88¢
2012 6,42
2013 5,04z

11. Stockholders' Equity and Stock-Based Compensati
Common Stock

The Company had 44.6 million shares of camstock issued and outstanding as of January(®.Zthe Company issued 1.0 million
shares of common stock during fiscal 2008. Appratety 171 thousand shares were withheld by the @Gosduring fiscal 2008 to satisfy
employee tax obligations for the vesting of cer&timck grants made under the Company's 2000 Stwektive Plan.
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Share Repurchase Program

In October 2008, the Company's Board o&&tiors authorized a program to repurchase up t0 #fillion of the Company's common st
over a 12-month period. The program allows for repases to be made in the open market or in privatsactions, including structured or
accelerated transactions, subject to applicabla legiuirements and market conditions. The Compggmyor repurchase program, which was
announced in July 2007 and authorized the repuecbigp to $400 million of the Company's commorcktover a 24-month period, was
completed in November 2008. The Company repurch@geillion shares, 4.4 million shares and 1.6ionlshares of its common stock for
$280.3 million, $163.2 million and $50.0 million g fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive L

The components of accumulated other congm&ikie loss, net of taxes, were as follows (in Hamals):

Unrealized Unrealized Losses o
Losses on Cas
Available-For-Sale

Flow Hedges Securities Total
Balance at December 29, 20 $ — 3 = =
Net change associated with current period trarsas 3,64z 5,451 9,09:
Net amount reclassified into earnir — (3,045 (3,045
Balance at January 3, 20 $ 364: $ 2,40¢ $ 6,04¢

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has two stock-based compemsplams, the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and the By Stock Purchase Plan (the
"Purchase Plan"). The shares issuable under th@ @@k Incentive Plan and Employee Stock PurcRéese automatically increase on the f
stock market trading day of each calendar year.arheunt of shares reserved for the 2000 Stock tiveeRIlan increased by 2.2 million and
2.6 million shares, and for the Employee Stock Rase Plan increased by 220 thousand and 250 thibekanres on January 2, 2009 and
January 2, 2008, respectively.

2000 Stock Incentive Plan

In fiscal 2000, the Company's Board of Bioes and stockholders approved the 2000 StockntiveePlan (the 2000 Plan). The 2000 Plan
contains programs for (i) the discretionary gragif stock options to employees, non-employee bosthbers and consultants for the
purchase of shares of the Company's common stigce discretionary issuance of common stockatiye(as granted under direct issuance
shares in stock awards and restricted stock URB&JE)), (iii) the granting of special below-markétck options to executive officers and other
highly compensated employees of the Company fochwttie exercise price can be paid using payrolidiéons and (iv) the automatic issua
of stock options to non-employee board members.di$wetionary issuance of common stock, RSUs &oak®ptions generally contain
vesting provisions ranging from three to eight gedr
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permitted by the Company, stock options can beotsenl immediately and, similar to the direct issueashares, are subject to repurchase rights
which generally lapse in accordance with the vegstithedule. The repurchase rights provide that gpaain defined events, the Company can
repurchase unvested shares at the price paid peg.shhe term of each stock option is no more tearyears from the date of grant.

The Company granted to its employees (ttioly employees who were hired by NXP associatel thi¢ sale of the Aero products)
0.3 million, 0.5 million and 0.3 million stock optis, and 1.0 million, 1.0 million and 1.0 milliofistock awards and RSUs from the 2000 Plan
during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectivelye Tompany recorded $5.5 million of stock compensatixpense in "Income from
discontinued operations, net of income taxes" dufiscal 2007 in connection with modifications afuity grants to employees who were hired
by NXP in connection with the sale of the Aero prodines. As of the closing date of the sale,Gloenpany accelerated the vesting of
0.5 million shares of options and awards, and elddrthe exercise period of 0.9 million shares dioos through December 31, 2007. Further,
the Company cancelled 0.3 million shares of uneesmions and awards related to the terminated @epk. There were no other significant
modifications made to any stock grants during thesgeds.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ReecRlan) was adopted by the Company's Board etfns in fiscal 2000. Eligible
employees may purchase a limited number of shdr® Company's common stock at 85% of the mar&ktevduring a series of offering
periods. Each offering period is divided into seanirual purchase intervals and has a maximum te24 afonths. During fiscal 2008, 2007
and 2006, the Company issued a total of 120,008,000 and 149,000 shares under the Purchase Rlaretoployees (including employees
who were hired by NXP associated with the saldefAero products). The weighted-average fair védu@urchase rights granted under the
Purchase Plan for fiscal 2008 was $8.07 per share.

Accounting for Stock Compensation

Stock-based compensation costs are geyé@sked on the fair value calculated from the Bl&ckoles optiorpricing model on the date
grant for stock options and on the date of enrafinfer the Purchase Plan. The fair values of seglirds and RSUs generally equal their
intrinsic value on the date of grant.

The Black-Scholes valuation calculationuiegs us to estimate key assumptions such as fatac price volatility, expected terms, risk-
free rates and dividend yield. Expected stock priatility is based upon a combination of bothtdigal volatility and implied volatility
derived from traded options on the Company's sto¢ke marketplace. Expected term is derived fronamalysis of historical exercises and
remaining contractual life of options. The rike rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield cumeffect at the time of grant. The Company
never paid cash dividends and does not currennéhto pay cash dividends, thus it has assuméd dividend yield.

The Company must estimate potential faufes of stock grants and adjust compensation eostded accordingly. The estimate of
forfeitures will be adjusted over the requisiteveg period to the extent that actual forfeiturdfed or are expected to differ, from such
estimates. Changes in
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estimated forfeitures will be recognized througtuanulative catch-up adjustment in the period ofnggaand will also impact the amount of
stock compensation expense to be recognized inefyteriods.

The fair values of stock options and RSkésaanortized as compensation expense on a stil@ghbasis over the vesting period of the
grants. The fair values of stock awards are fullgemsed in the period of grant, when shares aresitiately issued with no vesting restrictio

Compensation expense from continuing operationsgreized is shown in the operating activities sectibthe Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows.

The weighted-average fair value of shargetgayments was estimated using the Black-Scbpté&m-pricing model with the following
assumptions:

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢  December 3C
2009 2007 2006
2000 Stock Incentive Pla
Expected volatility 44% 48% 5%
Risk-free interest rate ¢ 2.€% 4.€% 4.€%
Expected term (in year 5.C 4.¢ 5.2
Dividend yield — — —
Employee Stock Purchase Pl:
Expected volatility 41% 37% 50%
Risk-free interest rate ¢ 1.2% 4.8% 5.C%
Expected term (in month 12 14 8
Dividend yield — — —
A summary of the Company's stock compeosaittivity with respect to fiscal 2008 follows:
Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Remaining
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Value
Stock Options (000s) Price Term ($000s)
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 579¢ $ 32.7(
Grantec 33¢ 30.91
Exercisec (37€) 16.6¢
Cancelled or expire (507) 42.0%
Outstanding at January 3, 20 5,25¢ § 32.8¢ 52 $6,70¢
Vested at January 3, 2009 and expected to 5162 $ 32.8¢ 52 $ 6,69¢
Exercisable at January 3, 20 4,107 $ 32.8¢ 45 §$ 6,51¢
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Weighted- Aggregate
Weighted-
Average Average Intrinsic
Shares  Purchase Remaining Value
Stock Awards and RSUs (000s) Price Vesting Term ($000s)
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 1,801 $ 0.0C
Granted 1,00« 0.0C
Issued (650) 0.0C
Cancelled or expire (132 0.0C
Outstanding at January 3, 20 2,02: $ 0.0C 1€ $51,69¢
Outstanding at January 3, 2009 and expected t  1,80¢ $ 0.0C 1.5 $46,23:
Exercisable at January 3, 20 - $ — — § —

The following summarizes the Company's Wiid average fair value at the date of grant (dioly activity related to discontinued
operations):

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢ December 3C
2009 2007 2006
Per grant of stock optior $129: $ 16.1¢ $ 19.7¢
Per grant of stock award or RS $3177 $ 342t $ 37.5¢

The following summarizes the Company'sistoased payment and stock option values (in thalgan

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢ December 3C
2009 2007 2006
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis $ 545/ $ 23,68¢ $ 41,44(

Intrinsic value of stock awards issued and RSUswvbster $19,46¢ $ 2266 $ 4,65¢
Grant date fair value of stock awards and RSUswubstiec $22,42( $ 22,41¢ $ 4,39:

The Company had approximately $80.8 milliérotal unrecognized compensation costs relatexddck options, RSUs and non-vested
shares at January 3, 2009 that are expected &cbgnized over a weighted-average period of 2 y@&ere were no significant stock
compensation costs capitalized into assets asobdga 3, 2009.

The Company received cash of $6.3 millienthe exercise of stock options during fiscal 2008 Company issues shares from the s
reserved under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan uperxercise of stock options, issuance of stockd@syand vesting of RSUs. The Company
does not currently expect to repurchase sharesdrgnsource to satisfy such obligation under ttae Pl
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The following are the stock-based compeaosatosts recognized in the Company's Consolid&tatements of Income (in thousands):

Year Ended

January 3, December 2¢  December 3C

2009 2007 2006
Cost of revenue $ 1437 $ 153¢ $ 1,02¢
Research and developmt 14,90¢ 16,38t 12,79(
Selling, general and administrati 24,32¢ 22,05¢ 17,21«
40,66¢ 39,97¢ 31,02¢
Provision for income taxe 5,647 6,75k 5,69:

$35,02: $ 33,220 $ 25,33¢

As of January 3, 2009, the Company hadveseshares of common stock for future issuandellsvs (in thousands):

2000 Stock Incentive Ple 18,97¢
Employee Stock Purchase P 1,71¢
Total shares reserve 20,68¢

12. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a defined contributo401(k) Plan for its qualified U.S. employeRarticipants may contribute a percentage of
their compensation on a pre-tax basis, subjectni@@mum annual contribution imposed by the InteRevenue Code. The Company may
make discretionary matching contributions as weldliscretionary profit-sharing contributions to #@1(k) Plan. The Company contributed
$2.2 million, $1.8 million and $2.1 million to tR®1(k) Plan during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, eetipely.

13. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

The Company leases its facilities underafireg lease agreements that expire at variousdateugh 2019. Some of these arrangements
contain renewal options and require the Comparpatotaxes, insurance and maintenance costs.

F-28




Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
January 3, 2009

13. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Rent expense under operating leases w8sdiBion, $4.6 million and $5.7 million for fisca&l008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The minimum annual future rentals undertérens of these leases at January 3, 2009 ardlasddin thousands):

Fiscal Year

2009 $ 9,73¢
2010 7,42¢
2011 6,46(
2012 6,34
2013 2,58¢
Thereaftel 6,97¢
Total minimum lease paymer 39,53¢
Minimum sublease rental incon (12,70
Total net minimum lease paymel $ 26,83

The Company has an accrual of $1.0 milibdanuary 3, 2009 for the present value of eséichatture obligations for non-cancelable
lease payments (net of estimated sublease incafagd to vacating certain leased facilities. See=N6,Headquarter Relocation Costsor
additional information.

Headquarters Leases

In March 2006, the Company entered intoperating lease agreement and a related participaireement for a facility at 400 W. Cesar
Chavez ("400 WCC") in Austin, Texas for its corperaeadquarters. The lease has a term of seves yider base rent for the term of the lease
is an amount equal to the interest accruing on3pddllion at 110 basis points over the three-mdrdBOR (which would be approximately
$4.8 million over the remaining term assuming LIB@®erages 1.47% during such term).

In March 2008, the Company entered intoperating lease agreement and a related participatireement for a facility at 200 W. Cesar
Chavez ("200 WCC") in Austin, Texas for the expansif its corporate headquarters. The lease hexsradf five years. The base rent for the
term of the lease is an amount equal to the intasuing on $50.1 million at 155 basis pointsrahe three-month LIBOR (which would be
approximately $6.4 million over the remaining tesssuming LIBOR averages 1.47% during such term).

The Company has granted certain rightsramedies to the lessors in the event of certaiaudesf, including the right to terminate the
leases, to bring suit to collect damages, and maped the Company to purchase the facilities. Thsde contain other customary
representations, warranties, obligations, condii@mdemnification provisions and termination pgiens, including covenants that the
Company shall maintain unencumbered cash and higitdgl short-term investments of at least $75 amllif the Company's unencumbered
cash and highly-rated short-term investments a®tlean $150 million, it must also maintain a rafidunded debt to earnings before interest
expense, income taxes, depreciation, amortizaéase expense and other non-cash charges (EBITD¥eR)the four
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prior fiscal quarters of no greater than 2 to 1.0Adanuary 3, 2009, the Company believes it wampliance with all covenants of the leases.

During the terms of the leases, the Compesyon-going options to purchase the buildingpfochase prices of approximately
$44.3 million for 400 WCC and $50.1 million for 20@CC. Alternatively, the Company can cause each pugperty to be sold to third parties
provided it is not in default under that propertgase. The Company is contingently liable on <t fiollar loss basis for up to $35.3 million to
the extent that the 400 WCC sale proceeds ar¢Haaghe $44.3 million purchase option and up t.&4nillion to the extent that the
200 WCC sale proceeds are less than the $50. omplirchase option.

In accordance with FASB Interpretation KfeIN) 45, Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requiremémt&Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Otl, the Company determined that the fair value assediwith the guaranteed residual values was
$1.0 million for 400 WCC and $1.2 million for 200QC, as of the inception of the leases. These armauarte recorded in "Other assets, net"
and "Long-term obligations and other liabilitieg"the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are beingiaetbover the term of the leases.

The Company is required to periodicallylaate the expected fair value of each facilityret €nd of the lease terms. If the Company
determines that it is estimable and probable tiaekpected fair values will be less than $44.3eniffor 400 WCC and $50.1 million for
200 WCC, it will ratably accrue the loss up to aximaum of approximately $35.3 million and $40.0 raill, respectively, over the remaining
lease terms as additional rent expense. As of 3a12009, the Company does not believe thatadostingency accrual is required for eit
property. However, a prolonged economic downtumndincrease the likelihood of such a loss accrual.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In connection with its headquarters leagesCompany has entered into interest rate swegeagents as a hedge against the variable rent
under the leases. Under the terms of the swap mgrgs, the Company has effectively converted thiabke rents to fixed rents through Ma
2011 for 400 WCC and March 2013 for 200 WCC. SeteMNoFinancial Instruments for additional information.

Litigation
Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action comiplai violations of U.S. federal securities lawasafiled in the United States District Court
the Southern District of New York against the Compdour officers individually and the three invesint banking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connectidh the Company's initial public offering of commetock. The Consolidated Amended
Complaint alleges that the registration statemadt@ospectus for the Company's initial public offg did not disclose that (1) the
underwriters solicited and received additional,emsive and undisclosed commissions from certaiesitors, and (2) the underwriters had
agreed to allocate shares of the offering in exghdar a commitment from the customers to purclaasitional shares in the aftermarket at
pre-determined higher prices. The Complaint allegelsitions
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of the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934. The action seeks damages imspecified amount and is being
coordinated with approximately 300 other nearlyntitsal actions filed against other companies. Artouder dated October 9, 2002 dismissed
without prejudice the four officers of the Compamlyo had been named individually. On December 5628® Second Circuit vacated a
decision by the District Court granting class dedition in six "focus” cases, which are intendedérve as test cases. The plaintiffs selected
these six cases, which do not include the CompEmg.Court has indicated that its decisions in théoxus cases are intended to provide
strong guidance for the parties in the remainirgesaOn April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denigeiition for rehearing filed by plaintiffs, but
noted that plaintiffs could ask the District Cotaricertify more narrow classes than those that wejezted.

On August 14, 2007, the plaintiffs filed @maded complaints in the six focus cases. On Seme&W 2007, the plaintiffs moved to certif
class in the six focus cases. On November 14, 28@7ssuers and the underwriters named as defenfatie six focus cases filed motions to
dismiss the amended complaints against them. Owrhvi2z8, 2008, the District Court dismissed the SéesrAct claims of those members of
the putative classes in the focus cases who seldghcurities for a price in excess of the initiiering price and those who purchased outside
the previously certified class period. With respecall other claims, the motions to dismiss wezaidd. On October 10, 2008, at the request of
plaintiffs, plaintiffs' motion for class certificdan was withdrawn, without prejudice.

As the litigation process is inherently artain, the Company is unable to predict the outcofithe above described matter. While the
Company does maintain liability insurance, it coldur losses that are not covered by its liabilitgurance or that exceed the limits of its
liability insurance. Such losses could have a netenpact on the Company's business and its estilbperations or financial position.

Patent and Copyright Infringement Litigation

On December 14, 2006, Analog Devices, (Analog Devices), a Massachusetts corporationy fildawsuit against the Company, in the
United States District Court in the District of Mashusetts, alleging infringement of United St&atents Nos. 7,075,329, 6,262,600,
6,525,566, 6,903,578 and 6,873,065, and copyrighihgement of certain Analog Devices datasheetsS&ptember 17, 2007, the Company
filed a lawsuit against Analog Devices in the Udifates District Court for the Eastern DistricfTeikas, Marshall Division, alleging
infringement of United States Patent No. 7,171,%32 March 7, 2008, the Company settled both lawawuith Analog Devices. In connection
with the settlement, each company agreed to distinéskawsuits.

Other

The Company is involved in various otheyaleproceedings that have arisen in the normalseoaf business. While the ultimate results of
these matters cannot be predicted with certaihtyQompany does not expect them to have a maselvarse effect on its consolidated
financial position or results of operations.
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Discontinued Operations Indemnificati

January 3, 2009

In connection with the sale of the Aeroduret lines, the Company agreed to indemnify NXFhwéspect to liabilities for certain tax
matters. There is no contractual limit on exposuita respect to such matters. As of January 3, 20@9Company had no material liabilities

recorded with respect to this indemnification oatign.

14. Income Taxes—

Significant components of the provision ifttome taxes attributable to continuing operatiaresas follows (in thousands):

Current:
Domestic
International

Total Current

Deferred:
Domestic
International

Total Deferrec

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢ December 3C

2009 2007 2006

$14,557 $ 5,18. $ 10,17¢

3,80¢ 1,80¢ 2,071
18,36¢ 6,991 12,24¢
2,261 (177) (7,74
(445) 24 (179
1,81¢ (159 (7,929)

$20,187 $ 6,83t $ 4,32¢

The Company's provision for income taxdfeds from the expected tax expense amount compatexbplying the statutory federal
income tax rate to income before income taxesrasut of the following:

Year Ended
January 3, December 2¢ December 3C

2009 2007 2006
Federal statutory ra 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Stock compensatic 5.C 6.9 20.5
Foreign tax rate benet (16.9) (4.4 (6.2)
Tax-exempt interest incornr (3.0 (11.¢) (22.9)
Research and development tax cre (2.3 3.9 (24.¢)
In-process research and developn 6.8 — 4.4
State tax expens 0.9 04 2.8
Release of prior year unrecognized tax ber (12.5) (8.7 —
Intercompany technology licen 22.1 — —
Other 2.2 0.5 2.5
38.(% 14.7% 22.(%
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The increase in the effective rate forfteeal year ended January 3, 2009 was primarilyoattable to a tax charge related to the
intercompany license of certain technology obtaiimetthe acquisition of Integration Associates amel hton-deductible write-off of in-process
research and development costs.

Income before income taxes included appnaxely $22.6 million, $28.7 million and $10.7 nolti related to foreign operations in fiscal
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At the end of fiscal 2008, undistributedréiags of the Company's foreign subsidiaries ofrapipately $201.0 million are considered
permanently reinvested. Accordingly, no provision{.S. federal and state income taxes has beep.radermination of the amount of the
unrecognized deferred tax liability on these unt&diearnings is not practicable.

Significant components of the Company'sdefl taxes as of January 3, 2009 and Decemb@0R9,are as follows (in thousands):

January 3, December 2¢

2009 2007

Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 594 $  2,71¢
Research and development tax credit carryforv 4,211 2,51:
Stock compensatic 8,59¢ 6,52¢
Depreciable asse 35,89¢ 20,48¢
Reserves and allowanc 56( 22¢
Unrealized losses on availa-for-sale securitie 1,297 —
Unrealized losses on cash flow hed 1,961 —
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 2,04: 1,77
Accrued liabilities and othe 3,88( 3,86¢

64,39( 38,111
Less: Valuation allowanc — —

64,39( 38,11

Deferred tax liabilities
Acquired intangible: 16,17 4,63¢
Long term obligations for tax purpos 33,02: 15,48
Prepaid expenses and otl 751 54
49,94¢ 20,17¢
Net deferred tax asse $14,44: $ 17,93t

As of January 3, 2009, the Company hadréddet operating loss and research and developanedit carryforwards of approximately
$12.4 million and $1.6 million, respectively, aseault of the Cygnal Integrated Products, SilicoA®GIKE, and Integration Associates
acquisitions. These carryforwards expire in figadrs 2019 through 2027. Recognition of thesedaosiscredit carryforwards is subject to an
annual limit, which may cause them to expire befbey are used.
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14. Income Taxes—(Continued)

The Company also had state loss and rdseart development credit carryforwards of approxatya$30.2 million and $5.0 million,
respectively. A portion of these loss and credityfarwards was generated by the Company and @opontas acquired through the Integration
Associates acquisition. Certain of these carryfodsaxpire in fiscal years 2025 through 2027 aheist do not expire. Recognition of some of
these loss and credit carryforwards is subjecttaramual limit, which may cause them to expire betbey are used.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net féects of temporary differences between the cagyialues of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the values used for incameurposes. Upon the acquisition of Integratioed&gates in July 2008, the Company
recorded net deferred tax liabilities of approxieiat$4.6 million due to differences between bool tax bases of acquired assets and assume
liabilities.

The Company's operations in Singapore @bgst to reduced tax rates through 2019, as lsmgeeain conditions are met. The income
benefit reflected in earnings was approximatel@$sillion (representing $0.12 per diluted share2@®8 and $2.7 million (representing $0.05
per diluted share) in 2007.

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation (RtN) 48,Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxasthe beginning of fiscal 2007. A
result of the adoption of FIN 48, the Company retpgd no change in the liability for unrecognize® benefits. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized taefits is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at December 29, 20 $27,30:
Additions based on tax positions related to theesuryeal 8,127
Additions based on tax positions related to therprear 3,90¢
Reductions for tax positions as a result of a lajgbee applicable statute of limitatic  (6,63€)
Balance at January 3, 20 $32,69:

At January 3, 2009, the Company had grassangnized tax benefits of $32.7 million which wbaffect the effective tax rate if
recognized. During fiscal 2008, the Company hadgincreases of $12.0 million to its current yaaegognized tax benefits, primarily due to
uncertainty related to intercompany transfer pgeiand gross decreases of $6.6 million to its wgeized tax benefits related to the closure of
an open tax year. During fiscal 2007, the Compaat/ dross increases of $14.8 million to its unrecoeghtax benefits, primarily due to tax
consequences associated with discontinued opesatiodl gross decreases of $6.4 million to its wgezed tax benefits related to the closure
of an income tax audit and the closure of opery&ats.

The Company believes it is reasonably fbsshat the gross unrecognized tax benefits wiginge in the next twelve months due to the
Company's participation in the Advance Pricing Agment program with the U.S. Internal Revenue Senibe Company is unable to estinr
the range of the possible change to the unrecogtézebenefits at this time.

The Company recognizes interest and pesalélated to unrecognized tax benefits in theipimv for income taxes. During fiscal 2008,
2007 and 2006, the Company recognized $0.9 mil§dm) million and $0.5 million of interest, respgety, net of tax, in the provision for
income taxes. In
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addition, the Company had decreases, net of te§].@ million related to the closure of an openyaar in fiscal 2008 and of $1.1 million
related to the closure of an income tax audit &ledctosure of open tax years in fiscal 2007. Them@any had accrued $1.7 million and
$2.1 million for the payment of interest relatedutrecognized tax positions at the end of fisc@&8and 2007, respectively.

The tax years 2004 through 2008 remain @pexamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsathich the Company is subject. The
Company is not currently under audit in any magoairig jurisdiction.

15. Segment Information

The Company has one operating segment,dygignal analog intensive ICs, consisting of nurnerproduct areas. The Company's chief
operating decision maker is considered to be iiefExecutive Officer. The chief operating decisimaker allocates resources and assesses
performance of the business and other activiti¢seabperating segment level.

Revenue is attributed to a geographic bessd on the end customer's shipped-to locatioafdllowing summarizes the Company's
revenue by geographic area (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 2¢  December 3C
January 3,
2009 2007 2006

United State! $51,82¢ $ 43,74: $ 46,44¢
China 94,77¢ 79,26 61,38¢
Taiwan 79,35! 83,17¢ 56,78¢
South Kores 56,36¢ 36,57: 26,01:
Rest of worlc 133,30° 94,71( 97,52¢
Total $415,63( $ 337,46 $ 288,15¢

The following summarizes the Company's kimgd assets by geographic area (in thousands):

December 2¢
January 3,
2009 2007
United State: $166,61: $ 101,40(
France 20,32 21,18¢
Rest of worlo 11,86: 9,75(
Total $198,79¢ $ 132,33¢

16. Headquarter Relocation Costs

In fiscal 2006, the Company relocated nodsts Austin, Texas employees to a new corporatediquarters. In fiscal 2007, the Company

relocated the remainder of its Austin employedsstbeadquarters. The Company recorded $3.8 miliothe expected costs related to
vacating certain
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leased facilities in the "selling, general and adstrative" line of the Consolidated Statementinabme. The following table summarizes the
accrued relocation costs activity (in thousands):

Balance a

Additions

Beginning  Charged tc
Balance at
Fiscal Year of Year Expenses Deductions(1  End of Year
2008 $ 2618 $ — $ 1632 $ 98€
2007 2,261 704 347 2,61¢
2006 — 2,39¢ 137 2,261

(1) Deductions represent lease and brokerage commigaigments.
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Quatrterly financial information for fiscaD08 and 2007 is as follows. The first quarterieddl 2008 had 14 weeks. All other quarterly
periods reported here had 13 weeks (in thousardspeper share amounts):

Fiscal 2008
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue! $99,34¢ $113,48! $104,62( $98,17¢
Gross profit 60,09¢ 69,30¢ 66,03 60,341
Operating incom: 7,08¢ 7,3341) 18,16¢ 11,06¢
Income from continuing operatiol 6,32¢ 1,1541) 14,64: 10,81
Income from discontinued operations, net o — — —
Net income $ 6322 $ 1,1541)$ 14,64: $10,81¢
Basic earnings per shal
Income from continuing operatiol $ 014 $ 00z $ 03C $ 0.21
Net income $ 014 $ 00z $ 03C $ 0.21
Diluted earnings per shat
Income from continuing operatiol $ 014 $ 00z $ 02¢ $ 0.21
Net income $ 014 $ 00z $ 02¢ $ 021
Fiscal 2007
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue: $100,11: $87,93¢ $75,597 $ 73,81«
Gross profit 63,54¢ 52,95. 45,36« 45,37t
Operating income (los: 14,47. 10,41t 1,937 (3,729
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 15,91¢ 17,62« 6,892 (74¢€)
Income from discontinued operations, net of 5,39¢ 2,81( 581 156,3542)
Net income $ 21,317 $20,43¢ $ 7,47 $155,61(2)
Basic earnings per shai
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 02¢ $ 03z $ 01z $ (0.0)
Net income $ 03¢ $ 037 $ 014 $ 284
Diluted earnings per shat
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 02 $ 031 $ 01z $ (0.0))
Net income $ 038 $ 03¢ $ 01z $ 284

1) Includes a charge for in-process research and @igwednt costs in connection with our acquisitionndégration Associates.

(2) Includes a gain on the sale of our Aero produ@djmet of related income tax
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Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Shenzhen Silicon Laboratories Technology Co. |
Silicon Laboratories France S/

Silicon Laboratories Gmbl

Silicon Laboratories Asia Pacific, Limite

Silicon Laboratories Hungary Korlatolt Felelosségusasay
Silicon Labs Technology India Private Limit
Silicon Laboratories Italy S.r.|

Silicon Laboratories Y.K.

SL—Silicon Laboratories, Unipessoal L

Silicon Laboratories International Pte. Lt

Silicon Laboratories IA UK Limitec

Silicon Laboratories UK Limite:

Silicon Labs Integration, Inc

Silicon Laboratories Technology, LL

Silicon Labs CP, Inc

Silicon Labs HV, Inc.

Organized
Under Law Of

China

France

Germany

Hong Kong
Hungary

India

Italy

Japar

Portugal
Singapore
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
State of Californi
State of Delawar
State of Delawar
State of Texa
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos-38528, 333-45682, 333-60794, 383844
333-104771, 333-112324, 333-122845, 333-131700;138B62 and 333-149104) pertaining to the stockritive and employee stock
purchase plans of Silicon Laboratories Inc. of yorts dated February 10, 2009, with respectaatmsolidated financial statements of
Silicon Laboratories Inc. and the effectivenesmtdrnal control over financial reporting of Silicd.aboratories Inc., included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended January 8920

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 10, 2009







Exhibit 31.1

Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commgon
by Registrant's Chief Executive Officer, as requiré by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Necip Sayiner, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form-K of Silicon Laboratories Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fa
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in al
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedul
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ¢tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestipularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpg; or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readersdsurance regarding the reliability of finanecégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport oul
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures as of the end of thegepvered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tlaturred during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieynal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditongl éhe audit committee of registrant's board odctiors (or persons fulfilling the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the
registrant's internal controls over financial rejpy.

Date: February 9, 20C

/s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine

President anc

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer







Exhibit 31.2

Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commgon
by Registrant's Chief Financial Officer, as requiral by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

[, William G. Bock, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form-K of Silicon Laboratories Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fa
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in al
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedul
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ¢tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestipularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpg; or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readersdsurance regarding the reliability of finanecégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport oul
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures as of the end of thegepvered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tlaturred during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieynal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditongl éhe audit committee of registrant's board odctiors (or persons fulfilling the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the
registrant's internal controls over financial rejpy.

Date: February 9, 20C

/sl WILLIAM G. BOCK

William G. Bock

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)







Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as create8dayion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002hedche undersigned officers of Silicon
Laboratories Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifgtth

(i) the accompanying Annual Report omnrd.0-K of the Company for the fiscal year endemuday 3, 2009 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Repautly €omplies with the requirements of Section }3(@Section 15(d), as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984

(i) the information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

A signed original of this written statemesatjuired by Section 906 has been provided to thragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities Exchange Commissiais staff upon request.

Dated: February 9, 20(

/s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine
President anc
Chief Executive Office

/s/ WILLIAM G. BOCK

William G. Bock
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officel







